
Lori A. SkiUactic

Conmtesioarr

KaUi S. Foi
Direc(or

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
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December 15,2020

n

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below for the continued provision
of Substance Use Disorder prevention and early intervention services for children from birth to
age ten (10) years old Involved with Division for Children, Youth and Families and their parents
and caregivers who have a substance use disorder, by exercising renewal options and by
increasing the total price limitation by $1,816,193 from $4,425,404 to $6,241,597 and by
extending the completion date for Granite Pathways from December 31, 2020 to September 29,
2021, and for The Family Resource Center at Gorham from January 31, 2021 to September 29,
2021, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below..

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Granite

Pathways
22890

0-B001

Conway
Rochester

Seaccast

Southern

Manchester

Keene

daremont

Concord

Laconia

$2,598,589 $1,293,017 $3,891,606

0; 5/2/18,
#20

A1: 5/15/19,
#17A

A2: 8/26/20,
Info Item M

The Family
Resource
Center at

Gorham

162412

-8001
Berlin Littleton $1,826,815 $523^176 $2,349,991

0: 5/2/18,
#20

A1:

12/19/20,
#20

A2: 8/26/20,
Info Item M

Total: $4,425,404 $1,816,193 $6,241,597

The Departmenl of Health and Human Services'Mistion is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citisens to achieve health and independence.
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Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line "items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
If needed and Justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because sufficient funds in State Fiscal Year 2021 were not
available in the operating budget considering the grant amount awarded. There was a delay by
the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration in approving New Hampshire's
requests for continued State Opioid Response Grant and as a result the action to accept In
additional state appropriations had to be deferred. This request is Sole Source because the
contracts were approved as sole source in a previous action and MOP 150 requires any
subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing the Strength to Succeed Program
services to children, parents and caregivers who are undergoing an assessment by the Division
for Children, Youth, and Families, and are affected by a substance use disorder. This request, if
approved, will also fund the evidence-based Parenting a Second Time Around or equivalent
evidence-based curriculum for grandparents who are caring for a minor child as a result of Division
of Children, Youth, and Families involvement and parental substance use.

Approximately 300 individuals will be served from September 30, 2020 to September 29,
2021.

The Contractors have been providing these programs and have established protocols in
place that provide accessible, integrated services to reduce and mitigate childhood trauma that
results from substance use in the family. Core components of the Strength to Succeed program
include rapid access to treatment for parents within the Division for Children, Youth, and Families
reunification timeframe, Division for Children. Youth, and Families Parent Partner peer support,
home visiting services, direct prevention services to children to mitigate risk of substance misuse,
and caregiver support for relative caregivers of children exposed to substance use in the home.

The original sen/ices were contracted when the Stale received funding authorized by the
21 St Century Cures Act through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
State Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis grant. The State Targeted Response grant program
ended in fiscal year 2020, and funds from that grant were used to expand critical substance use
disorder prevention, treatment and recovery services to target populations, including ̂ ild welfare
involved families. Extension and expansion of State Targeted Response funded initiatives were
a key component of the State Opioid Response grant, whose second round of funding provides
additional resources to address the opioid crisis through September 29. 2021.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures:

•  The Contractor shall provide evidence-based home visiting services to all families
referred to the program that require home visiting services as part of their treatment
plan.

• . The Contractor shall increase training opportunities for the eariy childhood and home
visiting workforce in substance misuse prevention, recovery, and trauma informed
care by three (3) trainings per calendar year and increase the knowledge of substance
misuse prevention, recovery and trauma informed care among the early childhood and
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home visiting worlcforce, as demonstrated by an increase of 10% in aggregate as
measured quarterly from training pre-tests to training post-tests

•  The Contractor shall ensure that 80% of families referred to the program receive
access to treatment or interim treatment services within 48 hours of referral.

•  The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department on the development, reporting,
and quality improvement efforts for additional performance measures ar>d outcome
indicators.

As referenced in Form P-37. General Provisions, and in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions. Section 3 of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the
agreements for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
previously renewed the contracts for Granite Pathways for one (1) year and six (6) months, leaving
six (6) months available, and for The Family Resource Center at Gorham for one (1) year and
seven (7) months, leaving five (5) months available. The Department is exercising its option to
renew services for ̂ e remaining periods available on each contract as well as to extend the
contracts an additional three months beyond the original two (2) year renewal periods, therefore,
extending both contracts through September 29,2021.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, children impacted
by substance misuse issues within their family may not receive the services and targeted
prevention services necessary to support their currerrt needs and to assist them with avoiding
substance misuse issues. In addition, relative caregivers impacted by familial substance misuse
may not receive the sen/ices and supports that are necessary to continue to support the children
in their families.

Area seryed: Statewide.

Source of Funds; 100% Federal Funds CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326 and FAIN
H79TI081685.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

0S-9&-92-920S10-2SS90000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.

HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. OPIOID STR

GRANT

100% Ftdtril Funds

Granite Pathways Vendor A228900

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92052559 $121,778 $0 $121,778

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052559 $487,111 $0 $487,111

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052559 $0 $0 $0

$608,889 $0 .  $606,889

The Famitv Resourca Center at Gorttam Vendor #162412

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052559 $27,062 $0 $27,062
2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052559 $108,247 $0 $108,247

2020 102/500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92052559 $0 $0 $0

$135,309 $0 $135,309

SubtotalT S744.198I W $744.198!

OS-98-92-920S10-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE OPIOID
RESPONSE GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Granite Pathways Vendor«228900
State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised /Vmount

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $284,744 $0 $284,744

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $598,103 $0 $598,103
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $146,853 $0 $146,653
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $0 $469,217 $469,217
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $0 $549,200 $549,200
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057048 $0 $274,600 $274,600

$1,029,700 $1,293,017 $2,322,717

The Familv Resource Center at Gorham Vendor M162412

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2019 102/500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92057040 $418,876 ($223,133) $195,743
2020 102/500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92057040 $598,103 ($49,298) $548,805
2021 102/500731 Contraas for Program Services 92057040 $149,527 $0 $149,527

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $0 $195,607 $195,607

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services ■  92057048 $0 $400,000 $400,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $0 $200,000 $200,000

$1,166,506 $523,176 $1,689,682

Subtotal $2,196,206 $1,816,193 $4,012,399

OS-98-9S-9S0010-19190000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE. OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER. C0VI019 FEMA • DHHS

100% Other Funds

Granite Pathways Vendor #228900

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 95010695 $960,000 $0 $960,000

Sub Total $960,000 $0 $960,000

The FamIN Resource Center at Gorham Vendor #162412

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class TKIe Job Number Cument Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts lor Program Services 95010895 $525,000 $0 $525,000

Sub Total $525,000 SO $525,000

Subtotall $1.485.0001" $1.816.193l $1.485.0001

Overall Total $4,425,404 $1,816,193 $6,241,597

Atlachment - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Financial Detal

Page 1 of 1



DocuSign Envelope ID; 4A81D55E-33F8-46ED-9450-27F8E3DDA6D6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Targeted Prevention Programming for
DCYF-lnvolved Families Contract

This 3rd Amendment to the Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3") is by and betw/een the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Granite
Pathways, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 10 Ferry
Street, Ste 308, Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 2, 2018, (Item #20), as amended on May 15, 2019, (Item #17A) as amended and approved by the
Govemor on July 20, 2020 and presented to the Executive Council as an Informational Item on August 26,
2020 (Informational Item #M), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: -

$3,891,606.

3. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #1, Section 2. Scope of Services, Subsection 2.7. Data and
Reporting, by adding Paragraph 2.7.3. to read:

2.7.3. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys,
and other data collection requests, as deemed necessary by the Department and/or
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

4. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 3. Performance Measures, by adding
Subsection 3.3. to read:

3.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract management,
improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

5. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope of Services, by adding Section 4. State Opioid Response
(SOR) Grant Standards, to read:

4. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

4.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded initiatives,
the Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral agreements with
all Doorways for substance use services that comply with all applicable confidentiality
laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

Granite Pathways Amendment #3 Contractor Initials

— OS

11/24/2020
RFP-2018-BDAS-04.TARGE-01-A03 Page 1 of 5 Date



OocuSign Envelope ID: 4A81D55E-33FM6ED-945D-27F8E3DDA6D6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

4.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

4.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract implementation.

4.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

4.4.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required timeframe, the
Contractor shall submit an updated implementation plan to the Department for
approval to outline anticipated service start dates.

4.4.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and liquidate

unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) days of the contract
effective date.

4.5. The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs program for clients
identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

4.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly
screened for tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of
treatment planning.

4.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with
all appropriate DHHS, State of NH, SAMHSA, and other Federal terms, conditions, and

requirement.

4.8. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

4.8.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (CUD).

4.8.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or organization that
provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or
mental disorders.

4.8.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOD) that receive SOR funding.

4.8.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

4.8.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department within
thirty (30) days of contract approval.

4.9. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to:

4.9.1. Invoicing;

4.9.2. Funding restrictions; and

4.9.3. Billing.
— DS

Granite Pathways Amendment #3 Contractor Initials

11/24/2020
RFP-2018-BDAS-04-TARGE.01-A03 Page 2 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-Involved Families

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit 8 Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #3 Budget^ which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference
herein.

8. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3 Budget, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Granite Pathways

RFP-2018-BDAS-04-TARGE-01-A03

Amendment #3

Page 3 of 5

Contractor Initials

— OS

Date
11/24/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #3
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon of the date of Govemor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/30/2020

Date

G—OoeuSignad by;
Fmc

-PMDOSROdCflaad?

Name: Katja Fox

Director

Granite Pathways

11/24/2020

Date

"DoeuSlgnbd by;

Name: Kenneth Brezenoff
Title: General counsel

Granite Pathways

RFP.2018-BDAS-04-TARGE-01-A03

Amendment #3

Page 4 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4A81D55E-33F8-46ED-945D-27F8E3DDA6D6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuStgnad by:

11/30/2020
-0SCAS202E32C4AE...

Date Name: Catherine Pinos

Title:
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Granite Pathways Amendment #3

RFP-2018-BDAS-04-TARGE-01-A03 Page 5 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID; 4A81D55E-33F8-46ED-945D-27F8E3DDA6D6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

EXHIBIT B Amendment #3

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on 09/30/2018,

by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental

Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79Ti081685, and

as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S Department of Health and Human Services,

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN

H79TI083326 and the Targeting Capacity Expansion State Targeted Response to the

Opioid Crisis Grant, as awarded on 05/01/2017 by the U.S. Department of Health and

Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Center

for Substance Abuse Treatment, CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI080246.

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the

fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as

specified in Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 Budget through Exhibit B-8 Amendment #3 Budget.

3. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

3.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

3.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

3.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows: .

3.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization

(MCG), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the

MCO.

3.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

3.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale

Program.

3.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,

charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)

working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for

authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is

completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall

be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.

The Contractor shall ensure: r^s

Granile Pathways Exhibit B Contractor Initials I

RFP-2018-BDAS-04-TARGE-01-A03 Page 1 of4 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4A81D5SE-33FM6ED-945D-27F8E3DDA6D6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

EXHIBIT B Amendment #3

4.1. Backup" documentation includes, but is not limited to;

4.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for

wages reported under this contract.

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i){1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries

and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

4.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the

Department upon request.

4.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported:

4.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

4.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

4.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

4.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

4.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

4.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide

marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

4.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

4.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference

grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the

FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to

exceed three dollars {$3.00) per person for clients.

4.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

4.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

4.1.5. Cost center reports.

4.1.6. Profit and loss report.

4.1.7. Remittance. Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

— D3

Granite Pathways Exhibit B Contractorlnitials.

RFP-2018-BDAS-.04-TARGE-01-A03 Page 2 of4 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4A81D55E-33FM6ED-9450-27F8E3DDA6D6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

EXHIBIT B Amendment #3

4.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on

third party revenue received.

■  4.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

5. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with further
restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to

melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the

last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

8. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

9. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

10. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in compliance with
funding requirements.

11. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A. Scope of Services,
including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years

and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both
parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the
following conditions exist:

— OS

Granite Pathways Exhibit 8 Contractor Initials,
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 4A81D55E-33F8-46ED-945D-27F8E3DDA6D6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

EXHIBIT B Amendment #3

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds

received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently
completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of

NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of

$1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and

Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by
an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days

after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the

requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative

Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the

Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the

Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of, the funding source, may be
required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by an
independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the

Contractor is high-risk.

13.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is

understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for

any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments

made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been

disallowed because of such an exception.

— OS

^6
Granite Pathways Exhibit B Contractor Initials.
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE PATHWAYS is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 08, 2009.1 further certify that
all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and i.s in good standing as far as this office is
concerned.

Business ID: 613581

Certificate Number: 0005042010

OBf

u.

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this ]2lh day of November A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. William Rider, hereby certify that;

1. 1 am a duly elected Board Officer of Granite Pathways.

2. The following Is a true copy of email votes from the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and received on.
November 10^, 2020 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders voted to approve this authorization.

VOTED: That Kenneth Brezenoff, Chief Counsel for Granite Pathways is duly authorized on behalf of Granite
Pathways to enter Into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, v/hich may in his judgment be desirable or necessary to effect
the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains yalid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position($) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of Now Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 11/10/2020

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: William Rider

Title; Granite Pathways Board Chairman



Client#: 1497832 FEDCAREH1

ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MkVDO/mY)

12/10/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

333 Westchester Ave, Suite 102

White Plains, NY 10604

914 459-6200

CONTACT Carolyn DIMarco

K. Ex,,: 914 459.6200 KJS.n.,: 610 537-4220

li^Fs.s- Carolyn.Dlmarco@usi.com
INSURER(SI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A Berkshire Hathaway Specialty Ins Co. 22276

INSURED

Granite Pathways, Inc.

633 3rd Avenue, 6th Floor

New York, NY 10017-6943

INSURER B Berkshire Hathaway Homestate Ins. Co. 20044

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL
lUSR

SUBR,
POLICY NUMBER

POUCY EPF
mu/Dorrrm

POUCY EXP
(MM/DOfYYYY) UMfTS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

QCLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

47SPK25564205 09/30/2020 09/30/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE

ISES (Ea^e^nee)
MEO EXP (Any one panon)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I i JE^ I I LOC
GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

OTHER;
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea ecddenO

s 1.000.000

«1.000.000

t25.000

11,000,000

t3.000.000

>3.000.000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

47SMA14808006

MA only

47RWS14808206

All other states

09/30/2020

09/30/2020

09/30/2021

09/30/2021

s1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (Par parsort)

BODILY INJURY (Per acddant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aeeidanti

UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

47SUM14808306 09/30/2020 09/30/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE >25.000.000

AGGREGATE >25.000.000

X RETENTION >10000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY y IN
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVEj 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? | N |
(Mar>dato<y In NK)
If yaa, datalbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

FEWC115677

(Excl NY & TX)

12/11/2020 12/11/2021
V PER
A STATUTE

OTH-

£a_

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT >1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE >1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT I >1,000.000

Professional Llab

Sexual Abuse/Mol

47SPK25564205

47SPK25564205

09/30/2020

09/30/2020

09/30/2021

09/30/2021

$1M per occ/$3M Agg

$1M per occ/$3M Agg

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Addltior>al Remarks Schedule, may be attached tf more apace la required)

Evidence of Insurance

State of New

Hampshire.Department of Health

and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WfTH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

UM

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S30599844/M30597832

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
AXY2P
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MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission is to support individuals with substance use disorders and
mental illness in achieving their life goals as valued members of their
community.

Granite Pathways develops innovative, and sustainable solutions that are
changing people's lives.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Together with Report of Independent
Certified Public Accountants

The FEDCAP Group

September 30, 2019 and 2018
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GrantThornton

GKANT THORNTON LLP

757 Thirt Ave.,9thFk>0f

NewYort. NY

100I7-20J3

D 212 5990100

F 212 370 4520

8  linkd.ln/orantthoaitorius

Iwitter.com/grantlhofntonus

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of

The FEDCAP Group:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The
FEDCAP Group (collectively, "FEDCAP"), which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of September 30, 2019 and 2016, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to FEDCAP's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of FEDCAP's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of-
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

GT.COM Grant Thornton LLP is the U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of its member firms
are separate legal entitles and are not a worldwide partnership,
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Grant Thornton

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The FEDCAP Group as of

September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other matters

Supplementary information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary
information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures. These additional procedures included comparing
and reconciling the information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

New York, New York

August 14, 2020
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The FEOCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of September 30,

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of

approximately $2,180,057 in 2019.and $4,622,800 in 2018)
Contributions and grants receivable (net of allowance for

uncollectible contributions of approximately $250,000 in 2019

and 2018)

inventories, net

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets

Investments

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment, net

Art objects

Beneficial interest in trusts

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Deferred revenues

Advances from government agency

Current portion of revolving loans

Current portion of obligation under capital leases

Notes payable, current

Total current liabilities

Capital lease obligation

Notes payable

Revolving loan

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

Without donor restrictions - non-controlling interest
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2019 2018

$  9,821.462 $  10,814,947

54,652,438 44,128,183

4,352,341 1,296,528

111,693 244,690

8,655,835 9,413,702

77,593,769 65,898,050

8,703,912 18,227,270

761,776

86,739,150 82,070,717

43,950 43,950

4,512,345 4,646,739

434,112 1,135,754

101,195,245 106,124,430

$  178,789,014 $  172,022,480

$  39,601,357 $  37,108,748

1,772,430 4,129,907

433,397 1,485.361

3,000,000 17,853,273

2,155,006 1,944,244

1,117,418 1,099.081

48,079,608 63,620,614

34,773,486 35,351,613

30,368,846 31,337,292

23,653,273 -

4,274,856 4,670,840

141,150,069 134,980,359

29,006,372 28,407,688

133,033 -

8,499.540 8,634,433

37,638,945 37,042,121

$  178,789,014 $  172,022,480

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

3
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the years ended September 30,

2019 2018

Without Donor With Donor Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

Revenues

Contract services and products $  117,957,318 $ S  117,957,318 $  107,418,632 $ $  107,418,632

Rehabilitation and vocational programs 157,515,208 - 157,515,208 154,317,661 - 154,317,661

Contributions and grants 19,615,745 25,000 19,640,745 22,664,418 50,000 22,714,418

Inherent contribution 4.771,572 - 4,771,572 4,841,419 8,621,011 13,462,430

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments 23,299 (15,139) 8,160 554,658 - 554,658

Interest income 757,089 - 757,089 347,997 - 347,997

Miscellaneous revenue 231,885 - 231,885 484,910 - 484,910

Net assets released from restrictions 144,754 (144.754) - 2,845,544 (2,845,544) .

Total revenues 301,016,870 (134.893) 300,881,977 293,475,239 5,825,467 299,300,706

Expenses

Program services:

Contract services and products 105,974,532 105,974,532 94,956,101 . 94,956.101

Rehabilitation and vocational-programs 151,992,240 - 151,992,240 161,461,598 - 161,461,598

257.966.772 - 257,966,772 256,417,699
-

256,417,699

Supporting services:

Management and general 38,307,140 - 38,307,140 39,594,457 - 39,594,457

Development 4,011,241 - 4,011,241 1,865,951 - 1,865,951

42,318,381 - 42,318,381 41,460,408 - 41,460,408

Total expenses 300,285,153 - 300,285,153 297,878,107 - 297,878,107

Change in net assets 731,717 (134,893) 596,824 (4.402,868) 5,825,467 1,422,599

Net assets at beginning of year 28,407,688 8,634,433 37,042,121 32,810,556 2,808,966 35,619,522

Net assets at end of year $  29,139,405 $  8;499,540 $  37,638,945 $  28,407,688 $  8,634,433 $  37,042,121

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

4
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The REDCAP Group

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OR RUNCT10NAL EXPENSES

Ror the year ended September 30, 2019

Program Services Supporting Services

Contract Rehabilitation

Services and and Vocational Management

Products Programs Total and General Development Total

Salaries arid related expenses S  75,112.041 S  92.028,205 S  167,140,246 S  13,482,595 S 1.321,359 S  14,803,954

Professional fees 190,014 16.794,601 16,984,615 4.155,799 773,764 4,929,563

Professional development and evaluation 52,176 760.002 812.178 486,894 8,354 495,248

Materials and supplies 4,608,212 2,294.309 6,902.521 272,753 21,424 294,177

Commissions 2,983,026 4.969 2,987,995 - - -

Telephone 190,887 850.894 1,041,781 714,266 16,490 730,756

Postage and shipping 127,982 200.267 328.249 31,436 6.129 37,565

Insurance 1.170,764 957.823 2,128,587 1,049,952 14,847 1,064,799

Occupancy costs 2.789,676 13.459.134 16,248,810 2,010,115 136,043 2.146,158

Equipment rental and maintenance 1,190.342 759.425 1,949,767 311,275 42.037 353,312

Equipment purchases 312.686 113.267 425,953 56,833 5,761 62,594

Client transportation and travel 355,593 3.537.161 3,892,754 643,055 130,157 973,212

Subscription and printing 85,901 297.125 383,026 596,854 23,194 620,048

Technology 422.832 1.584.234 2,007,066 3,057,023 82,864 3,139,887

Interest expense and bank charges 137.624 68,466 206,090 5,347,044 34,665 5,381,709

Bad debt provision - 55.371 55,371 9,771 . 9,771

Subcontractor expense 15.701.994 9.751,574 25,453,568 1,492,608 130,670 1.623,278

Stipends 24.586 4,730,195 4,754,781 . 80,113 1,338 81,451

Security guard expense 1.672 604,506 606,178 55,127 272 55,399

Other 173.575 2,160,645 2,334,220 605,829 1,255,001 1.860,830

Total expenses before depredation and amortization 105,631,583 151,012,173 256,643,756 34,659,342 4,004,369 38,663,711

Depredation and amortization 342,949 980,067 1.323,016 3,647,798 6,872 3.654,670

Total expenses $  105,974,532 $  151,992,240 $ 257.966.772 S  38.307,140 S 4,011.241 S  42,318.381

Total

Expenses

181.944,200

21.914,178

1.307,426

7,196,698

2.987,995

1.772,537

365.814

3,193.386

18,394,968

2.303.079

488.547

4.865.966

1.003,074

5.146.953

5.587.799

65.142

27,076.846

4.836.232

661.577

4.195.050

295,307,467

4,977.686

$ 300.285.153

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

5
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the year ended September 30,2018

Program Services Supporting Services

Corrtract Rehabilitation

Services and and Vocational Management Total

Products Programs Total and General Development Total Expenses

Salaries and related expenses $  64,831,121. $  87,171,397 $  152.002,518 $  18.061.071 5 543.763 S  18,604.834 S  170,607.352

Professional fees 113,423 25,140,718 25.254.141 2.759.130 420.672 3,179.802 28,433.943

Professional development and evaluation 52,094 747,241 799.335 132.123 4.025 136.148 935.483

Materials and supplies 3,608,680 1.797,653 5.406.333 210.07,1 18.540 228.611 5,634,944

Commissions 2,656,552 11,500 2.668.052 . . . 2.668,052

Telephone 174,268 911,010 1.085.278 574.671 7.514 582,185 1.667,463

Postage and shipping 760.678 243,769 1.004.447 78.091 3.626 81,717 1.086,164

Insurance 1.373,800 1.283,658 2.657.458 664,319 8.609 672,928 3.330,386

OccuparKry costs 2.427.298 14.728.399 17.155,697 2.167,689 39.011 2.206,700 19.362,397

Equipment rental arrd maintenance 835.996 610,584 1,446,580 251,619 9.045 260,664 1.707,244

Equipment purchases 340.665 460,452 801,117 23,478 726 24,204 825,321

Client transportation and travel 336.303 4.382.234 4,718,537 659,059 60.186 719,245 5.437,782

Subscription and printing 25.142 108,809 133,951 88,013 9.997 98,010 231,961

Technology 453.739 1.700.845 2,154,584 2,062,538 48,820 2.111,358 4.265,942

Interest expense and bank charges 49 37.509 37,558 3,528,905 260 3.529,165 3.566,723

Bad debt provision . 10.877 10,877 4,589,854 250.000 4.839,854 4.850,731

SutKontractor expense 15.845.823 13.440.507 29,286,330 167,236 . 167,236 29.453,566

Stipends 32.225 4.396.280 4,428,505 50,720 5.056 55,776 4.484,281

Security guard expense 17.820 1.016.874 1,034,694 16,075 13 16,088 1.050,782

Other 814.148 2,372.594 3,186,742 223,719 435.126 658,845 3.845,587

Total expenses before depreciation and amortization 94.699.824 160.572.910 255,272,734 36,308,381 1,864.989 38.173,370 293.446,104

Depredation ar>d amortization 256,277 888.688 1,144,965 3,286,076 962 3.287,038 4.432,003

Total expenses $  94,956.101 $  161,461,598 $ 256,417,699 S  39,594,457 S 1,865.951 $  41.460,408 S 297.878,107

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended September 30,

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets S  596,824 $  1,422,599

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used in

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 4,977.686 4,432,003

Bad debt provision 65,142 4,850,731

Inherent contribution (4,771,572) (13,462,430)

Realized and unrealized gains on investments (8,160) (554,658)

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (9,347.783) (3,281,883)

Contribution receivable (3,004,961) 2,318,436

Inventories 133,256 •  157,979

Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,612.193 . (3,883,995)

Beneficial interest in trusts ' 134,394 6,363

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 903,268 2,785,750

Deferred revenue (2,392,733) (934,386)

Other liabilities (393,777) 614,594

Net cash used in operating activities (11,496,223) (5,528.897)

CASH PLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of investments 19,000,000 43,028

Purchase of investments (9,468,482) (2,446,391)

Cash received in acquisitions, net of cash paid in consideration 355.904 906,169

Capital expenditures (5,543,024) (4,542,620)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 4,344,398 (6,039,814)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Decrease in advances from government agency (1,051.964) (14,639)

Change in revolving loans 8,800.000 (249,000)

Proceeds from notes payable - 9,564,622

Repayment of notes payable (1,220,124) (982,488)

Repayment of capital lease obligations (369,572) (287,862)

Net cash provided by financing activities 6,158,340 8.030,633

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (993,485) (3,538,078)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of year 10,814,947 14,353,025

End of year $ 9,821,462 $  10,814,947

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash interest paid during the year S 3,053,771 S  1,834,062

Fixed assets acquired through capital lease $ . $  1,044,131

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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'  The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

The FEDCAP Group, Inc. (the "Parent"), established on October 1, 2018, is a private, nonprofit organization
incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Parent is exempt from federal income taxes
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. On July 24, 2019, the Parent became the sole
member of the following affiliates: Fedcap, Inc ("Fed Inc."), Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc ("FRS"),
Wildcat Services Corporation ("Wildcat"); ReServe Elder Services, Inc. ("ReServe"), Community
Workshops, Inc. ("CWS"), Easter Seals New York, Inc. ("ESNY"), 1184 Deer Park Ave., Inc. ("1184" or "Red
Mango"), Granite Pathways, Inc ("GP"), Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc ("ESRI"), Seacoast.Pathways, Inc.
("Seacoast"), Single Stop USA Inc. ("SGST"), Benevolent, MVLE, Easter Seals Central Texas ("ESCT"),
Easter Seals North Texas ("ESNT") and Fedcap UK. The Parent and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as "FEDCAP."

Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc ("FRS") is a private, nonprofit organization incorporated under the laws
of New York State. FRS is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. FRS was the sole member of the above named subsidiaries through July 23, 2019, at
which point the Parent became the sole corporate member.

FRS was founded to provide a comprehiensive range of vocational and related services to individuals with
disabilities, and other work-related disadvantages, who face significant barriers to employment. FRS's goal
is to help each person achieve independence, integration into the community and full participation in the
economic mainstream.

FRS provides contract services and products within custodial, homecare, office services, and industrial
divisions. The primary customers in these divisions are federal, and New York State and City agencies and
certified home health agencies.

As part of FRS's rehabilitation and vocation programs, FRS provides vocational evaluations, training, and
employment services and other government-funded employment and job search programs. Evaluations
combine aptitude tests, computerized assessments, and vocational counseling. After evaluation, FRS
offers training in mail clerk/messenger services, building/custodial services, culinary arts/food services,
data entry, office skills, document imaging, hospitality operations, and security operations. FRS then seeks
to employ individuals who have successfully completed FRS's rehabilitation and vocational programs. FRS
also offers the Chelton Loft, a voluntary clubhouse program for people with a history of serious mental
illness. FRS also has a vocational education program and a licensed mental health program.

Wildcat Services Corporation ("WIdcat") is a nonprofit entity that is located in New York City and provides
employment training, jobs placement and "supportive employment" opportunities for individuals with
barriers to employment.

ReServe Elder Service, Inc. ("ReServe") is a nonprofit entity located in New York City that matches
continuing professionals age55->- with organizations that need their expertise. Reserve provides direct
services, administrative support, and capacity-building expertise in schools, social service agencies,
cultural institutions, and public agencies.

Community Workshops, Inc. (d/b/a Community Work Services) ("CWS") is a nonprofit corporation located
in Boston, Massachusetts, whose mission is to help people who have barriers to work obtain employment
and achieve greater self-sufficiency through job training, placement, and support services.

Easter Seals New York, Inc. ("ESNY") is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide programs and
services for people with disabilities, assistance to people with disabilities and their families, assistance to
communities in developing necessary and appropriate resources for residents, and a climate of acceptance
for people with disabilities which will enable them to contribute to the well-being of the community.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

On May 1, 2016, ESNY received a contribution in the form of a Red Mango franchise, incorporated as 1184
Deer Park Ave., Inc. ("1184" or "Red Mango"). 1184 was incorporated as a for profit corporation, operating
as a social enterprise which includes a training center and employment opportunities for veterans. 1184
ceased operations as of September 6, 2019. The loss related to these operations did not significantly
impact operating results for fiscal 2019.

Granite Pathways, Inc. ("GP") is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to provide services to empower and
support adults with mental illness to pursue their personal goals through education, employment, stable
housing, and meaningful relationships.

Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc. {"ESRI") is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide services to ensure
that all people with disabilities or special needs and their families have equal opportunities to live, learn,
work and play in their communities.

Seacoast Pathways, Inc ("Seacoast") is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to support adults living with
mental illness on their paths to recovery through the work-ordered day.

Single Stop USA Inc. ("SGST") is a nonprofit entity that provides coordinated services to holistically connect
people to the resources they need to attain higher education, obtain good jobs, and achieve financial self-
sufficiency.

Benevolent is a nonprofit entity that provides economic wellbeing to individuals and families in need,
through non-government sources.

MVLE is a nonprofit entity that provides employment, support and rehabilitation services to individuals with
disabilities in the Northern Virginia and Washington, D.C. area.

Redcap, Inc. ("Fed Inc.") was established as a private, nonprofit organizations under the laws of the State
of Delaware. Fed, Inc. was formed to provide workforce development opportunities for people who face
barriers to economic well-being.

Easter Seals Central Texas ("ESCT") provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life
cycle through outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and
integration programs in the Central Texas region.

Easter Seals North Texas ("ESNT") provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle
through outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and Integration
programs in the North Texas region.

On November 7, 2018, Fedcap UK was established and was registered as a UK Charity. Redcap UK was
founded to allow for the advancement of social inclusion, by enabling economic independence, employment
and opportunity to participate in society for socially and economically disadvantaged and disabled
individuals through various workforce and economic development, educational and occupational health
initiatives.

On December 3, 2018. Fedcap UK acquired Kennedy Scott, Limited (KS), a United Kingdom company
through a stock purchase. Kennedy Scott provides high quality job support, placement, retention and
related services to people in the United Kingdom.

On February 22, 2019, Fedcap Employment Limited ("FED") was established under the laws of the United
Kingdom. Fedcap Employment Limited delivers employability solutions across the United Kingdom to build
communities through a blend of local frontline professional teams and like-minded supply chain partners.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

On March 1, 2019, Fedcap Employment Scotland Limited ("FES") was established under the laws of
I Scotland in the United Kingdom. Fedcap Employment Limited delivers employability solutions across
Scotland to build communities through a blend of local frontline professional teams and like-minded supply
chain partners.

On March 14, 2019, FES became a majority shareholder of Start Scotland Limited ("SS"). SS is a value-
driven organization that strives to put its customers first, understanding their needs and closely engaging
with them on a personal level to help them on their journey to employment and training.

On September 30, 2019, ESNY acquired and became the sole member of These Our Treasures, Inc.
("TOTS"), a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to educate young children with developmental disabilities in
an atmosphere that embraces and accommodates individual differences and helps children to achieve in
the context of the larger classroom and school setting.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of FEDCAP have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP") using the accrual
basis of accounting. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update
("ASU") No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-
Profit Entities ("ASU 2016-14"). The ASU amends the current reporting model for not-for-profit
organizations and requires certain additional disclosures. The significant changes include:

Requiring the presentation of two net asset classes classified as "net assets without donor
restrictions" and "net assets with donor restrictions";

Modifying the presentation of underwater endowment funds and related disclosures;

Requiring the use of the placed in-service approach to recognize the satisfaction of restrictions on
gifts used to acquire or construct long-lived assets, absent explicit donor stipulations otherwise;

Requiring that all not-for-profits present an analysis of expenses by function and nature in a
separate statement or in the notes to the financial statements;

Requiring disclosure of quantitative and qualitative information regarding liquidity;

Presenting investment return net of external and direct internal investment expenses; and.

Modifying other financial statement reporting requirements and disclosures intended to increase
the usefulness to the reader.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

For the year ended September 30, 2019, FEDCAP adopted the relevant provisions of ASU 2016-14 and
similarly revised the presentation of its fiscal 2018 consolidated financial statements to align with the new
reporting preseritation. A presentation of net assets as previously reported as of September 30, 2018, and
as required under ASU 2016-14 follows;

September 30, 2018
Presentation under ASU 2016-14

As previously
presented

Without donor

restrictions

With donor

restrictions Total

Net assets:

Unrestricted $ 28,407,688 $ 28,407,688 $ $  28,407,688
Temporarily restricted 6,678,580 - 6,678,580 6,678,580

Permanently restricted 1,955,853 - 1,955,853 1,955,853

Total net assets $ 37,042,121 $ 28,407,688 $  8,634,433 $  37,042,121

FEDCAP classifies its net assets in the following categories:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and are, therefore, available for the
general operations of FEDCAP. Net assets without donor restrictions may also be designated for
specific purposes by FEOCAP's Board of Directors or may be limited by legal requirements or
contractual agreements with outside parties.

Net assets without donor restrictions also includes the portion of net assets in a consolidated
subsidiary owned by non-controlling investors and are reflected on the consolidated statements of
financial position as net assets without donor restrictions - non-controlling interests.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Represent net assets which are subject to donor-imposed restrictions whose use is restricted by
time and/or purpose. Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed restrictions
that require FEDCAP to use or expend the gifts as specified, based on purpose or passage of time.
When donor restrictions expire, that is, when a purpose restriction is fulfilled or a time restriction
ends, such net assets are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported on the
accompanying consolidated statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributions with donor-imposed restrictions whose restrictions are met during the same fiscal
year in which the contribution was recognized are presented as contribution revenues without donor
restrictions on the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

Net assets with donor restrictions also includes the corpus of gifts, which must be maintained in
perpetuity, but allow for the expenditure of net investment income and gains earned on the corpus
for either specified or unspecified purposes in accordance with donor stipulations.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions and the non-controlling interest in Start Scotland Limited
during the year ended September 30. 2019 is summarized below:

Total

Without

Donor Without Donor Non-controlling
Restrictions Restrictions Interest

Balance, September 30, 2018 $ 28,407,688 $ 28,407,688 $

Inherent contribution from acquisition of Start
Scotland Limited

Change in net assets from operations
381.450
350,267

194,540

404,144
186,910
(53,877)

Change in net assets 731,717 598,684 133,033

Balance, September 30, 2019 $ 29.139,405 $ 29,006,372 $ 133,033

Cash Equivalents

FEDCAP considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of
purchase, including investments in short-term certificates of deposit and certain money market funds, to be
cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification {"ASC") Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers {'ASC 606"), FEDCAP recognizes revenue when control of the promised goods or services
are transferred to FEDCAP's clients or outside parties in an amount that reflects the consideration FEDCAP
expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The standard outlines a five-step model
whereby revenue is recognized as performance obligations within a contract are satisfied.

ASC 606 also requires new and expanded disclosures regarding revenue recognition to ensure an
understanding as to the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers. FEDCAP has identified contract services and products revenues and
rehabilitation and vocational program revenues as revenue categories subject to the adoption of ASC
606. FEDCAP recognizes revenues from contracts with customers, as goods or services are transferred
or provided in accordance with ASC 606.

The results of applying ASC 606 using the modified retrospective approach did not have a material impact
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements or the business processes, controls or systems of
FEDCAP.

Payments received for in advance of FEDCAP satisfying its performance obligations are recorded within
deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position ($111,439 and
$397,579, as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively). The changes in deferred revenue were
caused by normal timing differences between the satisfaction of performance obligations and customer
payments.

12
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

REDCAP'S contracts with customers generally contain terms that are less than one year. Accordingly,
FEDCAP elected the practical expedients under ASC 606 to not assess whether a contract has a significant
financing component or disclose the information regarding the remaining performance obligations for
contracts with customers.

REDCAP'S revenue primarily relates to contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. Revenue recognition for these various revenue streams is at the point in time coinciding with
the completion of the corresponding performance obligations to customers.

Contract Services and Products

REDCAP'S contract services and products revenue includes HomeCare services, facility services,
and other cost recovery contracts. REDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's
term for those with fixed rates as the performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly over the
corresponding contract term. For performance-based contracts, revenues are recognized in the
period when related expenditures have been incurred, milestones have been achieved, or services
have been performed in compliance with the respective contracts, which are the performance
obligations under the contracts. REDCAP also generates revenue from the sale of related products,
which is recognized at the time of shipment.

Rehabilitation and Vocational Programs

REDCAP'S rehabilitation and vocational program revenue includes medical services, tuition and job
training. REDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's term for those with fixed rates
as the performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly over the corresponding contract term. For
performance-based contracts, revenues are recognized in the period when related expenditures
have been incurred, milestones have been achieved, or services have been performed in
compliance with the respective contracts, which are the performance obligations under the
contracts. REDCAP also generates revenue from the sale of related products, which is recognized
at the time of shipment.

Contribution and Grant Revenue

»

REDCAP records contributions of cash and other assets when an unconditional promise to give such assets
is received from a donor. Contributions are recorded at the fair value of the assets received and

contributions with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets are classified as net assets with
donor restrictions. Contributions with donor restrictions that are received and met in the same fiscal year
are recorded as- contribution revenues without donor restrictions. Otherwise, once stipulated time
restrictions end or purpose restrictions are accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified
to net assets without donor restrictions as "net assets released from restrictions" in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities. Conditional contributions are recognized as revenue when the
conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Conditional contributions received in advance of
meeting the associated contributions are recorded as deferred revenue oh the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position ($1,656,416 and $3,732,328, as of September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively). There were no outstanding conditional contributions yet to be received as of September 30,
2019or2018.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

FEDCAP recognizes revenue from contributions, grants and contracts in accordance with Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2018-08, Not-For-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and the
Accounting Guidance for Contn'butions Received and Contributions Made. Accordingly, FEDCAP evaluates
whether a transfer of assets is (1) an exchange transaction in which a resource provider is receiving
commensurate value in return for the resources transferred or (2) a contribution. If the transfer of assets is
determined to be an exchange transaction, FEDCAP applies guidance under ASC 606. If the transfer of
assets is determined to be a contribution, FEDCAP evaluates whether the contribution is conditional based
upon whether the agreement includes both (1) one or more barriers that must be overcome before FEDCAP
is entitled to the assets transferred and promised and (2) a right of return of assets transferred or a right of
release of a promisor's obligation to transfer assets.

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are derived from contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. The carrying value of contributions and grants and accounts receivable are reduced by an
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts, and therefore approximates net realizable value.
FEDCAP determines its allowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of time
receivables are past due, FEDCAP's previous loss history, the donor's current ability to pay its obligation,
and the condition of the general economy and the industry as a whole. Receivables outstanding longer
than the payment terms are considered past due. FEDCAP writes off accounts receivable when they
become uncollectible, and payments subsequently received on such receivables are recorded as income
in the period received.

Inventories
/

Inventories, mainly consisting of distress marker light products and related components, are valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined principally by the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets purchased for a value greater than $5,000 and with depreciable lives greater than one year
are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life
of the respective asset and ranges from 3 to 40 years. Significant additions or improvements extending
asset lives are capitalized; normal maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Leasehold
improvements are amortized based on the lesser of the estimated useful life or remaining lease term.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities. The classification is based on the function
and nature of expenses directly used in the program. Common expenses are allocated to the programs
and supporting services based on the benefit derived. The methods used for the allocation include square
footage and actual percentage of time dedicated to the program or supporting service.

Commissions

FEDCAP pays commissions to an unrelated not-for-profit entity and a New York State entity to provide
information on government contracts that need competitive bids for services. The contracts provide for
commissions to be paid to these organizations in the range of 0.85% to 4.00% of the contract amount.
Commissions paid relating to these contracts amounted to $2,987,996 and $2,401,578 for the years ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and are included within contract services and products
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. These estimates
and assumptions relate to estimates of collectability of accounts receivable, accruals, useful life of property,
plant, and equipment, and impairment of long-lived assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Fmandal Instruments

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities approximates their carrying value due to their short-term maturities. The fair value of
long-term debt approximates carrying value based on current interest rates for similar instruments.

Fair Value Measurements

FEDCAP follows guidance for fair value measurements that defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to measure fair value and
enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. It maximizes the use of observable inputs
and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the observable inputs be used when
available.

Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
market data obtained from independent sources. Unobservable inputs reflect assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available in the
circumstances.

The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the transparency of inputs as follows;

Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the
measurement date. A quoted price for an identical asset or liability in an active market provides
the most reliable fair value measurement because it is directly observable to the market.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the measurement date. The nature of these securities include investments for
which quoted prices are available but traded less frequently and investments that are fair valued
using other securities, the parameters of which can be directly observed.

Level 3 - Securities that have little to no pricing observability as of the measurement date. These securities
are measured using management's best estimate of fair value, where the inputs into the
determination of fair value are not observable and require significant management judgment or
estimation.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include
price information, volatility statistics, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A
financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.. However, the determination of what constitutes "observable"
requires significant judgment by the entity. FEDCAP considers observable data to be that market data that
is readily available, regularly~^distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial
instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not
necessarily correspond to FEDCAP's perceived risk of that instrument.
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/

Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Donors have established and funded trusts held by third parties under which specified distributions are to
be made to a designated beneficiary or beneficiaries over the trusts' term. FEDCAP's beneficial interest in
trusts consists of interests in both charitable remainder trusts and perpetual trusts. Under charitable
remainder trusts, FEDCAP will receive the assets remaining in the trust upon the termination of the trust.
Under perpetual trusts, FEDCAP has the irrevocable right to receive all or a portion of the income earned
on the trust assets either in perpetuity or for the life of the trust. FEDCAP recognizes its interest in trusts as
increases to net assets at the fair value of trust assets, less the present value of the estimated future
payments to be made under the specific terms of the trusts. Fluctuations in the fair value of these assets
are recorded as changes in net assets with donor restrictions in the accompanying consolidated statements
of activities.

At September 30, 2019 and 2018, FEDCAP's interest in these trusts is reflected at fair value in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and is classified as Level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy.

2019 2018

Balance, beginning of year

Contributions / additions

Distributions

Depreciation

Balance, end of year

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

FEDCAP reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets, including property and equipment and other
assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be fully recoverable. Recoverability of long-lived assets is assessed by a comparison
of the carrying amount of the asset to the estimated future net cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset.

If estimated future net cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the asset is considered
impaired and an expense is recorded in an amount to reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its fair
value.

Tax-Exempt Status

FEDCAP follows guidance that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, including issues relating to financial statement recognition and measurement. This
guidance provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position can only be recognized in the financial
statements if the position is "more-likely-than-not" to be sustained if the position were to be challenged by
a taxing authority. The assessment of the tax position Is based solely on the technical merits of the position,
without regard to the likelihood that the tax position may be challenged.

$  4,646,739 $ 628,759

- 4,024.343
(58,034) (5.911)
(76,360) (452)

$  4,512,345 $ 4,646,739
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FEDCAP is exempt from federal income tax under IRC section 501(c)(3), though it is subject to tax on
income unrelated to their respective exempt purpose, unless that income is otherwise excluded by the
Code. These organizations have processes presently in place to ensure the maintenance of their tax-
exempt status; to identify and report unrelated income; to determine their filing and tax obligations in
jurisdictions for which they have nexus; and to identify and evaluate other matters that may be considered
tax positions. FEDCAP has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions that require
recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill

Goodwill was established through the acquisition of Kennedy Scott. The value reported on the
accompanying consolidated statement of financial position represents the residual difference between the
consideratiori paid and the fair value of the net assets acquired. FEDCAP has elected under relevant
guidance to amortize goodwill on a straight-line basis over 10 years and to perform a goodwill impairment
analysis at the entity or reporting unit level when a triggering event occurs that indicates the fair value of
the entity or reporting unit may be below its carrying amount. No impairment charges were recorded during
fiscal 2019.

NOTE 3 - CONTRIBUTIONS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE

At September 30, 2019 and 2018, contributions and grants receivable, net of the allowance for doubtful
accounts, consisted of the following:

2019 2018

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due in one to five years

Less: allowance for uncollectible receivables

$  4,602,341 $ 1,237,222
- 309,306 .

4,602,341 1,546,528

(250,000) (250,000)

$  4,352,341 $ 1,296,528

Approximately 36% and 26% of the contributions and grants receivable (gross) is due from one donor at
September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 4-INVESTMENTS

Investments, at fair value, consisted of the following at September 30;

2019 2018

Money market funds
Mutual funds

$  288,173 $  5,329,461
8,415,739 12,897,809

$  8,703,912 $  18,227,270

FEDCAP's mutual fund investments are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy. FEDCAP's
money market fund investments do not meet the definition of a security under US GAAP, and as such, the
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements are not applicable.
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NOTE 5 • INVENTORIES, NET

Inventories consisted of the following at September 30:

Inventories:

Raw materials

Work-in-process and finished goods
Reserve

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Fixed assets, net. consisted of the following at September 30:

Land

Building improvements
Buildings
Capital lease - building
Furniture, fixtures and computer systems
Leasehold improvements

Less: accumulated depreciation

2019 2018

$  86,883 $  219,880
114,810 114,810
(90,000) (90,000)

$  111,693 $  244,690

2019 2018

$  1,617,809 $  1,017,809
4,206,798 3,492,788

40,342,758 37,052,760
35,918,547 35,918,547
18,493,480 14,157,674
9,802,911 9,143,432

110,382,303 100,783,010

(23,643,153) (18,712,293)

$  86,739,150 $  82,070,717

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended September 30,2019 and 2018 was $4,977,686
and $4,432,003, respectively.,

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES

In May of 2014, FRS entered into a condominium leasehold agreement in a building located at 205 East
42nd Street in New York City for 64,303 square feet of space consisting of the entire second and third floor
and a portion of the ground floor. FRS began occupying the space in December 2014 and the agreement
expires in fiscal 2043. The interest rate is fixed at 4.20%. FRS accounted for this agreement as a capital
lease, and as such, the related cost of $35,918,547 representing the present value of the total future
minimum lease payments due at the inception of the agreement, is included within "property, plant and
equipment, net" in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at September 30, 2019
and 2018. Depreciation expense of $1,238,571 was recorded in fiscals 2019 and 2018. The outstanding
principal balance on the lease, inclusive of accrued interest expense, as of September 30, 2019 and 2018,
is $36,246,919 and $36,353,740, respectively.

During fiscal 2015, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$22,074, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019, and 2018, accumulated
depreciation associated with this lease agreement is $19,867 and $15,452, respectively. The outstanding
principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, is $2,207 and $6,622, respectively.
The maturity date is March 31, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.73%.
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During fiscal 2016, CWS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $44,464, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019, and 2018, accumulated
depreciation associated with this lease agreement is $40,018 and $31,125, respectively. The outstanding
principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, is $4,446 and $13,339, respectively.
The maturity date is March 31, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.73%.

During fiscal 2015, ESNY obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $80,785, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019, and 2018, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $68,277 and $ 52,511, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, was $12,508 and $28,627, respectively. The maturity date is
June 30, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.97%.

In 2015 and 2016, ESCT obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance equipment in the amount
of $109,418, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $27,671 and $5,534, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
leases as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $24,200 and $47,1^90, respectively. The maturity dates
run through May 14, 2021 with varying interest rates from 0% - 0.99%.

During fiscal 2018, ESNY obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $128,298, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30. 2019 and 2018, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $61,233 and $35,573, respectively. "The outstanding principal balance on the
lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $67,702 and $93,362, respectively. The maturity dates are
through June 30, 2022 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.70% and 8.00%.

During fiscal 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$370,074, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $160,373 and $122,766, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
lease as of September 30. 2019 and 2018 was $171,435 and $248,418, respectively.

During fiscal 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$82,264 principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, accumulated
depreciation associated with these lease agreements was $31,367 and $13,914, respectively. The
outstanding principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $51,454 and $77,578,
respectively. The maturity dates are through November 30, 2022 and the interest rate varies from 7.10%
to 7.45%.

On September 14, 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance office furniture in
the amount of $463,495, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, the
accumulated depreciation balance was $66,213 and $0, respectively. The outstanding principal balance
on the lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $347,621 and $440,320, respectively. The maturity
dates are through June 2023 and the interest rate is 6.58%.
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The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with
the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2019:

Year Ending September 30,

2020 $ 2,155,006
2021 2,159,924
2022 2,086,625

-  2023 1,994,784
2024 . 1,911,084

Thereafter 50,775,198

Total minimum lease payments 61,082,621

Less: Amount representing interest (24.154.129)

Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 36,928,492

NOTE 8 - REVOLVING LOANS

Israel Discount Bank of New York

FRS entered into a revolving loan agreement with Israel Discount Bank of New York ("IDS") to finance
svorking capital needs with an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $25,000,000. The line is
collateralized by FEDCAP's accounts receivable and was extended during fiscal 2019 to mature on
October 17, 2020. The interest rate for the revolving loan agreement is the Prime Rate. As of
September 30, 2019, and 2018, FRS had borrowings on this line of credit of $23,653,273 and $14,653,273,
respectively, at an interest rate of 5.50% and 5.25%, respectively.

RBS Citizens Bank, N.A.

ESNY has an agreement with RBS Citizens Bank, N.A for a $3,000,000 revolving line of credit with FRS as
the co-borrower, which matured on December 15, 2018 and was subsequently extended until May 2019.
Communications with the bank regarding refinancing of this line of credit are in process as of the date that
the accompanying consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. As of September 30,
2019, and 2018, ESNY had borrowings on this line of credit of $3,000,000, at an interest rate of 4.1% and
4.5%, respectively. ^

Frost Bank

ESCT obtained an uncollateralized revolving line of credit with Frost Bank with a $200,000 limit that matured
on February 6, 2019, upon which the balance was repaid in full. As of September 30, 2018, ESCT had
borrowings on this line of credit of $200,000 at a floating interest rate, defined as 1.75% plus the financial
institution's prime rate.
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes Payable

On October 21, 2004, TOTS entered into a $700,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition of
the building located in Bronx, New York. The note was secured by the property and all of the assets of
TOTS. The interest rate is 6.0% and principal and interest of $4,960 is payable monthly through the maturity
date of November 1, 2024. At September 30. 2019, the outstanding principal balance was $270,015.

On December 5, 2014, ESNY entered into a $1,980,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition
of certain property located in Valhalla, New. York. The note was secured by the property and is guaranteed
by FEDCAP. The interest rate is 3.66% for the first 60 months then, as of the first day of the sixty-first
month, the interest rate will reset to 1.75% in excess of the then bank's five-year Cost of Funds. In no event
shall the reset rate be less than 3.66%. Principal and interest of $9,153 is payable monthly through the
maturity date of January 1, 2025. At September 30, 2019 and 2018, the outstanding principal balance was
$1',789,338 and $1,832,909, respectively.

On November 4, 2016, MVLE entered into a $350,000 note payable with Union Bank & Trust. The note is
secured by accounts receivable and equipment. The interest rate is 4.5% and principal and interest are
paid monthly. The note matures in November 2019. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, the outstanding
principal balance was $20,725 and $142,471, respectively.

On Dec 13, 2016, ESCT entered into a $18,558 note payable with J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. The note
is secured by the assets of ESCT. The interest rate is 6.1% and principal and interest are paid monthly.
The note matures in December 2021. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, the putstanding principal
balance was $9,060 and $12,702, respectively.

On May 18, 2017, ESCT entered into a $243,650 note payable with Wells Fargo, N.A. The note was
secured by accounts receivable and equipment. The interest rate was defined at a variable rate plus prime
and principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2018, the outstanding principal balance
was $151,086. During the year ended September 30, 2019, the note was paid in full.

Bonds Payable

In December 2013, FRS entered into a Loan Agreement with Build NYC Resource Corporation {"Build
NYC), a local development corporation, for Build NYC to issue bonds to finance the purchase of the sixth
floor of a building located at 633 Third Avenue in New York City and related expenses. Build NYC issued
$18,450,000 of tax-exempt revenue bonds ("Series 2013A''). Monthly payments of interest commenced in
June 2014. The Series 2013A bonds have a coupon rate of 4.2% with a maturity date of December 1,
2033. The Series A bonds were placed with IDB and, as part of the bond purchase and continuing covenant
agreement between FRS and IDB, FRS must maintain a minimum balance with IDB of $4,000,000, which
is included within investments in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at
September 30, 2019 and 2018. At September 30, 2019 and 2018, the outstanding principal balance of the
Series 2013A bonds was $16,510,000 and $17,025,000, respectively.
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In December 2010, ESNY in connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development Corporation and
RBS Citizens Bank, N.A. issued $5,250,000 in Series 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds ("Series 2010").
The Series 2010 bonds were used to finance the acquisition of certain property located In Irondequoit, New
York and to refinance certain ESNY debt. The Series 2010 bonds are secured by a mortgage on all
properties and improvements financed by the bond and are guaranteed by FRS. ESNY may elect to prepay
some portion or all of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee as defined in the agreement. The
agreement also requires bank approval prior to ESNY incurring additional indebtedness. The Series 2010
bonds are subject to tender for mandatory purchase at the election of the bondholder beginning June 1,
2016 and thereafter every five years through June 1, 2036. At September 30, 2019 and 2018, the
outstanding principal balance of the Series 2010 bonds was $4,257,410 and $4,399,430, respectively.

On February 23, 2011, ESNY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with
the Series 2010 Bonds. The swap agreement had an outstanding notional amount of $4,245,960 and
$4,388,460 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The outstanding notional amount decreases,
in conjunction with bond principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in January 2031. ESNY remits
interest at a fixed rate of 2.99% and receives interest at a variable rate (68% of the sum of the monthly
LIBOR rate plus 2.65% (1.39% and 3.34% at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively)). The fair value
of the interest rate swap agreement as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 reflected a liability of $711,129
and $355,400, respectively. The swap is included within other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position and is classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

In December 2017, FEDCAP entered into a loan agreement with Build NYC Resource Corporation
("Build NYC"), a local development corporation, for Build NYC to issue bonds to finance the renovation,
equipping and furnishing of the improvements of the sixth floor located at 633 Third Avenue in New York
City and related expenses. Build NYC issued $9,280,000 of tax-exempt revenue bonds ("Series 2017A")
and $715,000 of taxable revenue bonds ("Series 2017B"). Monthly payments of interest commenced in
February 2018. The Series 2017A bonds have a coupon rate of 3.9% with a maturity date of December 1,
2042. The Series 2017B bonds have a coupon rate of 4.5% with a maturity date of December' 1, 2027.
The 2017A and 2017B bonds were placed with TD Bank. At September 30,2019 and 2018, the outstanding
principal balance of the Series 2017A and 2017B bonds was $9,498,448 and $9,788,594, respectively.

The following is a summary of minimum principal payments due on the notes and bonds at September 30,
2019:

Notes Payable Bonds Payable Total

Year Ending September 30,
2020 $  124,994 $  992,424 $  1,117,418
2021 99,250 1,019,829 1,119,079
2022 99,353 1,062,372 1,161,725
2023 103,907 1,105,555 1,209,462
2024 108,440 1,148,618 1,257,058
Thereafter 1,553,194 , 24,937,060 26,490,254

Total $  2,089,138 $  30,265,858 32,354,996

Less: current portion (1,117,418)
Less: bond issuance cost (868,732)

Long-term debt, net of current portion $  30,368,846
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NOTE 10 • ADVANCES FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCY

On August 30, 2018 FEDCAP received a loan of $1,485,361 from the Fund for the City of New York to
cover operating expenses pending contract registration and receipt of funds from HRA. This loan is non-
interest bearing and will be repaid no later than 30 days from the date of the loan, upon receipt of the funds
from HRA or on demand for payment by the Fund for the City of New York. At September 30, 2018, the
balance from this loan was $1,485,361. This loan was repaid in January 2019.

In August 2019, FEDCAP received contract advances in the amounts of $314,647 and $118,750 from the
New York City Human Resources Agency and the Mayor's Office of Criminal Justice, respectively, which
are payable as of September 30,2019. These advances are non-interest bearing and will be offset by future
receivables within these programs.

NOTE 11 - FORGIVEABLE CAPITAL ADVANCES

ESCT has received financial assistance for property acquisition costs from Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD") and the Austin Housing Finance Corporation ("AHFC"). Under the terms of the
agreements, funds were provided to ESCT in the form of forgivable capital advances to purchase thirty-four
housing entities. The principle and any interest are not due and will lie forgiven upon maturity, as long as
ESCT continues to meet the requirements to maintain the housing units available for low income persons
with disabilities. ESCT believes that the possibility that repayment will occur is remote and as such that the
treatment of the advance as a contribution upon receipt is appropriate. Accordingly, the advances were
recorded as contributions with donor restrictions that are released from restriction over the life of the
agreement.
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The following table summarizes the forgivable capital advances as of September 30, 2019:

Housing I
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, interest rate of 5.375%, due
unless forgiven on October 11, 2045, secured by six rental housing units. At
September 30, 2019, $269,310 was included in net assets with donor restrictions
related to the Note.

Housing II
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, interest rate of 5.250%, due
unless forgiven on April 1. 2048, secured by ten rental housing units. At
September 30, 2019, $509,927 was included in net assets with donor restrictions
related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through Austin Housing Finance Corporation, interest rate of
0%, due unless forgiven on May 1, 2049, secured by ten rental housing units. As of
September 30, 2019, $369,792 was included in net assets with donor restrictions
related to the Note.

Housing III
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, interest rate of 4.125%, due
unless forgiven on December 1. 2050, secured by eight rental housing units. At
September 30, 2019, $576,505 was included in net assets with donor restrictions
related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through Austin Housing Finance Corporation, interest rate of
0%, due unless forgiven on November 30, 2050, secured by eight rental housing
units..-At September 30, 2019, $385,485 was included in net assets with donor
restrictions related to the Note.

Housing IV
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, interest rate of 4.125%, due
unless forgiven on February 15, 2053, secured by ten rental housing units. At
September 30, 2019, $894,230 was included in net assets with donor restrictions
related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through Austin Housing Finance Corporation, interest rate of
0%, due unless forgiven on February 28, 2053, secured by ten rental housing units.
At September 30, 2019, $522,051 was included in net assets with donor restrictions
related to the Note.

Total

Amount of

Original
Advance

$  413,000

713,600

500,000

739,900

494.740

1,070,400

624,898

$  4,556,538
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NOTE 12 • COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

FEDCAP has leases for offices, program related facilities, and equipment expiring at various dates through
2032. The approximate future minimum lease commitments under existing operating leases are as follows:

Year Ending September 30.

2020 $ 5,581,739
2021 5,042,998
2022 4,752,045

2023 3,084,738
2024 2,816,225
Thereafter 7,188.437

Total $ 28,466,182

Certain office leases contain renewal and escalation clauses. For leases with escalation clauses, FEDCAP
recognized rent expense on a straight-line basis and recognized a deferred rent liability of $467,126 and
$1,669,702 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is included in other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position. In addition to the base rents, FEDCAP is
obligated to pay additional amounts for increased operating costs.

Rent expense was $11,665,549 and $12,639,752 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

FEDCAP sublets a portion of its facilities to tenants under operating leases that expire at various dates
through December 2025. For the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, rental income from these
subleases was $1,395,310 and $562,172, respectively. The. future minimum sublease rental payments to
be received are as follows:

Year Ending September 30,

2020 $ 1,725,831
2021 1,628,231
2022 1,579,431
2023 1,440,344
2024 1,231,623

Thereafter 560,734

Total $ 8,166,194

FEDCAP is engaged in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the opinion of management, the
ultimate outcome of pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position and results of operations of FEDCAP.
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FEDCAP participates in a number of federal and state programs. These programs require that FEDCAP
comply with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the
programs in which it participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts
are subject to audit by government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of
government contracts by government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion
of management, have a material effect on FEDCAP's financial position or change in net assets.
Accordingly, no provision for any such liability that may result has been made in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 13 - TUITION REVENUE

FEDCAP receives funding for the Career Design School from the New York State Education Department,
administered by the Bureau of Proprietary School Supervision. Gross tuition income, which equaled net
tuition income, was $619,891 and $1,012,460 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, and has been included within rehabilitation and vocational programs in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities.

NOTE 14-NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following purposes as of September 30, 2019 and
2018:

2019 2018

For use in future periods for:
Employment and job search programs
ESCT HUD capital advances
Time restricted - beneficial interest in remainder trust

Time restricted - general

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts and endowment funds
subject to appropriation and satisfaction of donor restrictions

Total

$  116,380 3;  122,221
3,527,300 3,641,213
2,540,391 2,765,886
297,700 149,260

September 30, 2019 and 2018:

Easter Seals • beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
Reserve endowment

Community Work Services endowment

6,481,771 6,678,580

2,017,769 1,955,853

$ 8,499,540 $ 8,634,433

comprised of the following as of

2019 2018

$ 1,935,001 $ 1,880,853
75,000 75,000

7,768 7,768

$ 2,017,769 $ 1,955,853
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Net assets released from restrictions during the years ended September 30. 2019 and 2018 were as
follows;

2019 . 2018

Employment and job search programs
ESCT HUD capital advances

Time restricted

Total

NOTE 15 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

$ 30,841 $ 490,089

113,913 915,325
- 1,440,130

$ 144,754 $ 2,845,544

Members of the Board of Directors of FEDCAP are associated with a law firm that has provided legal
services to FEDCAP with fees of $247,849 and $381,465 during the years ended September 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

A CWS Board member Is a trustee of the Eaton Fund. CWS leases Its facilities from the Eaton Fund. Rent
paid to Eaton Fund for each of the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $129,996.

NOTE 16 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Effective January 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for employee voluntary salary reduction contributions. Employees
are eligible to participate in the plan as of their employment date.

Effective October 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for employees working on government contracts with a defined
contribution pension plan based on a contractual formula. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan
upon satisfactory completion of a three-month probationary period.

Effective October 1, 1994, FEDCAP established a Defined Contribution Plan under Section 403(b) of the
Internal Revenue Code for qualified participants, primarily employees who do not work on contracts. In
November 1, 2010, the Defined Contribution Plan was amended to allow all employees to participate in the
plan immediately upon hire. FEDCAP matches employee contributions up to 3% of their salaries. Employer
matching contributions fully vest after three years of employment.

Plan contributions are invested in one or more of the funding vehicles available to participants under the
plans. Each participant is fully and immediately vested in employee contributions. Employer contributions
to the plans amounted to $6,792,107 and $6,648,313 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
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NOTE 17-ACQUISITIONS

On October 31, 2017, FEDCAP entered into a combination agreement with Benevolent to become its sole
member. This combination was predicated on the similarities of mission and enhancement of our ability to
provide economic wellbeing for the individuals we serve. The combination further diversifies funding to
individuals and families in need, through non-government sources. This acquisition was affected without
the transfer of consideration; and as such an inherent contribution of $1,231 was recognized, which
represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the
acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

On April 1, 2018, FEDCAP entered into a combination agreement with MVLE to become its sole member.
MVLE provides employment, support and rehabilitation services to individuals with disabilities in the
Northern Virginia and Washington, D.C. area. This combination was predicated on the synergies of mission
and geographic expansion of services in the Mid-Atlantic Region. This acquisition was affected without the
transfer of consideration, and as such an inherent contribution of $3,644,595 was recognized, which
represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the
acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

On July 1,2018, FEDCAP entered into a combination agreement with Easter Seals Central Texas ("ESCT")
to become its sole member. ESCT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle
through outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration
programs in the Central Texas region. This combination was predicated on the similarities of mission and
geographic expansion of services into the Southwest Region. The addition of ESCT expands the core
services to the populations served through our Easter Seals brand whose current operations are in New
York and Rhode Island. This acquisition was affected without the transfer of consideration, and as such an
inherent contribution of $4,368,955 was recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

On July 1, 2018, FEDCAP entered into a combination agreement with Easter Seals North Texas ("ESNT")
to become its sole member. ESNT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle
through outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration
programs in the North Texas region. This combination was predicated on the similarities of mission and
geographic expansion of services into the Southwest Region. The addition of ESNT expands the core
services to.the populations served through our Easter Seals brand whose current operations are in New
York and Rhode Island. This acquisition was affected without the transfer of consideration, and as such an
inherent contribution of $5,447,649 was recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

On December 3, 2018, FEDCAP acquired Kennedy Scott, Limited ("KS"), a United Kingdom company
through a stock purchase. KS provides high quality job support, placement, retention and related services
to people in the United Kingdom. This combination was predicated on geographic expansion of core
services into the United Kingdom. The acquisition was affected by the transfer of consideration in the
amount of $610,689. Goodwill in the amount of $761,776 was recognized, which represented the
consideration paid less the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over
the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

On March 14, 2019, Fedcap Employment Scotland became a 51% majority shareholder of Start Scotland
Limited {"SS"). SS is a value-driven organization that strives to put its customers first, understanding their
needs and closely engaging with them on a personal level to help them on their journey to employment and
training. This joint venture was predicated on further geographic expansion into specific regions within the
United Kingdom. This transaction was affected without any consideration, and as such, and inherent
contribution of $381,450 was recognized which represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values
of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed. The
minority interest in the joint venture is reflected as non-controlling interest on the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial position.

On Septernber 30, 2019, ESNY acquired and became the sole member of These Our Treasures, Inc.
("TOTS"), a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to educate young children with developmental disabilities in
an atmosphere that embraces and accommodates individual differences and helps children to achieve in
the context of the larger classroom and school setting. The combination was predicated on similarities of
missions with our Easter Seals brand and expands the select group of population being served. This
acquisition was affected without the transfer of consideration, and as such, an inherent contribution of
$4,390,122 was recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisitions for the year ended September 30, 2019;

Inherent Contribution

TOTS

Start

Scotland JV Total

Kennedy
Scott Ltd. Total

Cash and cash

equivalents $  628,040 $  307,425 $  935,465 $  31,128 $  966,593
Accounts receivables, net 146,372. 512,159 658,531 583,083 1,241,614
Contributions receivables 50,852 - 50,852 - 50,852
Inventories 259 - 259 . 259

Prepaid expenses 2,886 39,879 42,765 78,441 121,206
Other assets - - - 31,478 31,478
Property and equipment,
net 3,980.000 61,405 4,041,405 61,,690 4,103,095

Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities (113,016) (539,418) (652,434) (936,,907) (1,589,341)

Deferred liabilities (35,256) - (35,256) - (35,256)
Notes payable (270,015) - (270,015) - (270,015)

Net assets (deficit) $ 4.390.122 $ 381.450 $ 4,771.572 $ (151.087) $ 4.620.485

NOTE 18 - CONCENTRATIONS

FEDCAP provides building services for federal buildings, which comprised 23% and 22% of total revenues
during the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. FEDCAP provides offsite data entry
personnel, custodial and other services to various branches of the state and city government through one
New York State organization, which comprised 7% of total revenues during the years ended September 30
2019 and 2018.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Financial instruments that potentially subject FEOCAP to concentrations of credit and market risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which from time to time may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") limit. Management does not believe that a
significant risk of loss exists due to the failure of a financial institution.

NOTE 19 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

FEDCAP regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual
commitments. FEDCAP has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents,
marketable debt and equity securities, and lines of credit. See note 8 for information about FEDCAP's lines
of credit.

For purposes of assessing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period,
FEDCAP considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, FEDCAP
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general
expenditures.

As of September 30, 2019, the following tables show the total financial assets held by FEDCAP and the
amounts of those financial assets that could readily be made available within one year of the balance sheet
date to meet general expenditures;

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,821,462
Accounts receivable, net 54,652,438
Contributions receivable, net 4,352,341

Investments convertible to cash over the next 12 months 8,703,912

Total financial assets available within the next 12 months 77,530,153

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditure due to:
Donor-Imposed restrictions (3,726,448)
Minimum liquidity requirement under borrowing arrangements (4,000,000)

Total financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the

next 12 months $ 69.803,705

FEDCAP had negative cash flows from operations for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 of
approximately $11,500,000 and $5,500,000, respectively. This operational decrease in cash during fiscal
2019 is primarily due to an increase in FEOCAP's receivable balances, which is mainly due to delayed
payments from government funders. This delay also required FEDCAP to further draw on its line of credit
during fiscal 2019 in order to provide additional working capital. Continued operations of FEDCAP are
dependent upon FEDCAP's ability to maintain its revenue levels while increasing margins and collecting
on its outstanding receivables. Additionally, FEDCAP will need to refinance its existing debt arrangements
which are coming due during fiscal 2020 and 2021. The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a basis which assumes the realizations of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities
and commitments in the normal course of FEDCAP's business.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FEDCAP evaluated its September 30, 2019 consolidated financial statements for subsequent events
through August 14, 2020, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance.
FEDCAP Is unaware of any events which would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, except as noted below.

On January 10, 2020 FEDCAP formed Fedcap Canada, Inc., which began operations in Canada on April 1,
2020.

On January 16, 2020 FEDCAP entered an Asset Purchase Agreement with Breton International, Inc, for
the purchase of the school it operates under the name APEX Technical School. FEDCAP formed Fedcap
APEX Acquisition, LLC to house this school.

The COVID-19 pandemic, the effects of which first became known in January 2020, is having a broad and
negative impact on commerce and financial markets around the world. The United States and global
markets experienced significant declines in value resulting from uncertainty caused by the pandemic.
FEDCAP is closely monitoring cash flows, working capital and liquidity and is actively working to minimize
the impact of these declines. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on FEDCAP's operational and financial
performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak and
its impact on timely collection of receivables, federal and state funding, customers, employees and vendors,
all of which at present, cannot be determined. Accordingly, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact
FEDCAP's financial position and changes in net assets and cash flows is uncertain and the accompanying
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the effects of this pandemic.
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This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.
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This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.
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Anna Battle, CRSW

Qualifications: Person in long term recovery who has a passion for working and helping others to
overcome barriers and find their pathway to recoveiy. I am an accomplished and energetic professional
who is experienced in working In a clinical setting or peer to peer recovery support sen'ices.

Experience:
Granite Pathways, Concord NH
Field Supen'isor Februarj' 2020- Present
Assists Director with daily operations of the Strength to Succeed Program. Trains and super\'ises Parent
Partners. Tasked with offering case supports and consultation to Strength to Succeed Staff members.
Participates in intcr\'icws for potential Parent Partners. Offers support to all nine DCYF district office
supervisors and staff. Assists Program Director in file reviews for Medicaid billing qualit>' control at all
nine Strength to Succeed catchment areas. Approves and reviews expense reports, time off requests and
sick days for Parent Partners. Responsible for continuing personal education on evidence-based peer
recovery services. Provides outreach to community partners and maintains professional relationships with
partners in the field.

Parent Partner June 2018 - February 2020
Tasked with receiving referrals from Child Protective and Cliriical staff at the Seacoast Division for
Children Youth and Families in NH. Liaison between client and DCYF staff members. Provides

Recovery Coaching and resources to families involved with DCYF. Provides education and consultation
to staff members on Substance Use Disorder, as well as updates on area resources. Provides mentoring to
other parent partners in offices state-wide. Participates in planning events in collaboration with DCYF
staff for The Seacoast Better Together Team. Assists program director in searching for and writing grants
for program sustainability. Conducts on-going outreach in the Seacoast catchment area for the Strength to
Succeed program.

Balance Recovery Center, Nashua, NH November 2017 - March 2018
Community Outreach
Responsible for creating and maintaining relationships with like organizations in healthcare and '
Substance Use Disorder treatment field. Verifying various insurance benefits and navigating treatment
that accepts clients' insurances. Liaison between client, SUD Treatment Facility and family. Offering
recovery coaching in group and individual settings.

Hope on Haven Hill- Rochester, NH September 2016 — September 2017
Recovery Support Staff
Tasked with identifying, researching and procuring formal and informal resources in the surrounding
communities. Responsible for collecting pertinent demographic and organizational perfomiance data for
reporting as needed by the Executive Director. Created and maintained a resource hub where staff, clients
and families could access available resources within our surrounding communities. Worked directly with
clients to best assess their needs and place them in the proper resource to address such needs. Responsible
for jail and institution outreach, frequenting such environments to help individuals access treatment and
available services upon release. Worked closely with Clinical Director and Case Manager and provided
updates on clients. Offered clients recoveiy support services for SUD in parallel with coaching on
parenting and life skills. Transported clients to court, probation check ins, and the like. Assisted Clinical
staff in discharges and voluntary hospitalizations. Supported residents through pregnancy, birth and
postnatal NAS care.
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Education:

Portsmouth High School, Class of 2008 - Portsmouth, NH

CCAR Recovery Coach Academy October 2016-Dover, NH
Ethical Considerations for Recovery Coaches, November 2016- Portsmouth, NH
HIV/AIDS Awareness February 2017- Nashua, NH /
Suicide Prevention Training, January 2017- Ossipee, NH
Trauma and Compassion Care, October 2016- Rochester, NH
Anti-Stigma Campaign Partnership for a Drug Free NH, November 2016- Concord, NH
Trained at StrafTord County DOC in PREA and Safety, October 2016- Dover, NH
Sober Parenting Journey Facilitator, November 2018 - Tilton NH
Supervising Peer Recovery Support Workers, May 2020 - NHADACA
Certified Recovery Support Workers: Performance Domains, April 2020 - NHADACA

State Credentials: Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) license number #0155, October

2018 to Present

References:

1. Jennifer Stout {MLDAC. MLJCSW- The Doorway. Dover) 603-609-6690

2. Kerry Norton {RN- Executive Director- Hope on Haven Hill) 603-948-1230
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AMANDA LETENDRE

Experienced Certified Recovery Support Worker who is looking to advance her career. Highly dependable and a fast learner. Passionate
about individuals with Substance Use Disorder and working with families in recovery.

PROFESSIONAL

EXPERIENCE

GRANITE PATHWAYS- STRENGTH TO SUCCEED, ROCHESTER, NH

Parent Partner. January 2019 - Present

Working out of Rochester DCVF office to receive referrals from CPSWs
Working with families who have DCVF involvement with history of substance use
Assisting families accessing recovery and community resources
Supporting families through DCVF court process
Helping families create short-term recovery goals
Providing education to families on Hami Reduction and Relapse Prevention

GROUPS- RECOVER TOG ETHER, MANCHESTER, NH
Office Coordinator, October 2018 —January 2019

Assisting with group check-ins

Assisting with client.coordinalion with physicians and counselors
Conducting mandatory pill counts in all offices
Offering l-to-f recovery support to clients

Assisting clinical staff and physicians with intake procedures

SOUTHEASTERN NH SERVICES, DOVER, NH

Certified Recovery Support Worker/Resident Assistant, August 2017 — Present
Maintaining a safe environment for clients
Observing clients taking medications
Facilitating treatment programming

Offering l-to-1 recovery support to clients
Assisting clinical staff and case manager with treatment plans

HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, ROCHESTER, NH
Recovery Support Stajf October 2016 — July 20/7

•  Problem-solving difficult situations with residents
•  Maintaining a safe and nurturing environment for mothers and children
•  Offering l-to-l recovery support to clients
•  Transporting clients to appointments

•  Supervising visitation with families and children
•  Facilitating treatment programming and enrichments

EDUCATION HUNTINGTON UNIVERSITY, HUNTINGTON, IN

•  Currently working towards Bachelors degree in Social Work. Graduating Fall 2021

NOBLE HIGH SCHOOL, NORTH BERWICK, ME

•  Graduated Cum Laude in 2008

CERTIFIED RECOVERY SUPPORT WORKER

•  May 2018

NH LADC BOARD-APPROVED SUPERVISOR

•  September 2020



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4A81D55E-33F6-46ED-945D-27F8E3DDA6D6

ADDITIONAL • Proficient in NH WiTS

SKILLS • CPR Certified
Familiarit)' with mental health diagnoses
Familiar with NH recovery community
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DONNA KEEFE

EDUCATION I Trinity High School, Manchester, NH
Springfield College - BS Human Services/Administration
Recovery Coach Academy & Training of Trainers - certified

EXPERIENCE 12/1/2015 - Present

DIRECTOR OF NEW INITIATIVES - GRANITE PATHWAYS NH

Granite Pathways is a subsidiary of Redcap. As the Director of New
Initiatives. I manage the local day to day infrastructure and work with
referring agencies to identify, develop and maintain relationships
pertaining to billing, community relations and development. I was also
instrumental in the startup of the following programs, Safe Harbor
Recovery Center, Regional Access Point of Services, Strength to
Succeed and Job Launch. I work closely the corporate Engagement
Team overseeing fundraising events in NH.

9/2013-12/1/2015

NE DIRECTOR OF ADMISSIONS & CLIENT SERVICES

FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES

As the NE Director of Admissions & Client Services, I supervised the
admissions process throughout the Fedcap NE regions working with all
the referring agencies to identify, develop and maintain relationships
pertaining to billing & client services. In this role, I worked in Rl to
systematically manage the federally mandated Interim Settlement
Agreement that shut down segregated workshops for the DD population.
The Fedcap team in Rl developed programs and systems to train the IDD
population to be gainfully employed in the community. This effort is
nationally recognized as Fedcap continues to educate other national
agencies via our Rl, National Center Institute for System Improvement
seminars available on the Fedcap website.

1995-2013

DIRECTOR OF ADMISSIONS

EASTER SEALS NH, ME, NY, VT
As Director of Admissions for the Adolescent Residential/Educational
Psychiatric & Neurobehavloral Programs I was responsible for the
admissions and transitions process within the continuum of care
programs as well as the final discharges from Easter Seals. I managed
referrals from various states and agencies where I applied knowledge of
differing state and agency placement requirements/laws. In addition to
working with families I managed the monthly billing, file retention,
census/wait list for 6 satellite intensive residential group homes and over
75 foster homes. I implemented may systems to manage the complex
admission/discharge process.
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1992-1995

City of Manchester NH School Department
Served as a liaison between team members - parents, teachers,
administrators and students. I was responsible to implement behavior
plans/procedures to transition special education students back into the
traditional classroom from an alternative/self-contained classroom. I also
worked closely and supported low income families through the lEP
process at the inner city schools.

1988-1992

SERESC - BIRCHWOOD HIGH SCHOOL

Aided in developing class curriculums in this alternative setting for the
Seriously Erhotionally Disturbed students. Taught classes under
supervision of teacher, organized field trips and participated in all goal
oriented programs working 1:1 with the students if needed.

AWARDS/RECOGNITIONS/Trainings

1997 - Easter Seals President's Meritorious Award - for outstanding
service by an employee

2000 - Easter Seals NH, VT, NY, Employee of the Year - Chosen from
1,200 employees

2003 - Easter Seals Service First Award - Customer Service Award

2004 - Crisis Intervention and Physical Restraint Training

2005 - State of NH DCYF/DJJS Directors Award - this award is given
yearly to one NH individual who goes above and beyond to help the state
workers solve their difficult cases

2015 - Mental Health First Aid USA

2016 - CCAR Recovery Coach Academy & Training of Trainers Program

2016 - NAMl NH's Connect Suicide Prevention Training

2016 - Crisis Intervention in the Workplace

2016 - Breaking the Stigma - Language Training

2017 - First Aid/CPR and Narcan Training

PAGE 2
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Lori A. Hebert

Lhcbcrt@granitcnathwavs.org

Professional Qualifications

•  Over 15 years of process and customer management combined with an extensive
background In private and government contracting operations

•  2 years of civic engagement and advising within Child Welfare

Volunteer Exoerience

Fairgrounds Elementary' School
Volunteer

•  PTO Board member since 2015

•  Member of Leadership and Family Engagement teams
•  Member of interview panel for hiring new staff

Nashua Department of Education

Strategic Planning Committee Member 2018/2019
•  Survey development and input from a parent's perspective

•  Mission statement development

•  Five-year strategic plan development

Civic Engagement and Advising Experience

NH Department of Health and Human services
Division for Children Youth and Families 2015-2017

Parent Leader - Practice Advisor

•  Serves as an advisor to the field and the Division's leadership in matters of
family engagement

•  Asa training partner, attends Core Academy Better Together Workshops
helping train DCYF staff and foster parents on how to partner with birth
parents to improve child welfare outcomes

•  Attends bi-monthly Statewide Steering Committee Meetings providing
oversight and leadership to the Parent Partner Program, a program that
promotes parents as leaders within Child Welfare

•  Provides coaching and support to parents new to the system through the peer
to peer support model to improve reunification outcomes and the lives of
children in New Hampshire

Professional Work Historv

Granite Pathways 2018-Prescnt
Program Director, Strength to Succeed

•  Program development for peer support ser\'ices for families involved within
the Division for Child Youth and Families

•  Supervise stalT including hiring, training/development, managing CRSW
(certified recovery support worker) certifications and performance

•  Monthly DCYF staff outreach and meeting attendance
•  Community collaborations to include location and social determinant seiv'ices

for program participants
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•  Ongoing development of participant Medicaid building and expansion
opportunities for the program

•  Monthly and quarterly data reporting on measurables and deliverables

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Health and Human Services (DCYF) 2017-2018
Parent Consultant

•  Statewide consultation to DCYF within development of internal policies and
statewide programs

•  Parent Leader recruitment and development

•  Participate in planning, testing, evaluation and measurable for new program
implementations

•  Monthly reporting on measurable and deliverables

Sunnyside Acura 2017-2018

Concierge
•  Front of the house position, face of the dealership in accordance with

l-londa/Acura standards

•  Answering, screening and transferring all phone calls to the dealership
•  Administrative work supporting sales, ser\'ice and accounting departments

Cityside Management Corporation, Manchester NH 2004-2013
Project Manager

•  Government contract bidding process including requests for proposal
completions and negotiations

•  Development and start up of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Asset
Manager contracts throughout the United States

•  HUD program administration and management in accordance with housing
regulations and scope of service compliance

•  Supervise large staff, including hiring, training/development, employment
reviews

•  Training and seminar hosting for regional listing brokers
•  IT support in developing Asset Management software package
•  Manage and coordinate negotiations with HUD Contractors including the

Mortgage Compliance Managers and Field Service Manager
•  Extensive knowledge with reviewing and implementing government housing

regulations

•  Member of senior leadership team

Contract Manager
•  Manage New England Management and Marketing HUD contract
•  Manage Property Management, Real Estate and Mortgagee Compliance

companies

Education

Keene State College
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PATRICIA M. REED

NEW HAMPSHIRE STATE DIRECTOR

QUALIFICATIONS

Demonstrated executive v/lth more than 30 years' experience serving individuals with disabilities in

children and youth services, addiction services, and residential treatment programs
EXPERIENCE

2018 New Hampshire State Director, Granite Pathways, Inc.

•  Responsible for overall program management, program expansion and development, fiscal
integrity, quality compliance and external relationships in New Hampshire for Granite Pathways,

Inc.

2017 to 2018 Consultant

•  Provide system analysis and consultation for a variety of entities providing services to individuals

with intellectual and other developmental disabilities and behavioral health needs

•  Led three NH regional agencies serving this population to plan for youth with challenging

behaviors to receive adult services to meet their needs in a community based context

2015 to 2017 Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, Lakeview Management, Inc., Austin TX

•  Responsible to provide program and operations consultation and support to Lakeview Specialty

Hospital and Rehabilitation Center in Waterford, Wl

•  Directed to develop relationships with funders and providers in other states to pursue program

development to most effectively utilize Lakevievy's resources

•  Represented the company in all matters for New England, New Jersey and Pennsylvania

2015 Executive Director, Lakeview Neurorehabllltation Center, Inc., Effmgham, NH

•  Responsible to provide program and operations consultation and support to Lakeview Specialty

Hospital and Rehabilitation Center in Waterford, Wl

. • Directed to develop relationships with funders and providers in other states to pursue program

development to most effectively utilize Lakeview's resources

•  Represented the company in all matters for New England, New Jersey and Pennsylvania

2014 to 2015 Children's Director, NH Bureau of Behavioral Health, Concord, NH

•  Responsible to provide leadership in planning and development of the state children's behavioral

health system, act as liaison between CMHC Children's programs and the state office for program

and client specific information exchange and problem solving

•  Provided support to implement statewide initiatives

•  Represented the Department of Health and Human Service on the Children's Behavioral Health

Collaborative Executive Committee, Steering Committee and various workgroups

•  Co-coordinated the Safe Schools/Health Students grant with the Department of Education
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2011 to 2014 Project Director, Health Profession Opportunity Project, NH Office of Minority Health and
Refugee Affairs, Concord, NH

•  Directed and implemented a five-year, $12 million-dollar healthcare workforce development
grant to recruit, train and place low income Individuals in healthcare jobs

•  Developed RFP's, negotiated and managed contracts, and monitored grant and contractor
budgets

• Worked closely with regional health care providers to understand their workforce needs;
partnered with educational programs and other community groups to ensure that the individuals
are well prepared to meet employer expectations for technical and soft skills

•  Provided leadership and direction to develop innovative strategies to overcome system.based
barriers to education, training and self-sufficiency for NH citizens

•  Collaborated with other NH workforce programs to efficiently use available resources to achieve
shared employment goals

2002 to 2010 Senior Director of Clinical Services, Easter Seals of NH, Manchester, NH

•  Provided leadership and oversight for the design, organization and delivery of clinical services for
Easter Seals NH, Including the development of Autism Services, an adolescent program for dual
disorder treatment, residential DBT program and management of a residential treatment
program for adults with substance abuse issues

•  Provided oversight for the DCYF Administrative Case Review contract

•  Developed and monitored budgets for programs
• Worked collaboratively with Easter Seals Development to write federal, state, and foundation

grants, progress reports and budget monitoring

•  Developed relationships with funders and providers in NH and other states to pursue program
development and effective treatment and services for individuals and families

EDUCATION

•  1982 - 1987 Boston College, Chestnut Hill, MA; Graduate School of Arts and Science Department of
Sociology (Four Year Doctoral Work)

•  1982 B.A. Norte Dame College, Manchester, NH Major- Behavioral Science/ Minor- English Summa
Cum Laude, Dean's List

RESEARCH EXPERIENCE

Contracted to assist staff and clients on three community based residential facilities in the development
of client self-government programs through participant observation and didactics. Responsible for both
training and evaluation. Sites included Seacoast Mental Health Center- Portsmouth, NH and Greater
Manchester Mental Health Center- Manchester, NH. Responsible for leading the research design, data
collection and reporting for the evaluation of a partial Hospital Program. The primary methodology was
intensive interviewing.
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Lori Hebert Program Director 60,000 100% 60,000
Anna Battle Field Supervisor 48,000 100% 48,000

Amanda Letendre Field Supervisor 46,000 100% 46,000

Patricia Reed NH State Director 105,000 35% 36,750.00
Donna Keefe Director of New Initiatives 78,000 40% 31,078.40
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DmsrON OF PUBUC HEAL TH SER VICES

2» HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD. NH 03MI
603-271-4S01 l-S004S2<334S EiL 4501

Fai: 603-271-4827 TDD Acms: I400-73S-2964
v.dhh>.aA.gov

July 22. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorat)le Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

INFORMATIONAL ITEM

Pursuant to RSA 4:45, RSA 21-P:43. and Section 4 of Executive Order 2020-04, as
extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 202008, 2020-09, 2020-10. and 2020-14. Governor
Sununu has authorized the Department of Health and Human Senrices, Division for Behavioral
Health, to enter into Sole Source amendments to existing contracts with the vendors listed below
for the provision of Targeted Prevention Programmir^ for DCYF-lnvolved Families with
Substance Use Disorder, by increasing the total price limitation by $1,485,000 from $2,940,404
to $4,425,404 and by extending the completion dates from September 30, 2020, to the dates
specified below, effective upon Govemor approval. The original contracts were approved by
Governor and Council as specified in the table below. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor

Namo

Vendor

Code

Oietriet

Offices

Served

Current

Amount

informational

Item-

Irwreaao

(Decrease))

Revieod

, Amount

Completion
Data Q&C

Approval

Granite

Pathways
228900-

8001

Conway
Rochester

Seacoast

Southern

Manchester

Keene

Clafenx)nt

Concord

Laconia

$1,638,589 $960,000 $2,598,589
December
31,2020

O: 5/2/18

#20

A1:

5/15/19

#17A

The

Family
Resource

Center at

Gomarn

162412-

B001

Berlin

Littleton
$1,301,815 $525,000 $1,826,815

January
31.2021

O: 5/2/18

#20

A1:

12/19/18

#20

Total: $2,940,404 $1,486,000 $4,425,404

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2021 with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances bctvreen state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if r>eeded and justified.

Tht Dtpartmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission it to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citieent to achieve health and independence.
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Hit Excellency. Governor Chrhtopher T. Sununu
end the Honorsble Council

Page 2 of 3

SEE ATTACHED FISCAL DETAILS

EXPLANATION

This item Is Sole Source because the Department, in the interest of the public's health
and safety, identified these two (2) vendors as having the capacity to quickly respond to the
COVID-19 pandemic. The Governor requested certain fundir>g be set aside for COVID-19
emergencies in order to broaden programming to help families in this trying time. This amendment
allows children and their families to receive additional assistance because of exacerbated
circumstances caused by COVID'19.

The purpose of this item Is to expand access to Strength to Succeed services to children,
parents, and ceregivers who are ur^ergolng an assessment by the Division for Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF), and are affected by a substance use disorder. This item win expand the
number of families that are eligible to access the Strength to Succeed program, given that current
furrding limits eligibitity to open cases. The expanded services will also require the vendors to
implement the evidence*based Parenting a Sewnd Time Around or equivalent evidence-based
curriculum for grandparents who are caring for a minor child as a result of DCYF Involvement and
parental substance use. More than 100 individuals received services through this program in
2018. This request, if approved, vyill expand the program to provide services for more than 150'
individuals statewide.

The vendors are currently providing the Strer)gth to Succeed Program, which consists of
substance use disorder prevention and early intervention services to families who have open
cases with the DCYF as a result of substance use. The vendors have established programs In
place that provide accessible, integrated services to reduce and mitigate childhood trauma that
results from substance use in the family. Core components of the Strength to Succeed program
Include rapid access to treatment for parents within the DCYF reunification timeframe, DCYF
Parent Partner peer support, home visiting services, direct prevention services to children to
mitigate Hsk of substance misuse, and caregiver support for relative ceregivers of children
exposed to substance use in the home. This request, if approved, will provide additional funding
to expand services to an additional group of children and their families and extend the existing
program for another fifteen (15) months.

The original services were contracted when the State received funding authorized by the
21st Century CURES Act through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA) State Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis grant. The State
Targeted Response grant program ended in State Fiscal Year 2019, and funds from that grant
were used to expand critical substance use disorder prevention, treatment, and recovery services
to target populations, including child welfare Involved families. Extension and expansion of the
State's Targeted Response funded initiatives are Key components of the State's recently accepted
plan for the State Opioid Response grant, which provides funding to address the opioid crisis
through September 29, 2020.

As referenced in Form P-37, General Provisions, and in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions, Section 3, of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the
agreements for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and appropriate State approval. The Department
previously renevy^ the contracts for one (1) year and three (3) months, leaving nine (9) months
available. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for three (3) months with
Granite Pathways) and four (4) months with The Family Resource Center at.

Area served: Statewide
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Surtunu
and the Honorable Coundl

Page 3 of 3

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds.

\

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A, Shibinette

Commissioner
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05-95-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF

DRUG AND ALCOHOL, OPIOID STR GRANT

SFY
Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number

Current

Arriount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2018
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92052559 $148,840 $0 $148,840

2019
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Sen/ices

92052559 $595,358 $0 $595,358

2020
102-

500731

Contracts

for ■

Program
Sen/Ices

92052559 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $744,198 $0 $744,198

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEATH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG &
ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE OPlOlD RESPONSE GRANT

SFY
Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92057040 $1,000,000 ($296,380) $703,620

2020
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92057040 $1,196,206 $0 $1,196,206

2021
102--

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92057040 $0 $296,380 $296,380

Subtotal $2,196,206 $0 $2,196,206
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05.95.95-950010-19190000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEATH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE, OFFICE OF THE
COMMISSIONER. C0VID19 FEMA - DHHS

SFY
Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2021;
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

95010895 $0 $1,485,000 $1,485,000

Subtotal $0 $1,485,000 $1,485,000

Grand

Total
$2,940,404 $1,485,000 $4,425,404
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF*lnvolved Families

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF>lnvolved Families

This 2"^ Amendment to the Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Granite
Pathways, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 60 Rogers
Street, Suite 204, Manchester, NH 03103.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 2, 2018, (Item #20). as amended on May 15, 2019, (Item #17A), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and-Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions. Section 3. the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: •

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

December 31, 2020.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$2,598,589.

3. Exhibit A Amendment #1. Scope of Services. Section 1. Provisions Applicable to All Services.
Subsection 1.8 through Subparagraph 1.8.4.4. to read:

1.8. The Contractor shall provide services:

1.8.1 By assisting in developing a strong collaboration between agencies vrithin the
Department including, but not limited to. '

1.8.1.1 The Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services (BDAS).

1.8.1.2 The Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF).

1.8.1.3 The Division of Public Health Services (DPHS).

1.8.1.4 The Bureau for Children's Behavioral Health (BCBH).

1.8.2 To Individuals involved with DCYF, who have substance use disorder or other
challenges that result in neglect, or are at risk for neglect, which may include, but
is not limited to:

1.8.2.1. Children.

1.8.2.2. Birth parents.

1.8.2.3. Foster parents.

1.8.2.4. Grandparents.

1.8.2.5. Other caregivers.

1.8.2.6. Siblings.

Granile Pathways Amendment «2 Contractor Initial:

RFP-2018-BDAS-04.TARG6-01-A02 . Page 1 of 5 Date
7m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

1.8.2.7. Families with open DCYF cases.

1.8.2.8. Families undergoing a DCYF assessment.

1.8.3 Prioritizing cases, by working with the DCYF designated gatekeeper, including,
but not limited to:

1.8.3.1 Parents/caregivers with mental health issues.

1.8.3.2 Chronic neglect cases as determined by DCYF.

1.8.3.3 Families that qualify for prioritization by the above guidelines and have an
active DCYF assessment and may not require an open case if this level of
service is available.

1.8.4.4 Families with an open neglect case that requires this level of service to
promote an in home case or promote a permanency plan of reunification.

4. Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Work. Subsection 2.1 General
Provisions. Paragraph 2.1.18. to read:

2.1.18 The Contractor shall engage with treatment providers for mental health In catchment
areas to develop relationships and assistance in prioritization for parents/caregivers
involved with an open DCYF case or assessment.

5. Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2, DCYF
Parent Partner Program (Peer Recovery Support). Paragraph 2.2.1, Subparagraph 2.2.1.4, to
read:

2.2.1.4 Ensure that Parent Partners have the appropriate lived experience for the population
they are serving.

6. Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope of Services Section 2. Scope of Work, Subsection 2.5, Parent
and Child Substance Use Education, Paragraph 2.5.1, Subparagraph 2.5.1.4 through 2.5.1.6 to
read:

2.5.1.4 Adjusting messaging, support and curricula as needed to address the primary issues
that the parent/caregiver of focus is experiencing, such as their own mental illness,
other health conditions and any other Social Determinants of Health that may be
presenting challenges and are primary in the Identified conditions or neglect in the
DCYF case or assessment.

2.5.1.5 Engaging with treatment providers to develop educational/parenting programming
relative to parenting while symptomatic for Serious (Cental Illness.

2.5.1.6 Providing age appropriate education for children regarding mental illness.

7. Exhibit B, ivlethods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5, Subsection 5.1, to read:

5.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits B-1. Budget through Exhibit B-5. Budget.

• 8. Exhibit B, fyiethods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5, Subsection 5.2, to read:

5.2 The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, unless othen^^ise specified, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior

• month. The Contractor shall ensure the Invoice is completed, dated and returned to
the Department in order to initiate payment. .Invoices shall be net any other revenue
received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.

5.2.1 Backup documentation shall include, but is not limited to:

Granite Pathways Amendment U2 Contractor Initial

RFP-2018-BDAS-04.TARGE.01.A02 Page 2 of 5 Date
S

— 09

Ad

V?fr/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

5.2.1.1 General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.2.1.2 Timesheets and/or time cards signed by both employee and
supervisor that support the hours employees worked for wages
reported under this contract.

.5.2.1.1.1 Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(l)(1) Charges to Federal awards
for salaries and-wages must be based on records that
accurately reflect the work performed.

5.2.1.3 Per 2 CFR 200.430 (iii) Labor records must reasonably reflect the
total activity for which each employee is compensated, showing
percentages for time spent on activities under this contract and all
other activities (totaling no more than 100%).

5.2.2 The following backup documentation may also be requested as needed:

5.2.2.1 Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.2.2.1.1 Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an integral part of a
conference grant or specifically stated as an allowable
expense in the FOA: Grant funds may be used for light
snacks, not to exceed $3.00 per person for clients.

5.2.3 Cost center reports, submitted only as requested by the Department.

5.2.4 Profit and loss report, submitted only as requested by the Department.

5.2.5 Remittance Advices from the insurances billed, submitted only as requested
by the Department. Remittance Advices do not need to be supplied with the
invoice, but should be retained to be available upon request.

9. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Granite Pathways Amendment #2 Contractor IniilalJ
^t7^/2020

RFP-20ie-BDAS-04.TARGE-01-A02 Page 3 of 5 Dale
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New. Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvotved Families

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment 1t2
ren^in in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Datb^ T Name: )C.^r ■ ^

Title:

Granite Pathways

7/28/2020

Date

«  ff.

! a^2LJ
Nnflnoii

erezenorr

Title: Genera! Counsel

Grsnlle Pathways

RFP-201 a-BDAS-04-TARGE-0l -A02

Amendment H2

Page 4 of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF*lnv6lved Families

The preceding Amendrhent, having been revievi/ed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

00/07/20

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name: ^
Title* Catherine Pmos, Attorney

N

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor on:

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE.

Date Name:

Title:

Granite Pathways Amendment #2

RFP.2018-BDAS-04-TARGE-01 ■A02 Page 5 of 5
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Budget
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Mew Hempshire Department of Health and Human Services
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DI VISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEA L TH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603-27I-9S44 I400-8S2-334SEZL9S44

Fei: 603-271^332 TOO Access: I-SOO-73S-2964 www.dlihs.nh.gov

April 30,2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral
Health, to exercise a renewal option with a sole source amendment to an existirig
agreement with one of the contractors listed below (in bold print) for the provision of
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families with Substance Use
Disorder by increasing the contract price limitation by $1,029,700 from $1,910,704 to
$2,940,404 in the aggregate, and extending the contract completion date from June 30,
2019 to September 30, 2020, effective upon approval by the Governor and Executive
Council." 100% Federal Funds.

The original agreement was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on,
May 2. 2018 (Item #20).

Contractor

Name

Vendor

ID

Contractor

Address

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

Granite

Pathways
228900-

8001

10 Ferry Street
Concord, NH

03301

$608,889 $1,029,700 $1,638,589

The Family
Resource

Center at

" Gorham

162412-

8001

123 Main

Street

Gorham. NH

03581

$1,301,815 '  $0 $1,301,815

Total $1,910,704 $1,029,700 $2,940,404

Funds are available in the following accounts for state fiscal year (SFY) 2019, and
are expected to be available in SFY 2020, upon the availability and continued
appropriation ofTunds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts
within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified. •
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05-9S-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF

DRUG AND ALCOHOL, OPIOID STR GRANT

SFY
Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2018
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92052559 $148,840 $0 $148,840

2019
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92052559 $595,358 $0 $595,358

2020
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92052559 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $744,198 50 $744,198

05-95'92'920510'7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEATH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL
SERVICES, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

SFY
Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Numt>er

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92057040 $568,403 $431,597 $1,000,000

2020
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Sen/ices

92057040 $598,103 $598,103 $1,196,206

Subfofa/ $1,166,506 $1,029,700 $2,196,206

Grand

Total
$1,910,704 $1,029,700 $2,940,404
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the requested increase in funding exceeds
ten percent (10%) of the original contract price limitation. The Contractor is currently
providing the Strength to Succeed (STS) Program, which consists of substance use
disorder (SUD) prevention and early intervention services to families who have open
cases with the Division for Children. Youth and Families (DCYF) as a result of substance
use. The Contractor has established programs in place that provide accessible, integrated
services to reduce and mitigate childhood trauma that results from substance use in the
family. Core components of the STS program include rapid access to treatment for
parents within the DCYF reunification timeframe. DCYF Parent Partner peer support,
home visiting services, direct prevention services to children to mitigate risk of substance
misuse, and caregiver support for relative caregivers of children exposed to substance
use In the home. This request, if approved, will provide additional funding to expand
services to an additional group of children and their families and extend the existing
program for another fifteen (15) months.

the original services were contracted when the State received funding authorized
by the 21st Century CURES Act through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA) State Targeted Response (STR) to the Oploid Crisis
grant. The STR grant program ends in FY2019. and funds from that grant were used to
expand critical SUD prevention, treatment and recovery services to target populations.
Including child welfare Involved families. Extension and expansion of STR funded
initiatives are a key component of the State's recently accepted plan for the State Opioid
Response (SOR) grant, which provides funding to address the opioid crisis, through
September 29, 2020.

The purpose of this request is to expand access to STS services to children,
parents and caregivers who are undergoing an assessment by DCYF. and are affected
by a substance use disorder. This request, if approved, will expand the number of families
that are eligible to access the STS program given that current funding limits eligibility to
open cases. The expanded services will also require the Contractor to Implement the
evidence-based Parenting a Second Time Around or equivalent evidence-based
curriculum for grandparents who are caring for a minor child as a result of DCYF
involvement and parental substance use. More than 100 individuals received services
through this .program in 2018. This request, if approved, will expand the program to
providie services for than. 150 individuals statewide.

As referenced in Form P-37, General Provisions, and in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions. Section 3. the State reserves the option to extend contract services
for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parlies and approval by the Governor and Executive
Council. This request,.if approved, will exercise one (1) year and three (3) months of the
two (2) available years of renewal.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, children
impacted by substance misuse issues within their family may not receive the services and
targeted prevention messaging necessary to support their current needs, and may not
receive early support to help them avoid substance misuse Issues in the future. In
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addition, relative caregivers impacted by familial substance misuse may not receive the
services and supports that are necessary to continue to support the children in their
family.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from DHHS, Substance Abuse and Mental

Health Sen/Ices Administration. Center for Substance Abuse Treatment, Targeting
. Capacity Expansion State Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis Grant (CFDA # 93.788
FAIN TI080246) and State Opioid Response Grant (CFDA #93.788 FAIN TI081685).

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

J^rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The DeparUiienl o/HeoUh ond Human Service*'Mission it lojoin eomnwnities o/ui /oniilies
in providing opporiunilies for citi^ns 10 ochicuO heollh and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
Por DCYF-lnvolved Families

State of New Hampshire
Department of Heatth and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Targeted Prevention Programming
for OCYF'involved Families Contract

This I" Amendment to the Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families contract
(hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment P1') dated this 15"* day of Aprii. 2019, is by and between the Stale
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Granite Pathways, (hereinafter referred to as "the ContractoO. o corporation with a
place of business at 10 Ferry St. Concord. New Hampshire 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on .May 2, 2018 (Item «20). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract:'and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit Cri, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3. the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract, and extend the Contract Completion Date for up to two (2) additional years, upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price iiniitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, (Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2020.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,638,589.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for Slate Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4.- Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Slate Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1.

6. Add Exhibit B-1 Amendment#1. SFY 2019 Strength to Succeed Service Expansion Budget.

7. Add Exhibit 8-2 Amendment#1, SFY 2020 Strength to Succeed Service Expansion Budget.

Grertie Palhways Am«ndmcrt*n
RFP-201S-BDA$4}4-TARGE-01 Page 1 or3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Prbgrammtng
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health end Human Services

Date ' Name:

Granite Pathways

4/23/19

Date Name: ' Kenneth Brezenoff
Title: General Counsel 1  ■

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of New York . County of New York ^ on April 23.2019 . .before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed atx)ve. and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

SIgrjafure of^taiy Public or Justice of the Peace

Amy Reisner, Notary Public
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: 12/28/21

AMY REISNER

Notiry Public - Slite of New Vorh

NO. 01RE621S2B1

Ouilifled In Kings Count]
My Commission Expl'cs

:ountf i

GranSio Poihways
RFP-20t8-BDAS-04-TARGE-01

A/nenOmen(0l

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

fa ' ' / f//mDate ' ' Name;
Title:

I hereby certify thai the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY Of^ STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Cranlie Pathway* Amendment 01
RFP-2018-eOAS-O4-TARGE-O1 P»fie3ol3
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New Hampshire Dcpartmor>t of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
for DCYF-lnvolved Families Exhibit A Amendment

Scope of Services

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to At! Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with llrhited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access
to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees that In the performance of any services involving the collection,
transmission, storage, or disposition of data obtained or created on behalf of OHHS.
shall be subject to the requirements stated in Exhibit K.

1.4. The Contractor agrees that in the performance of any services Invotving the collection,
transmission, storage, or disposition of data containing protected health information
(PHI), or In the case of substance use disorder (SUO) data created by a Part 2 provider,
the Contractor shall be subject to the requirements staled In Exhibit I and 45 CFR Part

• 2, including the prohibition against redisclosure.

1.5. The Contractor agrees to have consent to share or redisclose any confidential
Information, including PHI or SUD information, consistent with state rules, and state and

• federal law including appropriate consents pursuant to 42 CFR Part 2.

1.6. The Contractor agrees thai in the performance of any services ail staff members shall
have training in confidentiality' and Information security relating to the informatiori, files
and data that is involved in the performance of the contract.

1.7. The Contractor agrees that any database, dashboard, or information.system designed,
built, or modified on behalf of OHHS shall be defined and subject to the requirements In
Exhibit K, Exhibit I. and all applicable NH Department of information Technology (DolT)
standards, policies, and procedures.

1.8. The Contractor shall assist in developing a strong collaboration between agencies
within the Department including, but not limited to the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Sen/ices (BOAS), the Division for Children. Youth, and Families (DCYF), the Division of
Public. Health Services (OPHS), and the Bureau for Children's Behavioral Health
(8CBH) for the purpose of providing services to children and families with substance
use disorder that are involved with DCYF, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.8.1. Children.

1.8.2. Birth parents.

1.8.3. Foster parents.

1.8.4. Grandparents.

1.8.5. Other caregivers.

1.8.6. Siblings.

1.8.7. Families with open DCYF cases.

GiA/410 PBUTwayi' Exniblt A Amendment Controctor Inltltfs

RFP-20l8-BOAS-O4-TARGE4)1 Page 10(9 Palo 4/23/19
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New Hampehiro Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
for DCYF«lnvolved Families Exhibit A Amendment Pi

Scope of Services

1.8.8. Families undergoing a DCYF assessment.

1.9. The Coniracior shall provide services for nine (9) DCYF District Offices'listed below.
See Exhibit A-1 for more details.

1.9.1. Claremont.

1.9.2. Concord.

1.9.3. Conway.

i;9.4. Keene.

1.9.5. Laconia.

1.9.6. Manchester.

1.9.7. Rochester.

1.9.8. Seacoast.

1.9.9. Southern.

1.10. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30. 2019, and the Department shall nol be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2019. unless and until an appropriation
for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered
for the SFY 2020-2021 and SFY 2022-2023 btennia.

1.11. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
Slate are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the State Opioid Response
Grant from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. General Provisions

2.1.1. The Contractor shall create and implement programs to reduce and mitigate
childhood trauma by:

2.1.1.1. Increasing access to. and participation in. evidence-based home
visiting services;

2.1.1.2. Reducing the child's risk of substance use issues; and

2.1.1.3. Increasing training opportunities for the early childhood and home
visiting workforce in substance misuse prevention, recovery, and
trauma-informed care so that the workforce is better prepared to
address the challenges of this population.

2.1.2. The Contractor shall engage, educate, and empower parents and primary
caregivers in a peer-to-peer model to increase family protective factors and
reduce risk factors in order to better suppoh childhood social and emotional
needs by:

2.1.2.1. Fostering positive parent/primary careglver child attachment;

2.1.2.2. Increasing parent/primary' caregiver knowledge about childhood
development and learning;

2.1.2.3. increasing resiliency and social connectedness in parents/primary
caregivers; and

Grartte Pathways Exhlbil A AnerKjmeni ffi ContrBCiOf Inliiats \c6}
RFP-2Ot0-eDAS-O4-TARGE-Ol Page 2 ol 9 Data
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for DCYF<lnvolvod Families Exhibit A Amondmont 01

Scope of Services

2.1.2.4. Educating parents on the topic of trauma for children and the'risk
continued substance use poses to the child.

2.1.3. The Contractor shati maintain one (1) point of contact and one (1) alternate
contact who can receive requests from the nine (9) covered District Offices the
Contractor supports that will refer families to this program.

2.1.4. The Contractor shall ensure that families who are referred for services are

offered all program components In a timely fashion, with the understanding that
OCYF Involvement has a twelve (12) month timeframe for permanency
decisions that can impact a parent's parental rights.

2.1.5. The Contractor shall re-offer services at two (2) and six (6) weeks after the
initial offer to families that decline the initial offer of services, cease to
participate, or do not attend a scheduled visit.

2.1.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with Department partners when any
issues/barriers arise including, but not limited to, timely access to treatment
and program partner capacity Issues such as program waitlists or lack of
treatment provider capacity.

2.1.7. The Contractor shall ensure that when there is an Infant Safe Plan of Care

(ISPOC) for a child, all participating partners are knowledgeable about the plan
of care and are assisting DCYF and the family to fuini) the plan of care by
having a Parent Partner schedule a call with the identified agencies and
workers within the first two (2) weeks of receiving a referral to the Strength to
Succeed program.

2.1.8. The Contractor shall be familiar with the DCYF practice model and Solution
Based Casework (SBC) in order to provide services within these frameworks.
(More information can be found at
httDs:/^vww.dhhs.nh■QQv/dcvf/dGcuments/nhdcvf%202015-2019cfsD.Ddf and
http://www.solutiohbasedcasework.com/about/.)

2.1.9. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department on federally-mandated
outcome design and de-ldenltfied, aggregate data collection for program
evaluation and federal reporting purposes.

2.1.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with existing program providers including, but
not limited to Family Resource Centers, and SUD treatment and peer recovery
support service providers to ensure consistency in practice and enrollment of
clients in appropriate programming including, but not limited to:

2.1.10.1. Understanding past client assessments and utilizing a current
assessment process'to determine the proper case plan.

2.1.10.2. Employing a case plan that focuses on the individuars strengths,
seeks solutions and builds on success.

2.1.10.3. Assessing the efficacy of the case plan on an ongoing basis.
2.1.11. The Contractor shall establish a protocol within the Regional Access Point

programming to ensure the prioritization'of the Strength to Succeed referred
families, in gaining rapid access to treatment.

2.1.12. The Contractor shall Inform the Integrated Delivery Network(s) (IDNs) of this
project in order to align this work with IDN projects that may be similar or
impact the same populations and workforce issues. -

Granite Pathways ExWbll A Art%en<jment Coniraclor tnWats

RFP-20ie-BDAS-04-TARGE-01 Peje 3 ol 9 Dale
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Scope of-Sorvices

2.1.13. When treatment services cannot be provided within forty-eight (48) hours of
referral, the Contractor shall ensure the client has access to interim services.-
defined as recovery support services or services with a lower. American Society
of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Level of Care, under this contract or by referral
to an agency that has an eartier available opening in the client's service area.
This shall be accomplished through;

2.1.13.1. Making referrals to treatment providers who will complete both the
evaluation and service plan; or

2.1.13.2. Completing clinical evaluations and service plans through
subcontracts with Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors
(ML^OC) until such time as a local provider can be located, if there
are not treatment providers where the individual resides.

2.1.14. The Contractor shall ideotrfy or develop, when Indicated, appropriate Strength
to Succeed training curriculum and educational materials induding. but not
(Imrted to:

2.1.14.1. Parenting curriculum for parents and families while in treatment and
recovery including, but not limited to:

2.1.14.1.1. Recovery Curriculum, the Contractor's parenting
curriculum.

2.1.14.1.2. Nurturing Parenting: ' Families In Substance Abuse
Treatment and Recovery.

2.1.14.1.3. The Greater-Tilto'n Family Resource Center's Forever-
Hope: Families Impacted by Subslance Use Oisorder.

2.1.14.2. Prevention messaging geared for young children regarding
substance use Including, but not limited to:

2.1.14.2.1. Stages of Child Development:

2.1.14.2.2. Nurturing Parenting: Families in Substance Abuse
Treatment and Recovery

2.1.14.3. Addiction 101, which the Contrador shall develop with BOAS to be
delivered to the program partners who are not SUD treatment
providers and do not have the basic training already, including
DCYF.

2.1.14.4. DCYF Involvement 101, which the Contractor shall develop with
' DCYF to be delivered to the program partners not affiliated with
DCYF to include the DCYF pradice model and the'tenets of Solution
Based Casework.

2.1.15. The Contractor shall develop pre- and post-tests for the trainings addressed in
Subsection 2.1.14 and will collect and score the tests in order to determine
improvement gained from the training.

2.1.16. The Contractor shall utilize the 'Strength to Succeed' name, when marketing or
conducting business for this program.

2.1.17. All individuals and points of contact who have access to confidential
information during the course of providing the services under this Agreement,
shall be trained in and maintain the proper process for the handling, storage

Gfanlle Pathways Exhibit A Amendment Conifaciar inlilats

RFP-20lft-BDAS-O4-TAPGG-0l Po8C4of9 Date
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Scope of Services

and transmission of such information.

2.7. DCYP.Parent Partner Program (Peer Recovery Support)

2.2.1. The Contractor shall collaborate with the DCYF Parent Partner Program in
order to:

2.2.1.1. Hire qualified Parent Partners which shall include, but not be limited
to:

2.2.1.1.1. Developing job descriptions and standards for Parent
Partners, the program manager and supenrisory staff.

2.2.1.1.2. Posting the positions on online job boards.

2.2.1.1.3. Seeking referrals for positions from recovery programs,
the Contractor's Regional Access Program (RAP) staff,
and area agencies.

2.2.1.2. Develop program oversight and an integrated supervision model for
Parent Partners to Irtclude, but not be limited to providing a point of
contact and oversight at each of the nine (9) covered District Offices
which shall include, but not t>e limited to:

2.2.1.2.1.- Creating Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs) that
clearly address supervision, training and oversight of
Parent Partners.

2.2.1.2.2. Training Parent Partners regarding applicable
operational policies and procedures including, but not
limited to:

2.2.1.2.2.1. Wonthdurs.

2.2.1.2.2.2. Human resources practices.

2.2.1.2.2.3. Health and safety protocols.

2.2.1.3. Train Parent Partners in providing support to families with SUD/OUD
which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.2.1.3.1. OYCF's approach to service delivery and Solutions
Based Casework.

2.2.1.3.2. Policies and procedures associated with home and
community-based work.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with DCYF to establish a recruitment and

hiring plan that ensures Parent Partners are co-located in each of the nine (9)
covered District Offices'as an integrated'member of the team. The plan must
Include which offices are of higher need to staff first and then a plan with
timeframes for staffing the rest of the offices.

2.2.3. The Contractor shall ensure Parent Partners are adequately trained and'
supervised to provide peer support and. are educated regarding the goals of
peer support which include, but are not limited to:

2.2.3.1. Instilling hope in families.

2.2.3.2. Providing support end promoting self-advocacy.

Granile Pathway) Exhlt^ A Amendment 0t Conlracior tnlilais

RFP.20i6-BOAS-O4-TARGE.0t PafleSotO Date 4/23/19
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Scope of Services

2.2.3.3. Providing an understanding of the DCYF practice, poiicies, arid
regulations.

2.2.4. The Contractor shall.collaborate with the DCYF Parent Partner program to
Identify Parent Partners that are willing and able to become Certified Recovery
Support Workers (CRSWs). Upon obtaining agreement from Parent Partners
to becorhe CRSWs. the Contractor shall:

2.2.4.1. Support the parent partr>ers in ail aspects o.f certification as outlined
by the Office of Professional Licensure and Certification (OPLC).
https://www.oplc.nh.goWaicohoi-other-drug/index.htm

2.2.4.2. Ensure all components necessary for billing for CRSWs are in place
in accordance with Rule He-W513.

2.2.4.3: Enroll with Medicaid and managed care organizations.

2.3. Home Visiting Programming

2.3.1. The Contractor shall collat>orate with other agencies that provide evldenced-
based home visiting programming as outlined In Paragraph 2.3.3 and provide
assistance to them to expand Iheir delivery of home visiting programming to
open DCYF cases. (More information available at
httDs://homvee.ad.hhs.Qov/m6del8.aspxt ' Evidenced-based home visiting
programmir>g Includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.1.1. Providing Ages & Stages Questionnaires, Third Edition
Developmental screenings (ASQ-3*") (More iriformation available at
httD://aGesandstaQes.com/Droducts-services/asQ3A

2.3.1.2. Providing parent education.

2.3.1.3. Providing in-home supports.

2.3.1.4. Provldmg age and developmentally appropriate Substance Use
prevention messages and program curriculums.

2.3.1.5. Assisting families in locating and contacting community supports as
needed.

2.3.1.6. Collatwrating with DCYF case workers to monitor families" progress
and create a shared goal plan for the family.

2.3.1.7. / Collaborating with DCYF to Id.entify realistic strategies for supporting.
families arid to build success in reaching family case goals as stated
in the Solution Based Case (SBC) Plans.

2.3.1.8. Collaborating with existing Child Welfare Agencies in all nine (9)
covered District Offices to create referral relationships for Home
Visiting Services.

2.3.1.9. Utilizing Healthy Families America as a primary home visiting model
and ensuring appropriate and effective modifications are employed
for children over the age five (5) being served by home visiting. .

2.3.2. The Contractor shall 'use a Department-approved parent-child interaction
assessment tool to measure progress towards achieving the performance
measures.

2.3.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with community partners including, but not

Granite Peliiwayt ^ Exhiwi A Amendment ii Controciw Irtilaij.

RFP-2018.B0AS4M-TARGE-01 PeeeCorS Qeio */23/t9
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Now Hampshlro Dopartment of Hoalth and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
for DCYP-lnvotved Famlllos Exhibit A Amendment 01

Scope of Services

limited to;

2.3.3.1. Family Resource Centers.

2.3.3.2. Family Support New Hampshire.

2.3.3.3. Thlrteen (l3) Regional Public Health Networits.

2.3.3.4. Partnership of a Drug Free NH.

2.3.3.5. Communities for Alcohol and Drug-Free Youth (CADV).

2.3.3.6. Raymond Coalitidh for Youth (RCFY).

2.3.4; The Contractor shall use.a Department-approved, parent-child interection form
to collect a baseline and to follow up with families enrolled in home visiting
programs in order to show an increase in positive parenting skills and
knowledge of childhood development..

2.4. Relative Careglvcr Support

2.4.1. The Contractor shall develop relative caregiver support groups to help reduce
caregiver strain and create a natural system of support among relative
caregivers. The Contractor's support groups must be accessible to all nine (9)
District Office covered catchment areas and based on areas of high need.

2.4.2. The Contractor shall develop and implement the Safe Harbor Recovery
Program and Family Supports Program to recruit, train, and oversee an
extensive network of volunteers to facilitate the support groups.

2.4.3. The Contractor shall recruit and train parent partners to act as group
facilitators.

2.4.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with DCYF to erasure relative caregivers are
informed of supports including, but not limited to:

• 2.4.4.1. The Relative Caregiver specialist at DCYF and the Resource Guide
developed by DCYF.

2.4.4.2. Relative caregiver support groups in their area.

2.4.4.3. Other community resources to help support the caregiver arid the
child, and reduce caregiver strain.

2.4.5. The Contractor shall provide the Parenting a Second Time Around curriculurp
for grandparents who are caring for a minor grandchild which shall Include, but
Is not limited to:

2.4.5.1. Providing no less than four (4) workshops on relevant topics which
may include, but are not limited to:

2.4.5.1.1. Child development.

.  2.4.5.1.2. Discipline and guidance.

2.4.5.1.3. Personal care.

2.4.5.1.4. Raising teenagers.

2.4.5.1.5. An overview of support services.

2.4.5.1.6. LegaMssues.

Grertie Pathway* Exhibit A Amendment fl. Coniractixinltials lO-
RFP-20i6-BOAS^.TAPGe-0i Pago 7 of 9 Oaia 4/23/19
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
for DCYP-tnvolvod Famlllee Exhibit A Amendment PI

Scope of Services

2.4.5.2. Providing individual counseling for relative caregivers. Including
grandparents.

2.4.5.3. Providing the pamphlet A Resource Guide for New Hampshire
Relative

Carealversfhttos://www.dhhs.nh.QQv/dcvf/documents/reiativecareaive

rs.odn to relative caregivers, including grandparents.

2.4.6. The Contractor shall provide education to relative caregivers on how to interact
with their child(ren) in a developmentally-appropriate manner regarding
parental substance use disorder and. how to prevent addiction in their own
lives. The education provided will include, but not be limited to;

2.4.6.1. Strategies regarding preventing addiction in their own lives;

2.4.6.2. Strategies to reinforce healthy, pro-social behaviors;

2.4.6.3. Examples of rewards or reinforcers; and

2.4.6.4. Strategies for managing the effects of a parent with SUD.

2.5. Parent and Child Substance Use Education

2.5.1. The Contractor shall provide parent and child substance use education, using
the Nurturing Parenting program (httpi/fwww.nufturinQoarentinq.com) which
includes, but is not limited to:

2.5.1.1. Training all relevant staff in the Nurluring Parenting program.

2.5.1.2. Providing education in a variety of settings including in single or co-
facilitated group settings.

2.5.1.3. r^odifying the education for individuals and families not yet ready for
a group setting.

2.5.1.4. Collaborating with the Greater Tillon Area Family Resource Center to
offer aspects of Forever Hope's Training for Families Affected by
Substance Use.

2.6. The Contractor shall develop and submil a work plan to the Department for review and
approval within thirty (30) days of Governor and Executive Council approval of the
contract which describes the process for .ensuring the completion of all aspects of the
Scope of Services.

2.7. Data and Reporting

2.7.1. The Contractor shad submit monthly narrative reports to the Department
including a summary of project progress, barriers met and addressed, and
general aggregate information regarding the families served by the program.
The aggregate, information must include, but is not limited to:

2.7.1.1. Primary drug of choice for family members.

2.7.1.2. General treatment access information for family members'

2.7.1.3. Number and ages of children served by program.

2.7.1.4. Date of enrollment in prograrh.

2.7.1.5. Living arrangements for each child served by this program including,
but not limited to in his or her own home with parents; in a relative

i±LGranite Patriwayt Exhibll A Amendmeni ft i Cor\traclOf iniUsis.

RFP.2016-8OAS-04-TARGe-0t Peoe8ol9 Date ^^3/19
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New Hampshire Oopartmant of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Progremmlng
for OCYF-lnvoiyed Families Exhibit A Amendment #1

Scope of Services

caregiver home; in a foster horne; or in a residential group home at
the time of the referral, until program discharge.

2.7.1.6. Change in the living status of each child.

2.7.1.7. Number of provider organizations providing direct sen/ices as listed
in the scope of service.

2.7.1.8. Number of parent partners hired and the district offices covered.

2.7.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department-selected technical
assistance vendor id collect de-ldentiried. aggregate data and implement an
evaluation process that Is culturally appropriate for the population served and is
approved by the Department.

3. Performance Pleasures

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure that the following performance indicators are quarterly
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide evidence-based home visiting services to one
huridred percent (100 %) of families referred to the program that require horne
visiting services as part of their treatment plan.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall Increase training opportunities for the early childhood and
home visiting wortcforce in substance misuse prevention, recovery, and trauma
informed care by three (3) trainings per calendar year and increase the
knowledge of substance misuse prevention, recovery and trauma informed
care among the early childhood and home visiting woricforce. as demonstrated
by an increase of (10%) in aggregate as measured quarterly from training pre
tests to training post-tests

• 3.1.3. The Conlraclor shall ensure that eighty percent (80%) of families referred to the
program receive access to treatment or interim treatment services within forty-
eight (48) hours of referral.

3.2. Quarterly, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the Department,- a corrective
action plan for any performance measure that was not achieved.

GfBnlla Pfllhwayt ExNWl A Afliendmeni il Conlraclof inlUali

RFP.2018-B0AS-O4-TARG6-01 Page 9 oT 9 Ode
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STATE OP NEW BAMRHIRE

l>?p>ARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN S^VICES

DIVISION FOR BEBA VIORAL BEAL TB

BVREA i) OFDRmANDALCOBOL SERVICES

103 PLEASANT SjHEET. CONCORD, NB .03301
603.2714 i 10 1 «MS2^S345 Est <738

jFei; '<0>.2714i03 jiDp Aom i«)0r739.3M4

ApHM1.2018

His Excellency. GoyemW OiHstopfwr T-. Sununu
end the Honorable Couhd)

S^teHouee
Concord.; NewHempshii^ 03301

G A C/^p/ipved
bate f/y/yiP
Item # o

REQUESTED ACTION

Authoftze the Oepartment of Health end Human Services. OMslon for Behavldrel Health, to
enter into an agreement with the vehdora listed below, for the pmvislpn of Targeted' Prevention
Programming, for pCYF.Invo.tv^ FiBmilles with Sutstanoe Use Disorder in an amount hot to exce^
$744,197.40, effective u^n date of Governor and Council approval, through June 30. 2019. 100%
Federal Funds.

Contractor Narhe Vendor ID Cori^ctor Addrms SFY ̂ 18 SPY 2019 Total Price

Limitation

Granite Pathways 226900:

Boot

10 Ferry Street
Concord. NH 03301

$.121,770 $487,111 $608,889

The Family
Resource Center

at Gprtiam

162412r

BQOi
123 Main Street

Gorham.NH 03581
■  $27,082 $108,247 $135,309

•  ' . r-

Total $148,840 $696,366 STiM.IBS

amounts within the price lirhhation and adjust encu'mbrenoes between ̂ te ̂cii.l Years thmugh the'
Budget Qfride, without approval frtm Governor and Executive Coundl. If needed end justlfi^.

0&'gfr-92-9206ld-2S6^60^ HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF H^TH AND
HUMAN SVS, H'HS: bM$l0N FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,
OPIOlb STR GRANT,

SFY ClaailAccbunt Class Tltie Job Numl^'f Total-Amount

SFY18 102-50.0731 Contracts for Program ̂ rvlces • 92052559 $148,040.

SFY19 ■  102-500731' ■ ■ .Contracts for Program Services 92052559 $595,359

Total .$$744,198
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Kb Excellency. Governor,CMstcpher T. Sununu
ertd the Honombb Ccundl

PoQe 2 of 3

EXPLANATION.

The purpose of this request is to provide Substance Use Disorder prevention and earty
Intervention services to children (from birth through age ten (10)} invotved with Division for Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF) and their parents/careglvers who have e substance use disorder,
statewide, in order to ensure accessible. Integrated services that wfi) result In reduang and mitigating
childhood trauma that results from substance use In the family. Services to be provided include
training and assisting partner programs developing end Implementing strategies that assist the
target population. These contrects were developed specifically for the target population using research
on best practices,'technical assistance from the Substance .Abuse and luiental Heatth Services.
Administration, guldanoe from existing Division for Children. Youth and Families Parent Partners,, and
collaboration wfthin the Department.

In. 2016, the State of New Hampshire experienced four hundred eighty-five (485) deaths from
drug overdoses. It Is critical thai providers develop Integrated services, and approaches to rheet
Individual client needs, and maximize State and Federal dollars to meet the public's demand for these
specific services.

The State of New Hampshire was awarded funding authorized by the 2l8t Century CURES Act
through the Substance Abuse and-Mentar Health Services Administration (SAMHSA). SAMHSA Is
overseeing the process for states to.receive federal funding through the State Targeted Response to
the Opioid Crisis Crants Program.

These two contracts constitute one of the projects that will be implemented under the 2i8t
Century CURES Act funding, including the following tervtces and acbvities;

•  Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant and Postpartum Women.

•  Naloxone Distribution to Individuals transitioning from Corrections to the Community.
•  Project Management Support; Training. Technical Assistance. Data Collection and Reporting

Consultant.

•  Re-entry Care Coordination for Women Transitioning from Corrections to the Community.

•  Recovery Support Services and Parenting Programming for Pregnant Women and Parents In
Recovery.

•  Recovery Support Services for School-Aged Youth in Recovery.

•  Targeted Prevention Programming for Division for Children Youth and Families Involved
^Families with Substance Use Disorder.

New Hampshire seeks to fill the current gaps'ln critical specialty services for populations.that
ere dispropcnionately affected by opioid use disorder and substance use disorder, end those that are
iimtted in capacity to sen/e high-need populations.

Granite Pathways and Family Resource Center at Gorham were selected for this project
through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals/Applications was posted on The .
Department of Health and Human Services' web site from December 19. 2017 through January 22,
2018. The Department received two (2) proposals. The proposals/applications were reviewed and
scored by a team of Individuals with program specific knovriedge. The review included.a thorough
discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the proposals/applications. The Bid Summary is
attached.

As referenced In the Request for Proposals end in Exhibit C-1. Revisions'to General P.rovlslons,
of this contract, the Department reserves the option to extend contract services for up to two (2)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties end approval of the Governor end Executive Council.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T,.Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Aprilll.2018
Page 3 of 3

Should the Governor end Exe^ve Council not authorize this request, children Impacted by
addiction laeues within their family may not receive the serviced and-targeting prevention mesaaging
necessary to support them with current needs and to assist them with avoiding addictiofi issues In the
future. In addition, relative caregiverB may not receive the support neoessa^ to continue to support
the children In their family impacted by addiction.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from OHMS, Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration, Center for Substance Abuse Treatment, Targeting Capacity Expansion State
Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis Grant (CFDA 0 03.788 FAIN Ti080246)

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S> Fox
Director

Approved by:

CO

J^^nsy A. Meyers
Imissloner

77m Otpertmint efHtoithoJui Human Strvica' Mistion U to join c6fn/nu/ii(M ond fitmiliu'
■ in providing epporUtniiiu for citixanM to ochitut tttallh and intUpondonci.
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Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Targeted Prevention Programming for
■pC.YMnyotved Families

RFP Name
RFP-201fr«OA$-04.TARGE

RFP Number

Reviewer Names.
Bidder Name

Granite Pathways

Pa«B/Fan
Maximum

Point® ,
Actual: '
Polnta

^ Erica Unenei, Otredv.'Btrresu of '
' CMSetO Btfw^oral HealOi

TOO 617 ;
4 Gerttto Plarxl^ Pvet® PrDgraii
' SpedaM. OCYF

2
The Family Resource Center 700 6S7

^ AiaetoMornv Home VhlDng Program
" SteoWnr. DPKS

Don Hiinttr. ntnnhg and RaWaw
ArWyat. BOAS. COST

. . .

^ Uwrta Hesin. SustncM Atfnln ni.
oerVBOAS nrunce. COST
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FORM NUMBER P07 (venloo S/8/1S)

Subjeci:

Notie'e: ThU ojjtcmeol eod e» of in iQihmenu chaU become pubUc upon wbtnission lo Govmior and
• Executive Council for appfoyeJ. Any iAfermaiion thai is private, conOdcntial or proprieiajy must

be cl»riy idenlificd lo the agency and agreed to in writing prior to figtjing the contract.

agreement

The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.) StetoAgencyNfme |
KH Deparuneni of Health and Human Services

1.2 Sutc Ageocy Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Granite Pathways

1.4 Comreciof Address

10 Ferry Street
Concord, NH 03301

U Oontrador Phone

Number

603.931-3703

1.6 Account Number

05-95.92-920510.25590000-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2019

1.8 Pnee umitalton

8608,889

1.9 Contracting Officer for.State Agency
E. Maria Reinenann, Esq. '
Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

l.H C^iWiorSi^iure

(  /"It—-n. ../ •/ IT.

1.12 Name and Title of Conimctor Signatory

Zh'^ishnc ffTsi(^cvoi"
■ l.ljrXck'ftowlcdgcmeril: Sti^of .Countydf M^V/iryiCf'CJ-'

On ^ 0^1*^ .before the undersigned officer,personalty appeared the person identified In block 1.12, onaiisfactorily
proven lo be the person whose name Is signed in block 1.11. ar>d ockrrowlcdged ih« srtte executed this document in the capacity

r.13.1 Signatttre gf-Noiary Public or Justice of the Peace

1.13.2 Nanie and Title ofNotary or Justice of the Peace r, t ,

•  fVel , fvbh(^ ■
1.14 State Agency Signature

iCc.

1.15' Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by the Nii. Depaitmcni of Adtninisiraiion. Division of Personnel Of applicable)

Qy. Director, On:

1.17 Approv^ by tl

By. rjy
c Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable) ,

AAy\^ (lujwni* ■/!*».. r'^P
1.18 Approval by the Governor and

f ^
e Council i^oppZ/'coWey j

On;

Page 1 of 4
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2.' KMPLOYMSNTOF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New |{ucpsliin,'ftetifls
(hrou^ the agency idcolificd in block 1.1 C'StHe"), eogajci
contJictof identified tn block 1.3 rContrector") to perfonn,
and the Contntclor chall perfonn, the work or calc of goods, or
both, ideetified sod more particularty described ia the snacbcd
EXHIBrr A which ia iocorporned herein by rcfcience '
{-Services").

3. QTECnVE DATE/COMPLETION OP SERVICES.
3.1 Notwiihstanding any provision of (his Agrconcai to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire,-if.
applicable, this Agreement, and.dl obligations of the paniet
hwcundcr, shall become effective on the date the Ooveroor
and Executive Cound) approve this Agroemeni as Indicated in
block 1.18, unless DO such approval is required, in svhich case
the Agreeroent shall become effective'on the dale the
Agreement is signed by thc'Siale Agency as shown inblKk
1.14 (-Effective Date").
3.2 (/the Contractor commenocs the Services prior to the
Effective Date, ail Services perforrodl by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Due shall be pofono^ at the sole risk of the
Contnctor, and in the event that this Agrccmett does not
become effective, thf Stale shall have rto liability to the
Contractor, including without limiution, any obligarion to pay
the Contractor for any costs irtcurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATCJRJE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State bereunder, including,
without lirnitation, the continuance of paymertts hetcunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
offuixls, and in no event slull the Stale be liable for any
payments hcrcunda in excess of such available appropriated
fu^i. In (he event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
payment until such flmds'beeomc available, if ever, and shall
have the right to tcrminaie this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Siote
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block l.ti in the event funds in that
Accoum are reduced or.unavuloble.

5. CONTRACT PRlCEflfRlCE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contreci price, method of payment, end terms of
payment are idoitifidl and more particularly'dcscribed in
ElbuBIT B which is incorporita] herein by reference.
5.2 The paymeni by the Stale of (he contract price shsll be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for ell
expenses, of whatever nature incuircd-by the Conuactor in the
performance hereof, and thdl be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for (he Services. The Stele
Shall have no liability to the Contractor otha ihu the comract
price.

Page 2

5 J The Sute reserves (he right to ottta /bom any afflou&u
otberwise payable to the Coal/actor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounis required or pamitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any othv provisioo of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provisioo io this Agreemen! to the
cootrery, end ootwilhstaniding tmcxpccted dmimstances, io
00 evoit shall (be total of all payinesU authorized^ or actually
mwtf. bereunda, exceed (he Mce liinitaooo set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPUANCe BY CONTRACTOR WITB LAWS
AND REGULAHONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
oppORfDNiry.
d.l In oormoctioo with the performAnec of the Services, the
Contnctor shall comply with all statutes, tawi, reguistiotu,
and ordcn of fedend, state, county or mtmicipaJ tuthqrities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Coscrvtor,
ir»cluding,'bui not limti^ to, civil rights artd equal opporluniry
laws.* This may include the requiremeol to utilize auxiliary,
aids and services to ensure that persons with comrounicalion ■
disabi.Utie*,<includinf vision, hearing and speech, ess
communicale with, reeeivx tofonnaiion from, and cont^
information to the Cootraaor. In addition, (he Conbtcior

shall comply with all applicable Mpyright laws.
6 j During the term of this Agrecmeai, the Cootractor shall
not discriminate agaion employees or applicants for
cmpIoytDoit because of race, color, religion, creed, age, set.
handicap', sexuai'orientaiion, or national origia and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimioatioo.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of (he
United States, the Conirecior ̂ 11 comply with all (he
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opporturiity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Slates beportrrKni of.Labor (41
CJ'.R. Port 60). and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Stale ofNew Hampshire or the United Stato issue to
implement these regulations.-The Contractor further agrees to
perinit (ha State or United Suites access to any of the
Cdnlractor'i books, records end accounts for the purpose of
ascertainihg compliance with all rules, rcgulitions and orders,
and (he covenants, tenru and corvliiions of (his Agrejement.

7. PERSONNE.L.
7.1 The Contractor ̂ 1) at its own expense provide ell
personnel i>ec'e$s^ to perform the Services. The Contractor
warnuns thu all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perfonn the Services, and shall be propaly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under ell applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months efier the
Completion Date in block (.7, the Contractor shill not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined elTort to
perform (he Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, tvho is metaiaDy involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

of4

Contractor Loitials

Ditt^WTjK
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Agreement. ThisprovitionihiUsurviwctmninationofthis
-Afroemenl.
7 J TTjc Contracting Officer ipedfied in block 1.9. or his or
hw lucceuor, ibaU be ̂  State's rtpreseolarive. In the event
of any dispute coocOTing the interpretaiioo of ihis ApeoncDt,
the Contracting Officer's decision ibaJI.be final for the State.

t. EVENT OF DRFAOLT/RBJVfEDffiS.
8.1 Any one or more of the foUowing acts or ornissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hoeuodcr
{"Event ofOefitulf);
8.1.1 fa lure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
cehedule;
8.12 failure to submit any report required hcreunder; atxi/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
92 l^on the occroTenee of any Event ofOefsuIi, the Stale
nsy take any one, or more, or.alJ. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a wrincn notice spcci/ying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
abKBce of a grcata or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
n« timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) daj3 after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contraaora wrincn notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agromcnt and ordering that the portion of the contract price
•which would otherwise accrue to the Coalractorduring the
period from the date of such notice until such lime as the Sisic
deterniincj that the Contractor has cured the Event of Defauli
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 SCI off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Evcm of DcfauJi; and/or
8.2.4 ueat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of iu
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/COKPrDENTlALJTY/
PRESBRVAnON.
9.1 As used in this ̂ rccmeot. the word "data- shall mean all
infofmatlon and things, dm'eloped or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, fofmulac, sun-cys, maps, charts, sound recordings, vidw
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
gr^hic representations, compulcr programs, computer
prinlouis, notes, lettcn, memoranda, papers,.and documcnu
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data end any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with ftmds provided for thai purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be Runted to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality ofdala shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapia 91-A or other aisting law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of aa eariy (ennination of
^8 Agreement for any reason other than the conqtldion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OfRca, not lua than .fift.ccn (15) dayt after tie date of
terrt^ailon. a'rtport CTeromailoo Repon") describing m
detail all Services pofomed, snd the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, cubject
matter, content, and number of copies of the TenniAarion
Report shall be Idcalical to those of any Final Report
described io the attached EXmBfT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TOTHESTATE: Inthe performance of this Agrtemcnl the Contractor is in all
re^ieeia an independent contrtetOT, and is neither an agent nor
in employee of the State. Nother the Contractor nor any of i«
officera, employees, ̂ enu or matnbcn shall have authority to
bind the State or reeerve any beaeCti, workers' corapensation
or otha cmoluinenu provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONrRACre.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otheAwse transfer anyloteren b this Agreement without the prior writlen notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMMFlCAnON. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold hannJess the Sute, its officers and'
OTployecs. from and gainst any and all losses suffered by the
Stat^ iU officers and employees, and any and all claims,
tiabilities or penalties asserted a^ost the Stale, its officers
Md employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of"
based or resuHing from, arising out of(oi which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contraaor. Notwiihnnnding the forgoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiv® of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
rcserrcd to the Stale. This coveoani in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination ofihls Agreerncm.

M. INSURANCE.
14.) The Contractor shall, at its sole eapensc, obtain ond
maintain in force, and shall require.any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the followinc
insurance;
H.l.j comprehensive general liability insurahce against all
claims ofbodily injuiy. death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than Sl.OOO.OOOper occurrcoce and 52,000 000
aggregate; and '
M. 1.2 special cause of lots coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in on amount riot
less than tO% of the whole replacement value of the property
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on poUcy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the NJi. Departmcnj of
Insurance, and issued by insuren licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

of 4
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14J Tlfo Cootncior thill Aimish lo the Contnetioj Officer
identified io block 1.9, or hit or ha successor, e catiScste(i)
of ioomrrce for ill insursnce requhed imda this Agreeisenl.
Cootroctor thill also ftimish to the Contncting Officer
identified io block 1.9, or Ui or ba cucoesior, ccrtificaie(i) of
insunoce for ill resewil(i) of iosunocc required uodo lUs
Agreersent oo lata (bin thirty (30) days prior lo the apireb'on
due of each of the insurtnce policies. Tte catipc«te(i) of
irtfunncc irtd my renewals thereof thill be articbcd and arc
incorpomted herein by refoeace. Etch oat)ficDte<s) of
insurance Ihill contain • clnue reqoirieg the insxira lo
provide the Contracting OfSca identified in block l.9,orhU
or ha cuecesar, no less thin thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellition ormodificaiion of (he policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreemeoi, the Contrtctor egrees,
cenifia and warrants that the Contractor is in conqiliance with
OTCxempl fiom, the requirements ofN^. RSA chapter 281-A
C'tyorken' Contpt/xiathn").
]y2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requlreroenta of Nil. RSA chapta2fil-A, ConMctor shall
maintain, and require my subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers'.Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreemenl. Coittra^or shall
furnish the Contrectiag Offica identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proofof Worken' Compensation in the
manner described inN.H. RSA chapter 281-A and my
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached md are
incorporated haein ̂  reference. The State shall not be
rcjponsibie for payment of my Worken' Compcnution
premiums or for my other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise unda applicable State of New Hampahire Worken'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services unda this Agreement.

Id. WAIVER OR BREACH. No failure by (he Stale to
enforce my provisions hoeof afta aay'Event ofDcfault shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Ei^i of
Default, or my subsequent Event of Dcfcuit. No exprm
failure to enforce my Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enfotce each md all of the
provisions hereof upon any furtha or otha Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

11 NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hceto to the otha party»'
fhali be deemed to have bem duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addres^ to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

(8. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instiumeni in writing signed
by the panics hereto md only oAa approva] of such
amendment, walva or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Coundl of the State ofNew Hampshire unless no

mch approval is required unda the drcumstaooe pumiant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OP AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
ThU Agjcemeot shall be coostnred in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Banpshira, and is binding upon md
tnures to tbc bcitefii of the parties sod ibdx respective
successors md aasigna. The wording used in this A'grecmait
is the wording chosen by the parties to expresa Ihor mutual
imod, md do rule of construction shall be applied against or
in &wr of any party.

20. THIRD PARTTSS. Tbc parties hoeto do not Intend lo
benefit any third parties md this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer toy such benefit

21. HEADIN<2S. Tbe headings throughout the Agreonem
are for r^erence purposes only, nod (he words contained
thaein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the inte/prctalion, construction or meanisgofthe
provisions of this Agreement. ■

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisiom set
forth in the altaehcd EXHIBIT C arc incorporated bacin by
reference.

13. SEVERABnjTV. In tbe event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to my state' or federal law. the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain In fbli force md
effect

• 24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed m original, constitutes tbe entire Agreement and
undcrsimding between the parties, and'supascdcs ail prior
Agrecmenis md undersmdings relating hereto.
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New Hempshire DepArtnwnt of Heafth end Human Servicee
Tftrget^ Preventfon Progrsmmlng
for DCYF*lnvolved Femlllos CxtiEbIt A

Scope of Services.

1. Provisions Applicable to AJI Services
1.1. The Contraobr shall submit s detailed description of the lanQuags assistance

services they will provide to persons with llmfted Engilah proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or aervfces wtthin ten (10) days of the
contract efTactlve date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future ieglsletlvo oction by the New
Hampshire Genersl Court or federal or state court orders may have ar) Impact on the
Services described herein, the State ̂ oncy has the right to modify Service prtoritles
ertd expenditurs requirements under this Agreement so es to achieve compHanoe
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees that In the performance of any services Involving the
collection, .transmission, storage, or disposition pf data obtained or oaated.on behalf
of DHHS, shall be subject to the requirements stated In Exhibit K.

1.4. The Contractor agrees that In the performanoe of any services Involving the
collection, transmission, storage, or disposttlon of data containing protected health
Information (PHI) or In the case of substance use disorder (SUD) data created by a
Part 2 provider on behalf of DHHS. shall be subject to the requirements stated In
Exhibit I end 45 CFR Part 2.

1.5. The Contractor egrees that In the porforrrtartce of any services all staff members
shall have trBin!f>g In ponfldentlality end InforrnstJon securtty relating to the
Information, files end data that Is Involved In the performance of tha contract.

1.6. The Contractor agrees that any database, dashboard, or information sysiem
designed, built, or rrwjdifted on behalf of DHHS shall be defined and sublect to the
requirements In Exhibit K. Exhibit I; and all appllceblo NH Department of Information
Technology (DolT) staryJards, policies, and procedures.

2. Scope of Services
2.1. General Provtelona

2.1.1. The Contractor shall provide services to the Division for Children. Youth and
Families (OCYF)-lnvolved children (from birth through age ten (10)) and their
p.arents/careglvers who have a substance use djsord.er for nine (9) District
Offices listed below. See Exhibit A-1 for more details.

2.1.1.1. Claremont

2.1.1.2. Concord.

2.1.1.3. Conway.

2.1.1.4. Keene.

2.1.1.5. Leconla.

2.1.1.6. Manchester.

GnmftaPflthwaya exWMA Coftnwor
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New Hampshiro Depenment of Health and Human Services
Targotod Provontion Programming
for OCYP.^nvolvediFamilloa Exhibit A

2.1.1.7. Rochester.

2.1.1.8. Seecoast.

2.1.1.9. Southern.

2.1.2. The Contractor shall assist In developing a strong dollat>oration between
agencies within Ihe Department Including, but not limited to the Bureau of Drug
and Alcohol Services (BOAS), the Division for Children. Youth, and Families
(DCYF). the Division of Public Health Services (OPHS). end the Bureau for
Children's Behavioral Health (6C8H) by creating and Implementing programs
targeted at DCYF-lnvolved children and their parents/ primary caregivers with
substance use disorder In order to:

2.1.2.1. Reduce and mitigale childhood trauma by:

2.1.2.1.1. Increasing access (o, and participation In.- evidence-based home
visiting services;

-2.1.2.1.2. Reducing the child's rIsK of substance use issues; and

2.1.2.1.3. Increasing training oppcrtunltles for the early childhood and
home visiting workforce In substance misuse prevention,
recovery, and t/euma-lnfomned care so that the workforce is

better prepared to address the challenges of this poputab'on.

2.1.2.2. Engage, educate, and empower parents/primary caregivers In-a peer-
to-peer model .to Increase family protective factors end reduce risk
factors in order to better support childhood social and emotional needs

fy: ■

2.1.2.2.1. Fostering positive parent/primary caregiver child attachmerit;

2.1.2.2:2. Increasing parent/primary caregiver kr^owledge about childhood
development and learning;

2.1.2.2.3. Increasing resiliency and social connectedness in
parents/primary caregivers; and

2.1.2.2.4. Educating parents on the topic of trauma for chlldren.and the
risk continued substance use poses to the child.

2.1.3. The Contractor shell maintain one (1) point of contact and one (1) alternate
contact who can receive requests from the nine (0) covered District Offices the
Contractor supports that will refer families to this program.

2.1.4. The Contractor shall ensure that families who are referred for services are

offered all program components in a timely fashion, with the understanding that
DCYF involvement has-a twelve (12) month limeframe for permar>ency
decisions that can impact a parent's parental rights.

2.1.5. The Contractor shall re-offer scnrlcas at two (2) end six (6)' weeks after the
initial offer to families that decline the Inftlal offer of services, cease to
participate, or do not attend a scheduled visit. -

p#tf«way$ E*WMA Contncter InWala
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Now Hempohiro Deportment of Hoafth and Human Sorvlcoo
Targetod Provontlon ProgramrrilnB
for DCYF-fnvolvod Famllioo ExhIbK A

2;1.6. the Contractor shall collaborate with Oeparlmerit partners when any
tssues/barrters arise Including, but not limited to, timely access to treatrnent
and program partner capacity issues such as program waitlists or lack of
treatment provider capacity.

2.1.7. The Contractor shall ensure that when there Is an infant Safe Plan of Care

■  <ISP0C) for a child, all partlcipetirtg partners are knowledgeable about the plan
of care and em assisting OCYF and the family to'fulfill (he plan of care by
having a Parent Partner schedule a call with the Identified egencles end
workers within the first two (2) weeks of receiving a referral to the Strength to

■ Succeed program.

2.1.8. The Conlractor ahall be familiar with the DCYF practice model end Solution
Based Cesework (SBC) In order to provide services within these frameworks.
(More Inforrhation can be* found at ^
httbs://www.dhhs.nh.Qov/dcvf/dQcum6nts/nhdc^^2020l5'2Q19d9b'.Ddf and
httb://wwy.80lutlonba8edca8ework.com/abQul/.1

2.1.9. The Conlractor shall collaborele with the Oepartmenl on federelly-mandated
outcome design and de-ldenilfled, aggregate data collection for program
evehjatiort and federal reporting purposes.

2.1.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with existing program providers including, but
(Wt limited to Family Resource Centers, and SUD treatment and peer recovery
support service providars to ensure consistency In practice and enrollment of
clients In appropriate programming Including, but hot limited to:

•2.1.10.1. Understanding past client assessments and utilizing a current
assessment process to determine the proper case plan.

2.1.10.2. Employing a case plan that.focuses on (he Individual's strengths,
seeks solutions and builds on success.

2.1.10.3. Assessing theefflcecy of the case plan on an ongoing basis.

2.1.11. The ContraclOf shall establish a protocol within the Regional Access Point
programming to ensure the prioritization' of the Strength to Succeed referred

families. In gaining rapid access to treetment.

2.1.12. The Contractor shell Inform the Integrated Delivery Netwoik(s), (IDNs) of this
project in order to align this work wIth.lDN projects that may be simllar or
Impact the same populations and workforce issues.

2.1.13. When treatment services cennoi be provided within forty-eight (48) hours of
referral, the Contractor shall ensure the client has access lo Interim services,
defined as recovei7 support services or services with a lower American Society
of AddlcUpn Medicine (ASAM) Level of Care, under this contract or by referral
to an agency that has an earlier available opening in the client's service area.

This shall be accomplished through:

o
G/snfie PoOrwjyj EjMba A Conftctv MUel) j
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New Hompahtre Department of Health and Human Services
TofBeted Prevention Pro0rammlng
for OCYF*lnvolvod Famlliea Exhibit A

2.1.13.1. Making referrels .to treatmisnt providera who will complete both the
•  evaluation and. service plan; or

2.1.13.2. Completing clinical evaluations and service plans through subcontracts
with Master Licensed Alcohol- and Drug Counselors (MLADC) until
such lime as a local provider can be located, if there are not treatment
providers-wtiere the Individual resides.

2.1.14. The Cor^tractor-shatl Identify Of develop, when Indicated, approprlale Slrenglh
to Succeed training curriculum and educational materials Including, but not"
limited to: .

2.1.14.1. Parenting curriculum for parents and families while In treatment and

recovery including, but not limited to:

2.1.14.1.1. Recovery Curriculum, the Corttractcr's parenting curriculum.

2.1.14.1.2. Nurturing Parenllng: Farriilles In Substance Abuse Treatment
and Recovery.

2.1.14.1.3. The Greater-Tilion Family Resource Center's Forever Hope:
Families Impacted by Substance Use Disorder;

2.1-.14.2. Prevention rriessaging geared for yourfg children regarding substance
use including, but not limited to:

2.1.14.2.1. Stages of Child Dovolopment:

2.1.'14.2.2. Nurturing Parenting; Families In Substance Abuse Treatment
and Recovery

2.1.14.3. Addiction 101, which the Contractor shall develop vrith BOAS to be
delivered to the program partners who are not SUO treatment
providers and do not have the basic training eiready. including OCYF.

2.1.14.4. DCYF Involvement 101. which the Conlraclor shall develop with DCYF
to be delivered to the program-partners noi affiliated with OCYF to
include the DCYF practice model and the tenets of Solution Based
Casework,

2.1.15. .The Contrector shall develop pre- and post-tests for the trainings addressed In
Subsection 2.1.14- and will colled and'score the tests In order to determine
Improvement-gained fixim the training.

2.1.16. The Contractor shall utilize the 'Strength to Succeed" name, when marketing or.
conducting business for this program.

^  2.1.17. •All Individuals and points, ol contact who have access to confidential
information duririg the course of providing the services under this Agreement.
Shall be trained In and maintain the proper process for the handling, storage
end transmission of such Information.

2.2. DCYF Parent Partner Program (Peer Recovery Support)

Gmnko PiiWwar* Co«n»cl(x WtHU,
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New Hsmp.ehire Oepartmoftt of Health and Human Servtcee
Targetod Provehtlon Programming
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2.2.1. The Contractor shall collaborate with the DCYF Parent Partner Program In
order to:

2.2.1.1. Hire qualified Parent Partners which shad Include, but not be limited to:

2.2.1.1.1. Developing job descriptions and standards for Perent Partners,
the program manager and supervisory staff.

2.2.1.1.2. Posting (he positions on online Job boards.

2.2.1.1.3. Seeklrtg referrals for positions from recovery programs, the
Contractor's Regional Access Program (RAP) staff, and area
agencies.

2.2.1.2. Develop program .oversight and an integrated supervision model (or
Parent Partners to Include, but not be llrfilted to providing a point of'
contact and oversight at each of the nine (9) covered District Offices

which shall lriclude, but not be limited to: ' '

2.2.1.2.1. Creating Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs) that clearly
address supervision, training end oversight of Parent Partners.

2.2.1.2.2. Training Parent Partners regarding applicable operational
policies and procedures including, but not lirrilted to:

2.2.1.2.2.1. Wortt hours.

2.2.1.2.2.2. Human resources practices.

2.2.1.2.2.3. Health and safety protocols.

2.2.1.3. Train Parent Partners In providing support to families wfth SUD/OUD

which shall include, but rwt be limited to:

2.2.1.3.1. DYCF's approach to service delivery end Soiutioris Based
Casework.

2.2.1.3.2. Policies and procedures associated with home and community-
based work.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with DCYF to establish e recruitrnent and
hiring plan that ensures Pareni Partners are. co-located in each of the nine (9)
covered District Offices as an inlegraled member of the team. The plan must
Include which offices are of higher need to staff first and then a plan with
limeframes for staffing the rest of the offices.

2.2.3. The Contractor shall ensure Parent Partners ere adequately trained and
supervised to provide peer support end are educated regarding the goals of
peer support which include, but are not limited to:

2.2.3.1. Instilling hofM In families.

2.2.3.2. Providing support and promoting self-advocacy.

2.2.3.3. Providing an understanding of the DCYF practice, policies, and
regulations.

Gfinlie Piilhw9y» • ExhlMA Conlracto/InWah
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New Hompahlro Dopartmeni gf HeattP and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
for DCYF-^nvolyed Familiee Exhibit A

2.2.4. The Contractor shall cdlIat>ora'te'with the DCYF Parent Partner program to
identity Parenl-Partners that are wflling end able to become Certified Recovery
Support Workers (CRSWa). Upon obtaining agreement from Parent Partners
to become CRSWb. the Cor^tTBctcr shall:

2.2.4.1. Support the parent partners In all aspects of certification as outlined by
the Office of Professional LIcehsure and CertlficaHon (OPLC).
https:/Ayww.oplc.nh.gov/8lcohoI'Clher-druo/lndex.htm

2.2.4.2. Ensure ad components necessery for billing (or CRSWs are In place In
.eocordance wth Rule He-W5t3.

2.2.4.3. Enroil with Medicald end managed care orgsftizatlons.

2.3. Home N^sltlng Programming

2.3.1.- The Contractor shall colla^rala with other egencies tha.t provide evidenced-
based home visffing programming as outliried In Paragraph 2.3.3 and/provide
assfstancB to tham to expand their delivery of home visiting programming to
open D.CYF cases. (More information available at
https://horhvee.acf.hhs-.aov/modflls.asQxt • Evldenced-based home visiting
programming Irtdudes. but Is not limited'to:

^•3-1 ■ 1 ■ Providing Ages A Stages Queslionnaires. Third Edition Developmental
screenings (ASQ-S'") (Mo/e Information available et
http://aQesand5taQes.eom/ofoducts-scfvices/asQ-3/t

2.3.1.2. Provldingparenl educstlon.

2.3.1.3. Providing In-home supports.

2.3.1.4. Providing age and developrT>ent8lly appropriate Substance Use
prevention messages snd program curriculums.

2.3.1.5. Assisting-families In locating and contacting community supports as
needed.

2.3..1.6. Collaborating with DCYF case workers to monitor families' progress
and create a shared goal plan for the family.

2.3.1.7. Collaborating with DCYF to .Identity realistic strategies for supporting
families and to build success In reaching family case goals as stated In
the Solutlofi Based Case (SBC) Plans.

2.3.1.8. Collaboratirig with existing Child Welfare Agencies in ell nine (9)
covered District Offices to create referral relationships for Home
Visiting Services.

2.3.1.9. Utilizing Healthy Families America as a primary home visiting model
end ensuring appropriate end effective modifications are employed for
children over the age five (5) telng served by home visiting.

Onmtt P«UTway» ExhIWiA Conwctor Wtob
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2.3.2. The Contrector shall use a Department-approved parBnt-^lld Interaction
assessment tool to measure progress towards echleving the performance
measures.

2.3.3. The Contrector shall oollaborate with community partners Including, but not
limited to;

2.3.3.1. Family Resource Centers.

2.3.3.2. Family Support New Hampshire.

2.3.3.3. Thirteen (13) Regional Public Health Networks.

2.3.3.4. Partnership of a Drug Free NH.

2.3.3.5. ComnHinllies for Alcohol and Drug-Free Youth (CADY).

2.3:3.6. Raymond Coalition for Youth (RCFY).

2.3.4,. The. Contractor shell use a Department-approved, parent-child interaction form
to collect a baseline and to follow up with families enrolled In home visiting
programs in order to show- an Increasa In positive perentlng skills and
Knowledge of childhood development.

-2.4. Relative Caregiver Support

2.4.1. The Conlractor shall develop relative caregiver support groups to help reduce
caregiver strain and create a natural system of support among relative
caregivers.

2.4.1.1. The Contractor's support groups must be accessible to all nine (9)
Oisldct Office covered catchment areas and based on areas of high
need.

2.4.1.2. The Contractor's Safe Harbor Recovery Program and Family Supports
Program shall be used-to recruit, train, and oversee an extensive
network of volunteers to facilitate the support groups.

2.4.1.3. The Contractor's Parent Partners may act as group facilitators upon
receiving proper training.

2.4.2. The Contractor shall colialwrale with DCYF to ensure relative caregivers are
Informed of supports Including, but not limited to:

2.4.2.1. The Relative Caregiver specialist at DCYF and the Resource Guide

developed by DCYF.

2.4.2.2. Relative caregiver support groups In their area.

2.4.2.3. Other community resources to help support the caregiver end the child,
and reduce caregiver strain.

2.4.3. The Contractor shall provide education to relative caregivers on how to Interact
with their childfren) In a developmenlally-appropriate manner regarding
parental substance use disorder and how to prevent addiction in their own

lives. The education provided will include, but not be limited to:

GmnJl® pitftway* ExMMA Confrictar tnltuh .( _ ^ ■
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2.4.3.1. Strelegle's r^artiing prevWng addiction In Ihelrown lives:""

2.4.3.2. Strategies to reinforce healthy, pro-social behaviors;
2.4.3.3. Examples of rewards or relnforcors; and

2.4.3.4. Strategies for managing the effects of a parent with SUO.
2.5. Peront end Child Substance Use Education

2.5.1. The Contractor shall provide peront and child eubstance use education, using
the Nurturing Parenting program (htt6://www.nufturinoQarent]nQ.cQml wtilch
Inclu'doa. t>ut Is not limited to:

2.5.1.1. Training all relevant staff In the Nurturing Parenting program.
2.5.1.2. Providing education In a variety'of settings including In single or co- '

fecllitated group settings.

• 2.5.1.3. Modifying the education for individuals and femllles not yet ready for a '
group setting.

2.5.1.4. As a supplement to Nurturing Parenting, collaboretlng with the Greater
Tllton Area Family Resource Center's to offer aspects of Forever
Hope's Training for Families Affected by Substance Use.

-  2,6. The Contractor shell develop and submit a work-plan to the Department for review
•  end approval within thirty (30) days of Governor and Executive Council approval of

the contraci which describes Ihe process for ensuring the completion of el) aspects of
the Scope of Services.

2.7. Data and Reporting

2.7.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly narrative'reports to the. Department ■
including a summary of project progress, barriers met and addressed, end'
generel aggregate Information regarding the families served by the program.
The aggregate Information must include, but is not limited to:

2.7.1.1. Primary drug of choice for family members.

2.7.1.2. General treatment access information for-family members.
2.7.1.3. Number and ages of children served by .program.
2.7.1.4. Date of enrollment In program.

2.7.1.5. Living arrangemerits for each child served by this program including,
but not limited to In his or her own home with parents: in a relative
cereglver home; In a foster home; or in a residential group home at the
lime of the referral, until program discharge.

2.7.1.6. Change in the living status of each child.

2.7.1.7. Number of provider organizations providing direct services as listed in
the scope of service.

2.7.1.8. Number of parent partners hired end Ihe dislrlcl ofOces coverod.

RFP.20ieBDASe*rT*ROEei OK. 1 ?
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2.7.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Oepartment-selected technical
assistance vendor to collect de-identffied, aggregate data and Implement an
evaluation process that Is culturally appropriate for'the population served and is
approved by the Department.

3. Performance Measures
3.1. The Contretrtor shall ensure that the following performance indicators are quarterly

achieved end monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide evidence-based home visiting services to one
hundred percent (100 %) of families.referred to the program that require home
visiting services as part of their treatment plan.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall Increase training opportunities for the earty chlldhck>d and
home visiting workforce in substance misuse prevention, recovery, and trauma
Informed cere by three (3) trainings per calendar year and Increase the
knowledge of substance misuse prevention, recovery end trauma Informed
care among the early childhood end home visiting workforce, as demonstrated
by an Increase of (10%) In aggregete as measured quarterly from training pre
tests to training post-tests

'3.1.3. The Contractor shall ensure that eighty percent (80%) of families referred to the
program receive access to treatment or Interim treatment services within forty
eight (46) hours of referral.

3.2. Quarterly, the Contractor shall develop end submit to the Department, a corrective
action plan for any performance measure thai was not achieved.

Onnlla P«lh«usyi ExNMl A Contracior IaOUJs^
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Exhibit A-1.

NH DHHS DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE (DFA)
DISTRICT OFFICE CATCHMENT AREA

Where to Apply
DFA Locations

Towns Served

Berlin
650 Main Street, Suite 200

1 Berlin; 03570-2431
Phone: 752-7800 or

1-800.972.6111

.Berlin, Clarksville, Colebrook, Columbia,- Olxvllle,
Dummer. Erro). Gorham, Grovetoh. Milan,: Millsfield. N.
Stratford, Northumberiand. Percy, Pittsburgh. Randolph. ■
Shelburne, Stark. Stewartstown, Stratford. Weritworth's
Location, W. Stewartstown

Claromont
;17 Water Street, Ste. 301
Claremont; 03743-2280

1 Phone: 542-9544 or
•1-800-982-1001

Acworth. Canaan. Charlestown, Clarempnl, Cornish,
Croydon, Enfield, George's Mills, Goshen, Grafton,
Grantham, Guild, Hanover, Langdon, Lebanon.
Lempster, Lytne, Meriden, Newport, Orange, Orford,
Plainfield. Springfield.. Sunapee, Unity, Washington,
West Lebanon

Concord
40 Terrill Pari< Drive

Concord; 03301-9955
Phone: 271-6201 or

1-800-322-9191

Allenstown. Andover, Boscawen. Bow, Bradford,
Canterbury, Chlchester, Concord, Contoocook, Oanbury,
Dunbarton, Elkins,' Epsom, Franklin, Hennlker, Hill,
Hillsboro, Hooksett. Hopklnton, Loudon. New London.
Newbury, Nbrthfield, Pembroke, Penacook, Pittsfield,
Salisbury, Suncook, Sutton. Warner, Webster, Witmot

Conway
73 Hobbs Street

Conway; 03818-6188
Phone: 447-3841 or

1-800-552-4628

Albany, BarHett, Brookfield, Chatham, Chocprua,
Conway, Eaton, Efflngham, Freedom, Glen, Hale's-
Location, Hart's Location, interyale, Jackson, Kearsarge.
"Madison, Melvin Village, Moultonborough. N. Conway,
Ossipee, Sanbomyille, Sandwich, Snowvllle, Tamworlh,
Tuftonboro, Wakefliald, Wotfeboro

Keene

111 Key Road
Keene; 03431
Phone; 357-3510 or

1-800-624-9700

Alslead, Antrim, Ashuelol, Bennington, Chesterfield,
deering, Drewville, Dublin, Fitzwilllam, Francestown,
Gilsum, Greenfield, Hancock, Harrisville, HInsdale,
Jeffrey. Keene, Lyndeborough, Marlborpugh, Mariow.
Nelson. New Ipswich, Peterborough, Richmond, RIndge,
Roxbury, Sharon, Spoffard, Stoddard, Sullivan, Surry,
Swanzey, Temple, Troy, Walpole, Westmoreland,
Winchester, Windsor

Laconia '
65 Beacon Street West

Laconia: 03246-9988

Phone": 524-4485 or

1-800-322-2121

Alexandria, Alton, Ashland. Barhstead, Belmoni,
Bridgewater, Bristol,' Campton, Center Harbor,
Dorchester, Ellsworth, Gilfo.rd, Gilmanton. Groton.-
Hebron, Hoidemess, Laconia. Lakeport, Meredith, New
Hampton, Plymouth, Rumney. Santprnton, Silver Lake,
Thornton, Tilton, Waterville Valley, Wentworth,
Winnlsquam

RFP-2018-BOAS-O4.TARGE Page 1 of 2 Contractor Initials,
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Exhibit A-1

NH DHHS DrVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE (DFA)
DISTRICT OFFICE CATCHMENT AREA

.Where .to. Apply

DFA Locations .  Towns Served

1 Littleton
80 North Littleton Road

. UttJeton; 03561-3841

. Phono: 444-6786 or

1-800-552-8050

Bath. Benton, Bethlehem, Caholl, Dalton, Easton,
' Franconia, Glencllfr, Haverhlll, .JefFerson, Lancaster,
Landaff. Lincoln, Lisbon, Littleton, Livermore, Lyman.
Monroe, Plermont, Pike, Sugar Hill, Twin Mountain,
Warren. WhrtefieW, Woodstock. Woodsville

Manchester
105 McGregor St., Ste 110

; Manchester; 03102-3762
Phone: 688-2330 or

1-800-852-7403

Auburn, Bedford, Chester, GofFstbwii. Manchester, New
Boston, Weare

«

Rochester
ISOWakefleld Sl., Ste 22
Rochester; 03867-1309
Phone: 332-9120 or

1-800-862-5300

Barrington, Dover, Durham, Farmlngton. Gonlc, Lee,
Madbury, MIddleton, Milton. New Durham, Rochester,

■ Rolllnsford, Somersworth. Strafford, Union

Seacoast
50 International Drive

Portsmouth; 03801
Phone: 433-8300 or

1-800-821-0326

Brentwood, Candia, Deerfield, East Kingston, Epping,
Exeter, Fremont. Greenland, Hampton, Hampton Falls,
Kenslngtori, Kingston, New . CastJe, Newfields.
Newinglon, Newmarket. North Hampton, Norlhwood,
Nottingham, Portsmouth, Raymond, Rye, Seabrook,
South Hampton, Stratham

Southern

3 Pine Street, Suite Q

Nashua; 03060-9311

Phone: 883-7726 or

1-800-852-0632

Amhersl, Atkinson, Brookline, Danville, Deny. Greenville,
Hampstead, Hollis, Hudson, U'tchfield, Londonderry.
Mason, Merrimack, Milford, Mont Vemon, Nashua,
Newton. Pelham. Plalstow, Salem. Sandown, Wilton.
WIndham

RFP-2018-BDAS-04-TARGE Page 2 of 2 Contractor Inibals 0.
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Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay iho Contrector an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services.

2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services In Exhibtt A, Scope of Service In
compliance wtth funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may
jeopardize the funded contrector'e current and/or future funding.

3.. This contract Is funded with funds from the Catalog of Federal domestic Assistance
(CFOA) 93.786, US Department of Heanh and Human Services, SutistarKe Abuse end
Mental Health Administration.'

4. The Contractor shall provide flexible funds In the amount specffted. In the Contractor's
budgets per State Fiscal Year In order to assist with removing any barriers Ihel
parents/caregivers may encourrtar In accessing eny of the components of this program.
Flexible funds ere for services or products necessary to be able to receive home visiting
or to go to treatment which Include, but are not limited to;

4.1. Gas cards.

4.2. Car repair bills.

4.3. Heating oil.

5. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred In
the fulfillment of this agreement, end shall be in accordance with the approved line
Item.

5.2. The Contractor'will submit en Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20'^) wortclng day of each- month, which identiiles and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses Incurred In the prior month. The Invoice
must be completed, signed, deled end returned to the Department In order to Initiate
payment. The Contractor agrees to keep deteiled records of (heir activities related to
Department-funded programs and services.

5.3. The Slate shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice end If sufTicient funds
are available.

5.4. The final invoice shall be due to the Stale no later then forty (flO) days after the
contract Form P-37. Block 1.7 CompleOon Dale.

5.5. In lieu of herd copies, ell invoices may be assigned an electronic signature end
emailed to:

5.5.1. Email address: Email address: Leurie.Heath@dhhs.nh.gov

5.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
Identified In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, and in this Exhibit 8.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 16 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment
limited (0 transfer the -funds within the budget end within the price (Imitation, can be

Or*nft« PsOiwayt ExTAAB Contrvctorln&lsii.
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made by written egreement of both perttes and may be made without obtaining approval
\ of the Governor and Executive Council!

•■(2aOrenko Pchwayi ExNbllB Contractor InMab ■
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SPECIAL PROVISIOMS

Contractors ObUgatlorts: The Contmctor covenonte end eorees that ell funds received by (he Contractor
under the Contract ehaJJ be used only as payment to (he Contractor (or eeMdee provided to eilgtbte-
indMduab end. in the (urtherence of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as foHowe:

1. CompllarKO with Federal and State Laws: II (he Contractor Is permiUed to determine the ellglbnity
of individuals such oflglbility,determination shall be mode In occordance with applicable federal
state laws, regulations, orders, gutdelines. policies end procedures. ,

2. rimoend Manner of betermlnation: Eriolbliltydeterminafloris shall be made on forms provided by
the Department (or that pu/posa and shall be made end remade el such times as ere prescribed by
the DepartmanL

3. 'Documentation; In addition to the determtnetloo forms required by the Department, the Contractor
sl^D maintain a data file on each r^pient of services hereuncler, which file shol) IncKide all
informatioh necessary to support en eligibitity determlnB0on;ar^ such oilier tnformatlon as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ell.forms end documentation
regarding eligibility determmations that the Departmerit may request or require.

A. Fair Hearings: The Cor>tractor understands that oH applicants for sorvlcos heroundor,- as wea as
IndMduals declared inetlglble have a right to a fair he'ar1r>g regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants artd.agrees that ail appftcants for servlcas shaD be permitted to ftil out
en application form and (hot each applicant or re-appDcanl shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Departm.er^t raguiallons.

5. Gretuitlos or Ktekbecka: The Contractor agrees that it Is e Ixeech of this Contract to eocept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of emptoyment.on behalf of (he Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance ol the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
.Contract. The Stale may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or But>-flgreement H li la
determi'rted that paymenta, gretultlea or offers of cmploymont of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, offtcare, employees or agents of (ho Contractor or Sub-Contractor

6. Retroactfvo Payments: Notwilhstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, ft Is expressly understood and agreed by the parlies
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder lb reimburM the Contractor for costs Incurred for
er^ purpose or for any services provided to eny'lndlvldual prior to the Effective bete of the Contrecl
and no payments shall be made for expenses hcurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior (o-the dele on' which the indMduei eppHes for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a delermlnatlon that the individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Cdr^Hlons of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein containad shall be deemed to obllgata or require the Oepaitmeni to purchase services
hereunder at a rata which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and rvecessery to assure the quellty of such service, or el e
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to inellgibia individuals or other third party
funders for such service! If et any time during the (emi of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder.'the Department shall determine that the Contractor hoa'used
payments hereunder to relmburso items of expenM other then such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or In excess of such rates ̂ rged.by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals
or other third party fundars, the Department may olbct to: ' .
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rales shaO be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Exhipit C - Spvdt) PRMtalons ContmcCDr IrAtab
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7.3. Oamaodrepaymont of the excasa payment by the Ccntrectof In whicft.avom failure to make
such repayment shall oonsUtute en Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is

__ .permitted to determine the cllglblUty of Ir^Mduota for.eervlces, the Contractor ospees to
reimburse the Department for all funds pskJ.by the Department to the Contractof for sarvfoes
provided to any IndMduel who Is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
eny time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS:.MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTlALrTY:

8. MalrrtenarKO of Records: In eddltlon to the eligibility records spectflod above, the Contractor
coverwrts end agrees to maintain the followlftg records during tt* Comract Period;
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents end other data evWendng and reflecting elJ cosb

arxJ other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, ertd ell
bicome recdvod or oollected.by the .Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures snd practices which sufflcIentJy end
property reflect all such costs snd expensss. snd which ere acceptable to the DeparlmenL and '
to include, wtthout limitation, all ledgers, books, records; end original evidence of coats such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of.

, Irvkind contributions. labor time tards. payrolls, and other records.reqoested or required by the
Oepertmenl

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, ettsndanca or visit records for each reclpleni of
services during the Contract Period, which records shell Include all records of appHcalion and
diglbillfy.Oncluding all fonns required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records ,
regarding the provision of servlcos end ell Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such eervtces. -

8.3. Medicel Records: Whore appropriate and ss prescribed by the Department ragulabons, the-
Contractor shall retain mecfical records on each palJsnt/rec'pient of services. ->

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit en annual audit lo the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal yoor. II is recommerxJed thai the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of Stales. Local Governments, and Non
Profll Organizations' and the provisions of Slandsrds for Audit of Governmental Organlzaltons.
Programs. ActWiies end Functions. Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) ss
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit end Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for ratsntion hereunder. the ^

Department, the United States Oepartrnem of Heetth end Humon Services, snd any of their
.daslgnaled representatives shall have access to eH reports end records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, exemlnstion. excerpts end trenscripis.

9.2. Audit Liabinties: In addition to and not In any wey In limitation of obligations of the Contrecl, It is
understood end agreed by the Contrector that Ihe Contractor shell be held Hable for any state.,
or federel audil exceptions and shell return lo the Oepertmenl, ell payrnenis made urxter the
Contrecl lo which exception has been taken or wtilch have been disallowed becouse of such an
exception. '

10. Confidentiality of Records: All Information, ropofta, end records maintained hereunder or odlectod
In connection with the performence of the services and the Contrect shall be confidenttsl end shell riot
be disclosed by the Corrtrector, provided however, that pursuent to state laws end the regulations of
the Deparlment regerding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public offlclals requiring such InformeUon In connection wtth their official duties end for purposes
directly connected to the admlnislrollon of the services end the Contrect; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by eny party of any informallon concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Oepertmsnt or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his •
attorney or guardian.

EaWbh C - Spedel Pre*h»onj Ccrrtctcr inhlib
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NohMthstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants end conditions contained In
the Paregreph shell sor^ve the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Repofts: Flscei end Statlsticel: The Contrectoragrees to sutxnit the following reports et the following
times if requested by the Depertmeni.
11.1. Interim RnerKial Reports: Written Interim frnanclai reports coriteining o detaiied description of

eO costs and non -ellowebie e}q>enses incurred by the Contrector to the date of the report end
containing such other Information as shall be deemed setlsfactory by the Oepertment to
Justify the rate of payment hereur^der. Such Financial f^ports ihaU Im submitted on the form
deslgnatod by the Oepertment or deemed sstlsfectory by the OetMrtmeni.

11.2. Rnel Report: A final report shed be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end ̂  the term
of this Octree}. The Rnel Report shell be in e form satisfBctoiY to the Depertmeni and shell
contain e summary etalement of progress toward goels end ot^ectlves slated in the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Complotion of Servlcee: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of ur\its provided for in the Con^ct ertd upon payment of the price imitation
hereunder, (he Contract end ell the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations es.
by Ihe terms of (he Contract ere to be performed iefter the end of the term of this Conlrect and/or
survive the termination of the Centred) shall tormlnete, provided however, thsi If, upon review of the
Flnsl Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses dsimed by the Contradcr as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, et Its discretion, to dedud the amount of such
expenses as are disellowed or to recover such sums from the Contrador.

13. CradltB: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports end other meterlats prepared
during or resuIUng frem the performance of the services of the Contraci shall include the following
stelomeni:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under e Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health end Human Services, with furtds provided In part
, by the State ol Now Hampshire and/or such other fundlr^ sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services. ^

14. Prior Approval end Copyright Ownorehip: Ad materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contrect shall heve prior approval from DHHS before printing, produdion.
distribution or use. The DHHS wfll retain copyrl^l ownership for eny end all original meterlals
produced, indudtng, but nol limited to. brochures, resource diredorles, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contrador sh^l not reproduce eny materials produced under the contrad without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Oporahon of Faclllttos; Compliance with Laws end Regulations: In the operation of eny facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders arxl regulations of federal,
state, county end municipal eulhorilles and'^th eny direction of any Putxiic Officer or officers
pursuant to laws v^lch shall impose en order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the fedUty or the provision of the services, et such fecfllty. If eny goverrunental license or
permit shall be required .for the operation of the said facility or the p^ormance of the said services,
the Contrador wtl) procure sold license or pennil, end will at all times comply with (ho lerms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connecUon with foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby coverwnts end agrees that, during the term of this Contrad ihe fodlHics shell
comply with ell rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protedlon agency, end shall be in c.onfonnenco with locei buitdlng end zoning codes, by
laws end regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The Contrector will provide an Equal Employmeni
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for CtvU Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If 11 has
received o single award of S500.000 or more.' H the recipient receives $25,000 or more end has 50 or

EjhIM C • Sped&l Pfo«U>on9 Contrecioi IntUtts
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more employees, it m^II meintein a current EEOP on file erut submit en EEOP Certiflcabqn Form to the
OCR, certlfytng that Its EEOP is on file. For recipients receMng less than S25.000. or public grentees
wrfth fe^r^r than 60 employees, regardless of ths amount of the award, the recipient wfll provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certlfytng ft Is not required to submlt'a mahlain en EEOP. Non
profit orgerdzatlons, Indian Tribes, and medical end educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requlfemenl. but are required to submit a cedfflcetlon fonn to the OCR to claim (he exemption.
EEOP Certfficailon Forms are eveilablo at; httpyhWKW.ojp.usdof/about/ocr/pdfe/oert.pdf.

17. UmrtedEngllehProfidency(LEP): As clartfled by Executive Orderl 3166. Improvlno Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, ertd resulting agency guidance, rtatlonal origin-
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
oompUerwe with the Omnibus Crime Control ond-Sefe Streets Act of 1966 end Title VI of the OvU
Rights Ad of 1964, Contractors must take reesorteble stops to ensure thet LEP persons heve
meaningful access to Its programs.

16. Pilot Prograrn for Enhancement of Contrector Employee Whlatleblowor Protections; The
foilpwlng shell apply to ad contracts that exceed the SImpimed Acquisition Threshold as defined In 46
CFR 2;101 (currently. 5150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleslower Rkshts and Reouircmemt To Inform Employees of
WHISTLE0LOWER RKJHTS (SEP 2013) V.

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistloblowtr rights
end remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee ̂ Islleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorizatioo Ad for Rscal Ycer 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shell Inform Its employees In writing. In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whisllebtower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.006 of (he Fedorel Acqulsib'on Regulotion.

(c) The Contrector shell Insert the substance of this clause, including this pereoraph (c). In all
sybcontrects over the simplifled acquisition threshold.

19. Subcqntractora. DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility end accountability for the functJon($). Prior to
subcontmcting, the Contractor shall evaluate the lubcontractor's ability to perform (he delegated
functlon(3). This is accomplished through a writterr agreemonl that specifies ecbviiies end reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor end provides for revoking (ho delegation or Imposing sanctions If
the subcqnlractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors ore subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor end the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subconlrector compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates e function to e subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following;
19.1. Eveluete thti prospective subcontractor's ebliily to peffonm.the eclMtias, before delegating

the furwUon

19.2. ' Have e written agreement with the subcontrsctor that specifies activities end reporting
responslbnilies end how sancllons/revocetlor) will be rr^anaged if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontrector's performance on en or>go(ng basis

oi/iin*
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an enrvjal schedule Identifying ail subcontroctore, delegated functloro end
reaponsibflitjes, end when the subcontroctor'a performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its discretion, review end epprtrvo all subcontrects.

H the Contrector IdentKies defldendes or areas for Improvement ere Identified: the Contrector shell
take correcthre ectlon.

DERNmONS

As used In the Contract, the following terms sheB have the following meanings:

COSTS; Shell mean those direct end Indirect Items of expense determined by the Oopartmeni to be
allowable end reimbursable in accordance with cost end eccourtting pri/Klples established In accordance
wtth state and federal lews, regulations, rutos end orders.

.DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health end Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shell meen the! section of the Contreclor Manuel which Is

entitled 'Finendal Management Guklollnes* end whteh contains the regulations governing the finondal
activities ol contrector agendas v^ich have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall meen the document submitted by (ho Contreclor on a form or forms
required by (he Depahmenl and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
Individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms end conditions of the Contract end setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that tha Contractor Is to provide to ellgtbia individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of timo or that specified ecli^ty determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit 6 of (he
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever lederel or stale laws, regulatioos, rules, orders, ond policies, etc. are
referred to in the ConiracL ihe said refarertco shall be deemed to mean' all such taws, regulations, eic. as
they may be emended or revised from (he time to time.

CONTpLACTOR MANUAL: Shan mean thai document prepared by (he NH Department of Administrative
Services containing e compilation of ell reguleUons promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures AcL NH RSA Ch 54'1 -A. (or the purpose of implementing State of NH ond
foderel regulations promulgalad thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The ConlrBctor guarantees that funds provided under this
Conlrect will not supplant any existing federal funds available for ihese services.

ExNW C - SpeelaJ PwWonj CoN/ictDf intUaTi
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVI^QMa
1.. SubpamgrBph 4 of mo Oonerol Provisions of mis contract Conditional Nature of Aoroement Is replaced as

follows;
4. CONOITIONAt NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

NotvHthstandIno any provision of this Aoreameni to ma contrary, all ot)lloatlons pf me State hareundar,
(ncfudlrtg wimout limitation, me continuance of payments. In whole or In part under mb Apreemant are
contingeni upon continued eppropriation or avelablllty of funds, Induding any eubsequeni changes to the
appropriation or avHll8t>lllty cA, funda affected by eny atala or federal legislBtlve or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies ma approprfelJon or avallabUity of funding for mis Agroement
and the Scope of Services provfded In Exhibit A, ̂ pe of Services. In whole or In part In no eveni shall
me State be Uable for any paymenb hereunder In excess of eppropdated or evailable funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination, or modification of appropriated or available funds, me State shall have Ihe
right to withhold peyment until such funds become available, If ever. The Stato shell have the right to
reduce, lermlnete. or modify services under this Agreemeni Immediately upon giving mo Contractor
notica of such reduction, termination or modification. The State sheH 'nol be required to transfer funds
from any omer source or ecdount Into the Account(6) Identified in block 1.6 of the Generel Provfsiortt.
Account Number, or any other eccouni, In me event funds ere reduced or unavalleNe.

2. Subparagraph 10 of me General Provisions of mis contract. Termination. Is amended by adding following
.language;
10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement dt any time for eny reason, at me sole drscrelion of the State,

30 deys after gMng the Contractor written notice mat me Stele Is exercbing Its option to terminate me
Agreement.

10.2 . In the event of early lermlnation, the Conlraclor shall, whhin 15 deys of notice of early termination,
develop arxJ submit to me Stete a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, Includlrig but not
limited to. Identifying the present er>d future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and estabUshes a process to meet mose needs. u

tO.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate wim me Stete end shell promptly, provide detailed Information to
support the Transition Ran induding, but not limited to. eny Information or data requested by the Stete
related to the termination of the ^reemenl end Transition Plan end shall' provide ongoing
communication and revisions of me Transition Plen to me Stete OS requested.

10.4 In me even! moi services under mo Agreement. Including but not limited lo dienis receiving servlcos
under the Agreement ere trensltloned to having servlcos delivered by another entity Including
contracted provldara or the Stele, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted'delivefy of
services In me Transition Ran.

10.5 The Contractor shall estabDsh a method of r>oljfylng clients and omer effacted indMdoels about Ihe
transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communicetions In Its Transitipn ptan submitted
10 the Stete as described abovre.

3. Extension;

The Department reserves me right to renew the Contrect for up lo two (2) eddltional yeers, subject lo the
cont/nuod Bvanebllity of funds, eafisfactory performance of services end approval by me Goveimor and
Executive Coundl.

Exhibit C-l - RovWona to General ProvtaloM ' Conlrodor Initials IL-.
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CERTIFICATION REQAMINQ DRUQ-fREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of (he Generaj Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Soclior« 5151-5160 of the Dnjg-Free Worlrpiaca Ad of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). ar)d furthar agrees to have the Contrador's repraseotallve, as Ideritified in Sections
1.11 end 1.12oftheGeneralPrDvl8ions6xeeute(hefo{Iovv(ngCert{ficstion;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification b required by the regutalions implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Orvjg-Free
WontplaceActof 1086(Pub.L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D:41 U.S.C. 701 etsaq.-). The January 31.
•1969 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990.Fo^ral Register (pages
2t661;21691), and require certification by grantees (end by Inference. «ut>-grantees end sub-
contractora), prior to award, that (hey, will molntain a drug-free workplace. Section 30i7.630(c) of the
risgulation provides that o grantee (er>d by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may eled to make oho certification to the Depertfnent in each federel fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federel fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is e
material representalion.of fact upon which reliance Is placed v^en the agency ewards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shali ba grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemmerit wide suspension or debarfnenl. Conlrectors using this form should
.send It to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health end Human Services
129 Pleasant Streel,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee cartifies that h will or will continue to provide a drug-froo workplace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement r^olifying emptoyees that the unlawful manufedure, distribution,

dispenslr>g, possession or use of e controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the adionB that vrii) be taken egelnst employees for viotalion of such
prohibition;

1 .'2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to.inform emptoyees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drag abuse In Ihe wot1<place;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug^free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; end
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee'to be engaged in the performance of (he grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notrfying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (o) thai, as a condition of

employment under'the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the BtBtement; end
1.4.2. Notify Ihe employer in wrfling of.his or her conviction for e violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workpioco no later than.frve calendar deys.after such
conviction;

1.5. • Nob'fytng the agency In wrrling. within len calcr>dar days after recehring notice ur>der
subparograph 1.4.2 from en employee or otherwise receiving ectuet notice of such conviction.
Employers of convlctod employees must provide notice, Including position iltio, to every grant
officer on whoso grant adr^ the convicted employee was working, unless Ihe Federal egericy

E;(hlbnO-C«rtRlc«donrfSSfilInot>UOFn» ContTBCtOr InlSall
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has designated e central point for the receipt of euch noticea. Notice ehaD Include the
Identification number(e) of each afTected grenl;

1.6. Taking one of the following ectiona, wHhln 30 calendar days of receMng notice under
eubparagreph 1.4.2, with respect to eny employee who b 60 convicted
1.6.1. Taking epprdpriate personnel octbn egalnat euch en employee, up to end induding

termination, consistent wtth the requlren>ents of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
emended; or

1.6.2. Repulring such emptoyee to participate ealisfadorily In e dmg abuse assbtanee or
rehebililetlon progrsm approved for euch purposes by e Federal, State, or local heehh.
lew enforcement, or other epproprleto agency;

1.7. Maklr>o a good (allh effort to continue to maintain a drug^free workplace through
implementetlon of parographt 1.1. 1.2,1.3,1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the 8}te(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performonce (street address, city, county, slalo, 2ip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file thoi are not identified here.

Contractor Name;

Date Nanie:

F^CSicfcyi-h >-
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CERTIFICATION REOARDINQ LOaBYING

The Contrector IdenUflod In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions egrees to comply with the provisbns of
Section 319 of Public Lew 101-121, Govemmenl wWa GuMence for New Restrictions on Lcbbylno. end
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further egrees to have the Contractor'e-representative. as Identrfied In Savons 1.11
artd 1.12 of the General Provisions execute tt>e following Certrficetion;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS '
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered);
n'emporary Assistance to Needy FemHies under Title IV-A
*ChUd Support Enforcement Program under Tdie IV*0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Hie XX
'Mediceid Program under Thie XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
*ChOd Cere Development Block Grant under Title IV

The urtdersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge end beDaf. that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behaif.of the undersigned, to
eny person for influencing or attemptlrtg to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, e Member
of Congress, on officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of e Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of eny Federal contract, continuation; renewal, omendmenl. or
modification of eny Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub^ranlee or sub-contraclor).

2. If eny funds other than Federal eppropriatod funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or ottempting to influence on officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
on officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of e Member of Cor>gress In connection with this
Federal contract, grant, ban, or cooporatiya agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
conlractor). the undersigned shall complete end submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with Its instructions, attached and identifted as Startdard Exhibit E-t.)

3. The undersigned shall require (hat the language of Ihls cerTtftcation be Included In the award
document for sub-awards el ell tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grenls. and contracts under g^anls^
loans, end cooperatrve agreements) and that ell sub-reciplenis shall certify and discbse accordingly.

This certification is a material representolion of fact upon which reliance was placed when this traruactbn
was made or entered into. Submlssbn of this certiTicetbn Is e prerequisfte for maklrig or entering Into this
trensBctbn Imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to filathe required
certfTicalbn shell be subject to e civil penalty of nol'less than $10,000 end not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

jLkm
Dole ■

EitfifWt E - C«nJfle«tlcn Ropardlng Lobbjrtr»g CorHracty tnlttxU
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CERnRCATIOM REOARDIWQ DEBARMEWTrSUSPENSION

" AND OTHER RESF»0N8IBIUTY MATTERS

The Contrectof identtfiod In Section 1.3 of the Oenarel Provlaiona aorees to comply with the provisiona of
Executive Offica of the Preaitfent, Executive Order 12549 end 45 CFP Part 76 rep^ing Debarment,
Suepenalon. end Other Reaponaibllity Matters, and further agrees to have (he Controctor'e
representative, as Uerttified In Sectlorta 1.11 and 1.12 of (he Genersl Proviaicna.executethe following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing er>d aubmlttlng thia proposal (contrect), the prospective primery participsnl ia providing the

c^Rcetton set out below.

2. The Inability of a peraon to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered trensaction. If necessary, the prospective participant ahall submit an
explanation of why 11 cannot provide the certifcetion. The certification or explanation vrtO be
coruldered In connection wtth the NH Department of Health end Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary

*  partlcipanl to furnish a certification or an explar^ation shall disquafrfy such person from partidpetfon In
this transaction.

3. The certHiution in this clause is a material roprosenlation of fact upon which reliance was placed
wfian OHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If K Is latsr determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered en erroneous certlficaUon. In addition to other remedies
Bvellable to the Federal Goverrvnent. OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to (ho OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (con^ct) Is submitted If el any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Kb certificalicn was erro>neou$ when submitted or has twcome erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

>

5. The tenas 'covered tranMction.* 'debarred.* 'suspended."meligible.* 'lower liar covered
transaction,' 'participant.* 'person.' 'primary covered transaction.* 'principal,* 'proposal,' and
'volunterity excluded,' as used in this clause, have the rneanlngs set out In the Oefinltions and
Coverage sections of the rules-Implementing Executive Order 12S49: 45 CFR Part 78. See the
attached definilions.

6. The prospective primery perticfpdnt agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) thai, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. It shall not knowingly enter into any lovyer tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible; or voK/ntenly excluded
from participation in thic covered transaction, unless euthonzed by OHHS.

7. The prospective primery perticlponl further agrees by submitting this'proposal (hat II will Indude the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineliglblllty end Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Co\«red Transactions.* provided by OHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transact'ons end in ell solicitations for lower lier.coverod transactions.

B. A participant (n a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective particf>anl in a
.lower tier covered transaction that It Is not debarred, suspended, ineGgible. or involuntartly excluded
from the covered transaction, unless N knows (hat the certification Is erroneous. A partldpant may
decide the method-end frequency by which H determines Ihe eirgr'bility of Its prtnclpsls; Each
participant rrray. but is not required lo.'check ihe Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parties).

6. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require estebllshmont of.e eystem of records
in order to render in good faith Me certification required by this clause. The knowledge end

EmiM F « CerDflcaOon rtagerSkto DebtrmenC, Siaptnston Cenlrador IniUdi
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tnformalion of e partidpeni Is not requlmd to exceed that which is hormaOy potaesBod by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of busirwsa dealinge.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph s of these instnictfons. If e participant in a
covered (rarvsaction krtowfngly enters Into a lower der covered transaction with a person who b
suspended, debarred, inellglbte, or vbiuntahty excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remediei available to the Fedoni government. DHHS may terminate Ihb tmnaection
for cause or defsuB.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
It. The prospective primary partldpaht cerllfles to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that It end its

principab;
11.1. ere r>ot presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntehly excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within e three-year period preceding thb proposal (contract) been convicted of or hsd

a cMI Judgment rendered against forcommlssioh of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attem^g to obtain, or performing a pubDc (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract ur>der a public transaction; .viotation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezztomont, lhefl,.forgery. bribery, falslficstion or destruction of
racoids. making false stalemenls. or receiving stolen property:

11.3. ara not presently Indicted for otherwise crtmlnalty or civiny charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumeroted in psragraph (l)(b)
of thb certifiestion; end ' '

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this applicatiorVproposal had one or more public
transactions (Faderel, State or iocsl) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary pahidpant Is unabte to certify to any of the stetements in Ihb
certKicatlon. such prospective participant sheiD attach an exi^nation lo this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 4S CFR Part 76, certrfies to the best of Its knowtedge snd belief that it and its principab;
13.t. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared tneligible. or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. wherelheprospectlvelower.lier.pBrticipantlsunabletocertlfylOBnyoflheabove. such

prospective perticipenl shall attach an explanation to thb proposal (contract).

14. The prospective tower lier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (conlrecl) that K win
include this clause entitled 'Certiflcalion Regarding Debarment. Suspension. IneligibDity, end
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without modlfeation In all lower tier covered'
transactions and In el) solicnationa for lower tier covered trensections.

Contrector Name:

4-
Date

,/ IL
imt:

cufi»«eme7o

EiNbl) F - CerttltcaHon Regvdlng OetMrmsS. Susperuton Conirider InAhU.,
And Other ReaponslMlly Metten
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New Hampehlro Oepertment of Heatih end Human Services
ExhIbHG

CERT1FICAT10W OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMEWTS PERTAINIHQ TO
FroEWAL NONDtSCRIMINATtON. EQUALTREATMENT OF FAfTW^ASEP 0RQAWZAT10NS AND

-  " --WTHIS^B^^

The Contrector idenUfled In Sedion 1.3 of (he General Provisions egreea b/elgneture of the Contrectofe
repr^ntstive as IdentiTied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Geaeral Provtslone. to execute the toOowing-
certiflcallon:

Contrector will compty, end wQI require any •ut>on^ee8 or subeontrectoro to oorhply. wflh eny applicable
federelnoridiscrimlnetion requirements, which mey include; ■

. the Omnibus Crime Cchtrol and Safe Streets Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federol funding under thb stetule from dlicrtmlneling, either in empbyment precUces or in
the delrvery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color. reDgbn. national origin, end sex. The Ad
requires certain redpients to produce en Equol Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Juslica Delinquency Prevention Ad of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, (he civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Ad. Recipients of federei funding under ̂ Is
statute ere prohibited from dbcrimlnatl^. either in employment practices or in the delrvery of services or
benefits, or) the bests of race, color, religion, nalronel origin, end sex. The Ad includes Equal
Empbyment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the CMl Rights Ad of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 200Cd. whbh prohlblls rec^bnts of federal rmencie)
assistance from discrimineling on the basis of race, cobr, or nationel origin In eny program or activity);

- the Rehabilrtation Ad of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). whteh prohibits recipients of Federal firwKial
assistance from dbcrimlnBlinB on the basis of disability. In regard to empbyment and the delivery of
services or banoflts. In eny program or edMt/.

. the Americans wflh Disebllilies Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sedbns 12131 -34). whbh prohbits
discrimiftetbn er)d ensures equal opportunity for persons v4th dlsablHties in empioymenl. State and local
govemmont services, pubfic eccommodations, commercial faclirties. and trartsporlatbn;

• the Educalbn Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Soctionc 1681,1663. 1665-66), whbh prohbits
discrimination on the basis of sex ln federally assisted educatbn programs;

. the Age Obcriminelbn Ad of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Secttons 6106-07), whbh prohibits d'lscrimlnatbn on the
basis of ago In programs or cctivlties receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not.include
employment discrtmlnatbn;

- 28 C.F.R. pt 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regutalbns - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondbcrtmlnatton; Equal Employment Op^rtunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. i 3279 (equal protection of the laws for faHh-ba'sed and comrnunJly
-orgenbetions): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamonla! principles end policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based end. neight>orhood organizatbns;

. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Oepertment of Justice Regulsttens - Equal Treatment for Feflh-Besed
Ofganaations): and Whlstleblowor protedions 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Natbnal Defense Authorization
Ad (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. eneded January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Conlrad Empbyoo Whistlebbwer Protections, whbh' protects empbyees egalnst
reprisal for certain whbtb blowing actMtles in conrwction with federal grants end contacts.

The certificate sal out below b a material representation of fad upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grenl.' False certlftcelbn or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of peymenls. suapenston or.tennlneltan of grants, or government wida suspension or
deberment.

ConUictcr inSlatj
ciiriiWiiicicgi0wm<«»**wrenrtw<ra>»rwa^'eM>ywve»wTi>«wr»vrvt>ewtaO'pM-ti«fi
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Now Ham'pohtro Oepertment of Hoantt end Humen Servlcoo
Exh'lbrtG

In the event e Federal er ̂ ste court or Federal or Stele adrriinlstralive agency maKee a finding of
diecrlminBtion eftar a due proceee Hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national orfgtn, or eex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient win forward a copy of the ftnding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or dMilon wHhln the O^rtment of Health end Human Servicee. and
to the Dcpartmcfit of Health end Hurnan Servicea OfGce of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identiTied in Section 1.3 of the Geneml Provisions egroes by slgrtature of the Contractor's
representative as ideritified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General ProvfsJons. to execute the following
certlficstlon:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (eontred) the Contractor agrees to comply vrHh the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name:

■  i >• c.( 0

Cm-
vr/n i t i r
s»..icnwM P«0»Io!2 Date

ExMMG

Coftnctor iivtlslt^  TlfT'IMTII IfrXTI ffl friTrtra
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Mew Hampshire Department of HeoKh end Human Setvieos
Exhibtt H

CERTIFtCAnOM RESARDtHQ.EMVIROMMEMTAL.TOBACCO SMOKE

PubOc 103>227. Pert C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-ChOdren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that emokhg rw4 be pemiBted In any portion of any indoor fadllty owned or leased or
contacted for by en entity end used routinely or roQularty for the provtslon of heaOh, day care, education,
or library servicea to chBdren under the age of 18. If the servlctts are funded by Federa) programs either
directty or through Stete or iocel goverrvnents, by Federal grant, contract, loen. or loan guarantee. The
law does not eppty to chltdreh's services provided In prtvbte residences, facilities funded eclsly by
Medicare or Medluld funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpationt drug or alcohol treatment. FaBuro
to comply wHh (he provlstons of the taw may reauR In the Imposition of a cMI monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or Iho tmposHlon of en edmirdstratlvo compCance order on (ha responsible, entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genersl Provisions agrees, by slgrveture of the Contrector's
representative as.identlfied In Section 1.11 end 1.12 of (he General Provbionfi. to execute the foUowing
cortlflcetion:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contreclcr agre» to make ressoneble efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public l^w 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Chiidren Act of 1094.

Contractor Name:

i-  I f . .

EiMbB H - CcrtUcsOon ReptnSng Conlnctor.'nitlsh . .U/iC
Envtonmsrtil Tobscoo Smoks ill To

cuonwimi Ftps 1 of I Osla . t.'v'IY
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New Hampshire Oopartmont of Hoafth artd Human Services

. Exhibit I

■ ■ * HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABUTY ACT'
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Lew 104-101 end
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Indlvldually Idehtiftable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Irrformatlon under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health end Humen Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach* shall have the same.meaning as the term 'Breach' In section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such tenn In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
■of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered EntllvT-has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of FederarReguiations.

d. 'Deslonated Record Set' shall have the eame meaning as the term 'designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AoareQation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Cere Operations' shall have the seme meaning as the term 'health care operations'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.'

g. 'HITECH Act'.means the Health Information Technology for Ecpnomic and Clinical Health '
Act, TltieXtll, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery end Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability end Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thiereto.

I. 'Indtvlduel' shall have the same meaning as the term 'indlvlduar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Indude o person who qualiries as a personal representative in eccordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(0).

j. 'Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identilidble Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Infwmetion* shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
Information in 45 CFR Section 160.103, lirrwted to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/20M E*NWI Controdof tnWab/- M!-.
H«tnMreunno» PortBb% ̂  .
BuUneuAsMdtIo AoTMineni ./ 7
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New Hampshiro Oopttrtment of Hoaith and Human Sarvfco*

ExMbtt I

I. "ReQulred bv- Lawf shall have the same meaning es the (enn 'required by law* In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'SecretafY* ahall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health end Human Services or
fda/her dealgnee.

n. TSecurltv Rute* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information* means protected heotth information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that randers protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthortzed Individuals-and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organtzatiori that is accredited by the American Natlpnel Standards
Institute..

p. Other PefinitionB - All terms not clherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
'established under 45 C.F.R. Perts 160,162 end 164, es amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Uae and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to-provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to ell
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or.transmit
PHI in any manner that would constl^te a vtolation.of the Privacy end Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. - For the proper management and administration of the Business. Associate;
' II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below, or

III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operab'ons of Covered
Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any' such disclosure, (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party thai such PHI will be held confideritJally and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for wtiich It was
disclosed to the third party: and (II) an agreement from such third patty to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Securtty, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent H has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. . The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure Is reasoriably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It Is required by law. without flrat notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disdosure and
to seek epprbprlate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disdosure, the Business

3W)14 Ex«mi Cor&ictor tmaali
KMfth Imunnot PofttUft/Ad
BiAlnett AuodittAgreemcn)

P*gt3o>.a Ddo ,7.. 1/ f
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Nmt Hampshire Oopartmcni of Health end Human Services

Exhibit I

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

3/3014

Aeaoclate Bhall refrain frbni diaclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

ft the Covered Enltty notifies the Busfnesa Associate thai Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions ovci end above those uses or disclosures or securfty
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Pf^flcy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions end shell not disclose PHI in violation of
such addHlonal restrictions and shall aUde by any addltlonel security safeguards.

(3) Oblloatlofis and Activities of Buslnoaa Asaociatfl.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health infonmalion not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
proteirted health information and/or any security incident that may have en Impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment wtien It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include but not be
limited to: •

0  The nature end extent of the protected health Information Involved, Including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
• breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with ell sections of the Privacy. Security and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of Its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or'
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require ell of iis business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under (he Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Ihduding
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor'e business associate
egreements with Contractor's intended business-associates, who will be receiving PHI

ExWbft I Contraetof tiifitali
MaiHh Ireursna PortiSBrty Act '
Bwlnew Auodrts ̂re«meni T ff
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ExtilbttI

^reuant to iWs Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnffication from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph dl3 of the starwfard
contract provisions {P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disctaaure of
protected health information.

f. Wthin five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from-Covered Entity.
Buslf^aa Aesoclate ahalJ nnake available during normal business houra at Its offices ell

policies and procedures relating to the use end disclosure
or PHI to trie Covered Entity, for purposes of onaWIng Covered Entity to determine
Business Assoaate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement

9. Wrthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written .request from Covered Entity.
, Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated-Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or.as directed'by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wrthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained In a Designated Record
Set. .the Business Associate shall make such PHI avellable to Covered Entity for
awndment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
oWtgatlons under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to
such drsdosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Indiv1(jial for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Sectiori
164.526. ' •

h  Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
0 Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of-disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.526. ■

!? the event any individual requests access to. amendmenl of, or accounting of PHIdiracHy from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the '
indlvlduare request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
^sedate to violate HIPM and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individuars request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. ■ Wthin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Aaaoclate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, el) PHI
received fr.om, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In
^e Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit ftjrther .uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible. for so long as Business

ErWbfll CcrtTWOf Infilib
HeiiMmirtnceF>ort*bfltyAd ^
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^Iblt I

Associate maintains such PHI. .If Covered Erttlty, In'tte sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or ell PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obliastlons of Coverod Entfty.

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limttation(e).ln Its
Notice of Privacy Piectices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
dH^osed by Business Associate under this Agreement,.pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shell prornptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity hss agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein es Exhibit t. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the AgreemenI or provide en opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
allied breech within a timefreme specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. AH terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreenr>ent. es emended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or es
emended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity-end Business Associate agree to take such action es Is
necessary to amend the AgreemenI, from time to lime as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes.fn the requirements of HIPAA,- the Privacy end
Security Rule, and epplicable federal and slate law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parlies agree that eny ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permrt Covered Entity to comply wHh HIPAA, the Privacy end Security Rule,

3/3014 ErtiUM Cootniaof liVOth .'H
Haith Iratvinoi PoftibOty Ad
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ExMbtt I

6. Segreoaflon. If eny term or condition of this Exh(t>tt I or the application thereof to any
per&on(8) or circumstance is held invalid, auch Invalidity ahell not effect other terms or ■
conditions which can be fl^en effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I ere declared aeverable.

Sun/hral- Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use end disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In eection (3) I, the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms end conditions (P-37), shall aurvlve the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS yVHEREOF. tho parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Otpartmeni OHMm. and Human Swvlces

(Tlontriirifftr " ' ' / "The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

^ pay:
Name of^thortzed Representative

Title of AuthoiHzed Representative

wjig^lise:
Date

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized-Representative

Trcsidar^ >r
Tide of Authorized Representative

Date '' .. - . .

V?0i4 £xN«l
KttJUl tntmnoB PortaPCBy Act
BuUnni Attodtla Agrvement

Pagi eore

Core«der MUsii.
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PEfrnF(CAT|ON REfi4RD|WQ THE reOERAL FUNDING.ACCOUNTABILITY ANH TPAMADADCiirv
ACT fFFATAiCOMPUAWCE--' • "' '— ' . ̂

The Foderel Funding Accountobilfty and Transparoncy Art (FFATA) roqulm prima awardeoa of WMdual
FedcfBJ^nta.equal to or greater than $26,000 end awarded on or after October 1.2010 to report on
data related to executive compenaation and eeaociated flrat-tier aub^ronta of '$25 000 or more If the

Bubeequent gram modifJca1iof« rotuR In a total award equel to or over
$25,000. the awerd t» tub}ert to Ihe FFATA reporting requirements, es of the date of the ewerd.

(Reporting Sutteward end Executlva Compensation Information), the
Departrnem of Hwlth and Human Servlcos (DHHS) must report the foUowing Informaticn for any
euboward or contrect award subject to the FFATA reporting raqulremerta-
1. Name of entity
.2. Amoufd of award
3. Funding agertcy
4. NAICS code for corrtrects / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performence
9. UnlquerdenttrreroflheQntlty(DUNSd)
10. Total compensetion and nemes of the top five exocutlvos ff;

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemmont end (hose
revenues ere greater than $25M ennually and

10.2. Compensation Infomietion Is not already svailable through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submtt FFATA required data by Ihe end of the month, plus 30 days In which
(he award or award amendment Is made. '
Tfw Cwlrartw Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions egrees to comply with the provisions of
^  ® Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Lew 110-252and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and executive Compensation Information), and further egrees '
to havothe Conlraclor's representative, as kfentified In Soclions 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute Ihe following CertrTicalion;
The below na^d ContrBctor agrees to provide needed Information es outlined ebove to the NH
^parl^nt of Health end Human Services and to comply wtih all applicablo provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountobinty and Transparency Art.

d-

Contractor Name:

L ly
Date

Etfibft J - CcfUAcatlan Rogmflng (ho Funding ComradorliM^ a
AceourtitilrtyAndTfinsps«<yAd{FFATAJCornpS«« .1 ,'Vr
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the Contractor Idanttfied In Socfion 1.3 q( the Gener^ Prbviaton#, I cartify that the reaoonaof to the
below l/ated quaations are tnj'e and eccumta.

1. The OUNS number tof your entity Is;

2. In your bualn^ or organtaaUon*# preceding completed fiecal year, did your bualneu of oroantralton
iwfv© (1) 80 percent or more of your annuoi gross revenue In U.S. tederal contracts subcontracta
loena. grants, sub-grants, end/or cooperative BBreemente; end (2) $26,000,000 or more In winual
gross revenues from U.S. federBl contracU. subcontracta. loans, grants subgrants ond/or
cooperative agreements?

v/NO YES.

If tf)e answer'to' 02 above b NO, stop here

If tW answer to 02 above b YES. pleaaa answer the fdlowlng:

3. Does the public have access to tnformation about ma compensation ofihe executives In your
busmess or orgMtealfon through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Seciirilies
Change Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
lUoOr

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above b YES, stop here

If the answer to 03 above b NO. please answer the following:
(

4. The n^es and compensation of the frve most highly compenseted office™ in your businass or
organaation are as follows:

Name:

Name:.

Name:.

Name:..

Name:

Amount:

Amount,

Amount;

Afttounl:.

Amount:

cuo«eni«ri]

Erdilblt J - Cerunctflon RogonSng itw Federsi Fur^
Aecowtttthy And Trsftipsrsncy Aa (FFATA) Conv<Eanc«

Paps 2 of 2

■(%Cor^^rsctCl^ MUMj _il _

Olid W.f
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K Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure
u^udiorlzed ecqulstUon. unauthorized access, or eny similar term refemng to
situatlone where persons other than authorized users end for an other than
8«jthorlzed purpose have eccess or potentlet access to personally Identifiable
information, ̂ wtiether^ physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information.' Breach* shall haye the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2  •Computer Security Incident* shall have the same meaning "Computer Security '
^cidenl" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidentiai Information' or 'Confidential Data' means el) confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the .other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without iimllation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records; Protected Health information and
RerBonally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes eny end ell Information ovvned or managed by
the State.of NH • created, received from or on behatf of the Department of Health end
Human Seivices (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is. governed by
s^tate or federal law or regulation. This Information Includes, but Is hot limited to
-Protected Health-information (PHI). Personal lnformatlon (PI). Personal Financial
^formation (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTl), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. Erid User" rheans any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of (his Contract.

5. "HIPM* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Ad of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incidenf means an act that potentially violates en explicit or implied security policy
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
e system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware
firmware, or sonwere characteristics wttho.ul the owneris knowledge, instruction or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrduling of physical or electronic

DHHS irfonnotton .. ...CV
S»cuittyft®qwtwment3 •/ /
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mall, all of which may have the potential to ptrf the data at risk of unauthorired
access, use. disclosure, modiflcalion or destruction.

i

7; Open Wreless Network* meertt any network or segment of e network that Is
not deslgnatod by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested and •
eppfovjd. by means of the State, to transmit) wfl) be considered en'open
.network arvJ not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrvoted PI • PFI
PHI or confidential DHHS data. •-'■i,

8. Personal Infoimation* (or 'PI") means Information which can be used to dlstlnouish
or trace en Individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number personal
Iriformatlon as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19. blometric records, etc.
®  J combined with other personal or Identifying Inforrnatlon which Is linkedor linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

0. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Idantifiabla Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 snd -164, prorriulgsted under HIPAA by the United
States Oopartmenl of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Informetion" (or "PHI*) has the same meaning as provided In the
definrtron of Protected Health Information" In the-HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. 6
160.103. " " '

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Prot^ed Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. -Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protoctod Health Information that Is
not secured by e technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals end Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredilad by'
the American National Standards Instliuta.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidenlial Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Conlract. Further. Contractor
Including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees end egents. must not
use. dispose, mslntarn or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

. 2. The Conlrsctof must not discJose eny Confidential Information in response to e

SaewrttyRoqu(mii«nti il / ic,
P«9oZoffl Data ..
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request for disclosure on me tjesls that (t Is require by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc.. wfthoirt flret notifying DHHS so thet OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or ob|ect to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrtcttoh.B over af>d above those uses or disclosures or security eefeguerds of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy ertd Security Rule, the Conlrector rhusi be bound by such
additional raatrlctlorw and must not disclose PHI.In violabori. of such additional
restrtcttons and must abide by any eddltionei security safeguards!

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to en End
User must only b6 used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Conlrector egrees OHHS Data obtained under this Conlroct may not be used for
eny other purposes mat ere not Indlceted In this Contract

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorlzed representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspisctlng to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the appiicatior^ have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryptiori capabilities ensure secure transmission via me Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such es a thumb drive, as a rnemod of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ, email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons aumorlzed to receive such infonmatioh.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing mo Web to transmit Confidential
' Data, me secure socket layers (SSL) -must be used and me web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharirig Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Sloraae to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mat! Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cerf/fled ground
mail within the continenlal U.S. and when-sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and ■ PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted.end password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V4. W.04.20tS Contr«tolnSnb_Zv^
. DHHS InfomtDon ^ r
Sa^rtty RBqUr«n«na W. / 10
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

.9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private rretwork (VPN) must t3G
Installed on the End User's mobile devlc©(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User vtrill
stAicturo the Folder end access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP foWere and sub-folders used'for transmitting Confidential Data will
bo coded for 24-hour auto-delellon cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours)./

H. Wiroless Devices. If End User Is transmitting.Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of Information.

(11. RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for .the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Corilrector will have 30 days to destroy the dale and any
derivative In s^atever form It'may exist, unless, othenivise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

t. The Contractor agrees It will not store, irensfer or process date collected In
connection wtth the services rendered under this Contrect outside of the United
States. This physical locallon requirement shall also epply In the implementation of
cloud compuling, cloud service or doud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data end Disaster Recovery locellons.-

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to delect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems

^  and/or Department confidential Infonnation for contractor provided systems.
3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness ar>d education for Its End

Users In support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contracior agrees to retein ell electronic and hard copies of Corifidentlal Data
In e secure location and Identified In section IV. A.2 - ' • .

5. The Contracior agrees Conndentlal Data stored In a Cloud must be In e
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply wrth all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and BGcurily. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest enti-vlral. antl-
hacker, entl-spam, anti-spywaro. and antLmalware utllrtles. The environment, as a

v4.L«vpd.to04.04.20ia co«t«ctD,wa.b
OKHS (ntonttion
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewairprotectlon.

6: The Contractor agrees to end ensures Its complete cooperation with (he State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any eacurfty vulnarabllity of the hostir^
infrestructure.

B. Disposition

1. II the Contractor will maintain any Confidential information on Ha systems (or Its
sub^ntractor systems), (he Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such dats upon request or contract termlnaUon; end will

^  obtain written certrflcalion for any Stale of New Hempshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors es a part of ongoing, emergency, end or dlsester
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media contalnlng'State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a. secure wipe program
in accordance vHth industry-accepted startdards for secure deletion'and madia
sanitizetion. or otherwise physically destreying the rhedla (for example,
degaussing) as described'in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Ssnitizatlon. National Institute of Standards end Technology, U. S.
Department of Commarce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necasaary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed end-validated. Where applicable,
regulatory end professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, wHhin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy eU herd copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidentiei Data
by means of 'data erasure, also known as secure date wplng.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, end eny
derivative date or files, as follows;

1. The Conlrector wii) maintain prop>er security' 'controls to protect Department
confidential Information collecled, processed, managed, entVor stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contrector will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, trensforrnatlbn, use; storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the dale'(l.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V4.Ustupdtta 04.04.2016 ExhlbtK CotVMtor tnSl&b ̂
OHHS InfetiMtlOA
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3. The Contractof will maintain approprtate authenticatjon end access controls to
contractor systems thai collect, transmit or store Oepartmsnt confidential Information
where applicable.

A. The Contrectof will ensure proper security monitoring capabnitlas are In place to
detect potoniial security events that can Imped State of NH eystems end/or
Depar^ent confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and educatton for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will' tie sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or proce'sses that defines specific -security
expeptations. and monitoring compliance to security requirements thai et.e minimum
match those for the Contractor, Including breach nol/fication requirements.

7. The Contractor will work wflh the Department to sign and comply wHh all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access end authortxatlon policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use egraements as part of
obtaining end maintaining access to any Department ayatemfs). Agreements will be
completed end signed by the Contractor end any applicable sub^niractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department detenmines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute e HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department end is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor virlll work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Conlraclor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, end vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contrador engagement. The survey, will be completed
annually, or en altemate lime frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagemenl between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express vrritten consent is. obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member wflhin the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to InvesUgate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
•The State shall recover from the Contractor ell costs of response end recovery from

V..U««x..U04.«J016 .
DHHS InfomttiOA
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the breach, Inducing but not Cmlted to: credit monitorfng aervJces, mailing coels and
costs aasoclated with website and telephone ceil center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with a!) applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy end security of Conhdenllal Inrormatlon, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pi end PHI at e level and scope that Is nol less
then the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to. provlsksns of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually Idenirfiabte health
Information ar^ as.appllcabie under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish end meintairi appropriate edminlstretlve, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidenllality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide e level end
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of securtty requirements

• established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at httpsyAvww.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/lndex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, end
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notlffcetion end incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer, and
addftlonai email addresses provided In this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of Its occurrence. This includes a
confidentJal Information breach, computer security Incident, or suspected breach
which effects or Includes eny State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contrector must restrict access ta the Confidenljal Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who r^eed such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection v^h purposes Identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
Implemented to protect ConfidenUel Informaltan that Is furnished by DHHS
urxJer this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and otf>er electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI ere encrypted and password^protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
Bent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V4.L»ilupdat# 04.04.2016 . EjN&AK Cmbvctor InUito.
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e. limit disclosure of the ConfWentJBl InfomiaUon to the extent permitted by law.
f. ^nfldenUal Information received under thb Contrect end IndMduelly

identlfteblo data dertved from DHHS Data, must bo stored In en area that Is
phyelcally end technologically secure from ecceee by unauthoftzed pemons
during duty hours as well es non-duty hoore (e.g., door locks, card keve
blometdcldentifiere, etc.). '

g. only euthorlzed End Users may tranamH the ConfidenUal Data, Including any
derfvallve files containing personafly Identifiable Information, arid In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at an times when In transit, at rest, or wheri
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. In ell other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used end
disclosed using approprteto safeguards, as determined by e risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

1. u^eretand that their user credenUals (user name and password) must noi be
shared wHh anyone. End Users wiD keep their credential Information secure
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indlrectty ihrouoh
8 third party application. '

Contractor Is responsible for oversight end compliance of their End Users. DHHS
i^^es the right to conduct onslte Inspections to monitof compliance with this
Contract, Including the privacy and security requirentents provided In herein. HIPAA
end olrier applicable lews and'Federal regulations until such lima Ihe ConfWentlel Data
Is disposed of in accordance vdth this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer. Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches wtthin two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence. '

The Contractor must further handle end report Incidonts and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agenc/s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In eccordance wHh 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance wHh all applicable obligations and procedures
Contractor's procedures must also addreBS how the Contrector will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If persorwlly Identifiable Information Is involved In InckJenta;
3. Report auapecled or conflnned Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:
4. Identify and convene e core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

•end determine rlslc-based responses to Incldents. and

OHHS inromutUon "
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5. Determlhe wtiether Breach rtoUflcatlon is required, and. If so. identify approprtste
Breach rratlflcaUon methods, timing, source, end contents from among different
options, end bear costs essociated with the Breach notice es as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breeches that Implicate PI must be eddressed end reported, as
eppllceble, In eccordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS to CONTACT

A. OHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInformaUonSecur1tyOfnce@dhh8.hh.gov

6. DHHS contecla for Privacy Issues:

DHHSPriv8cyOfficer@dhh8.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security Issues:

OHH$lnformatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInfonn8tlonSecurityOffice@dhh8.nh.gov

DHHSPriv8cy.0fficef@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. Le3lupd>lo04.M.30ie ' EihQAK ■ Cony»ctOf Inilsb.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Targeted Prevention Programming for
DCYF-lnvolved Families Contract

This 3rd Amendment to the Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New Hampshire,. Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and The Family
Resource Center at Gorham. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of
business at 123 Main Street, Gorham, NH 03581.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 2, 2018, (Item #20), as amended on May 15, 2019, (Item #17A), as amended and approved by the
Governor on July 20, 2020 and presented to the Executive Council as an Informational Item on August 26,
2020 (Informational Item #M), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,349,991.

3. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #1, Section 2. Scope of Services, by adding Subsection 2.7. Data
and Reporting, Paragraph 2.7.3. to read:

2.7.3. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys,
and other data collection requests, as deemed necessary by the Department and/or
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

4. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 3. Performance Measures, by adding
Subsection 3.3. to read:

3.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract management,
improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

5. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 4. Deliverables, by replacing in its
entirety with Section 4. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards, to read:

4. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

4.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded initiatives,
the Contractor shall establish formal Information sharing and referral agreements with
all Doorways for substance use services that comply with all applicable confidentiality
laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

PSThe Family Resource Center at Gorham Amendment #3 • • Contraclorlnitials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

4.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract implementation.

4.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

4.4.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required timeframe, the
Contractor shair submit an updated implementation plan to the Department for
approval to outline anticipated service start dates.

4.4.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and liquidate
unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) days of the contract
effective date.

4.5. The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs program for clients
identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

4.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly
screened for tobacco use. treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of
treatment planning.

4.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with
all appropriate DHHS, State of NH, SAfyiHSA, and other Federal terms, conditions, and
requirement.

4.8. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

4.8.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (CUD).

4.8.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or organization that
provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or
mental disorders.

4.8.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

4.8.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

4.8.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department within
thirty (30) days of contract approval.

4.9. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to:

4.9.1. Invoicing:

4.9.2. Funding restrictions; and

4.9.3. Billing.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B Amendment #3, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which is attached

rsThe Family Resource Center at Gorham Amendment #3 Contractorlnitials^^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit B-2 Amendment #1 SFY 2019 Budget by reducing the total budget amount by
$223,133, of which $146,309 is identified as unspent funding that is being carried forward to fund
the activities in this Agreement for SFY 21 (July 1. 2021 through September 29, 2021), as
specified, in part, in Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 Budget NCE.

8. Modify Exhibit B^3 Amendment #1 SFY 2020 Budget by reducing the total budget amount by
$49,298, which is identified as unspent funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities
in this Agreement for SFY 21 (July 1, 2021 through September 29, 2021), as specified, in part, in
Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 Budget NCE.

9. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 Budget NCE, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3 Budget SOR II, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit B-8 Amendment #3 Budget SOR II, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

The Family Resource Center at Gorham Amendment #3 Contractor Initials OL-
RFP-2018-BDAS-04-TARGE-02-A03 Page 3 of 5 Date ̂ V24/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #3
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/30/2020

Date

G—DocuSlgnMi by:
_ cnorvKEViifri

Name: Katja fox

Director

The Family Resource Center at Gorham

11/24/2020

Date

—DoeuSISbbd by:

?96ao6tr*Oi'itrc
Name: Patti stolte •

Title: Executive Director

The Family Resource Center at Gorham Amendment #3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-involved Families

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

*OocuSigned by:

12/1/2020 '

Date Na'me^Cat^en ne Pi nos
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Family Resource Center at Gorham Amendment #3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

EXHIBIT B Amendment #3

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on 09/30/2018,
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental

Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and
as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN
H79TI083326 and the Targeting Capacity Expansion State Targeted Response to the
Opioid Crisis Grant, as awarded on 05/01/2017 by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Center
for Substance Abuse Treatment, CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI080246.'

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 Budget NCE through Exhibit B-8 Amendment #3
Budget SOR II.

3. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

3.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

3.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

3.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows:

3.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization
(MCQ), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the
MCO.

3.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

3.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale
Program.

3.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,
charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)
working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is
completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall

fS
The Family Resource Center at Gorham Exhibit B Contractor initials^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

EXHIBIT B Amendment #3

be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.
The Contractor shall ensure:

4.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

4.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for
wages reported under this contract.

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430{i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries

and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

4.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the

Department upon request.

4.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported:

4.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

4.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

4.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

4.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

4.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

4.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

4.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

4.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference

grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the

FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to
exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

4.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

4.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

4.1.5. Cost center reports.

4.1.6. Profit and loss report.

PS
The Family Resource Center al Gorham Exhibits Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

EXHIBIT B Amendment #3

4.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

4.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on

third party revenue received.

4.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other

financial information as requested by the Department.

5. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with further

restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FDA).

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to

melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SCR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the

last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

8. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each

invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

9. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract

completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

10. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in compliance with

funding requirements.

11. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part

in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Scope of Services,

including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting

amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years

and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both

parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

justified.

13. Audits

DS

FS
The Family Resource Center at Gortiam Exhibit B Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

EXHIBIT B Amendment #3

13.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the
following conditions exist:

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds

received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently
completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of
$1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by

an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days
after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the
Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be
required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by an
independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the
Contractor is high-risk.

13.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for
any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments
made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been

disallowed because of such an exception.

fS
The Family Resource Center at Gorham Exhibit B Contractor Inltialsv
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Sccrclarj' ofStalc of the Siaic ofNcw Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE FAMILY RESOURCE

CENTER AT GORHAM is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April

03. 1997. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretar>' of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as f«ir as this olTice is concerned.

Business ID; 270161

Certificate Number; 0004916605

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alTixed

the Seal of the Stale of New l lampshire.

this 18th day of May A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Sccretar>' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Linda Lamirande, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of The Family Resource Center at Gorham.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 16, 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Patricia Stolte, Executive Director,

is duly authorized on behalf of The Family Resource Center at Gorham to enter into contracts or agreements with
the.State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: November 10,2020
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Linda Lamirande

Title:. President. Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OOrrVYY)

05/14/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ Fairley Kenneally
Kp-n. (603) 293-2791 (603)293-7188
ADC^SS' fs''l4y®*S'nsurance.net

INSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAK f

INSURER A Great American Insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

Family Resource Center at Gorham

123 Main Street

Gorham NH 03581

INSURER 8 Travelers Property Casualty Co of America 25674

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER e

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 20-21 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE n?n!iKK!! POUCY NUMBER

POUCY EFF
(MMrtXVYYYYl

POUCY EXP
(MM/DOTYYYYI UMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GEINERAL LIABIUTY

E  I X] OCCUR

MAC3793560-14 05/10/2020 05/10/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1,000.000

1 CLAIMS4AA0 DAUAGb lU KhNlbU

PREMISES iFaoeeurranral
, 100,000

MED EXP (Anv ana oaraonl , 5.000

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY , 1.000.000

GEffLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q JE(^ Q LOG
OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE , 3.000.000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
, 3.000,000

AbMol Daycare.lncAnoPA S 1.000,000

AU1rOMOBILE UABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Fa acddant)

s

ANYAUTO

:heouleo
ITOS

BODILY INJURY (Par paraon] s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

8C

J BODILY INJURY (Par acddani) s

NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par arj-jdanll

s

s

A

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

1
UMB113776406 05/10/2020 05/10/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 1.000,000

AGGREGATE , 1.000,000

DEO 1 1 RETENTION S 1 s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABILITY y/N
ANY PfiOPRIETOR/PARTNERfEXECUTrVE rtn
OFFICERAIEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH) " '
If yat. daa^ba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS ImIow

NrA 6JUB4N33995320 i 01/01/2020 01/01/2021

S/T PER OTH-
^ STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT , 500,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE , 500,000

E.L DISEASE - POLICY UMIT J 500.000

A
Professional Liability

MAC379356D-14 05/10/2020 05/10/2021 per occurrence

aggregate

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarfcs Sehodulo. may ba attaehad If mera spaea la radulrad)

State of NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 <2016/03)

e 1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



DocuSign Envelope ID; 0BE7CA41-BDB4-4A4A-A176-ABC85D9FD60F

the family
resource cefiter

at Gorham

MISSION:

To build healthier families and stronger communities through

positive relations, programs and collaborations In the North

Country of New Hampshire



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0BE7CA41-BDB4-4A4A-A176.ABC85O9FD80F

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PloTKfMntl AMndiirinii

OUfmiiil) PUBUC ACXXDUNTANTS
V\0Ln3)01l0 • NORTH CONWAY

DOVE* •CONCORD

STILATIL^M

To the Board of Directors

Family Resource Center at Gorham
Gorham. New Hampshire

We have audited the financial statements of Family Resource Center at Gorham (the
Resource Center) for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 29, 2020. Professional standards require that we provide you
with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards
as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We
have communicated such information in our engagement letter to you dated June 1,
2020. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following
information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.
The significant accounting policies used by the Resource Center are described in Note
1 to the financial statements. As described in Note 1, the Resource Center changed
accounting policies related to contributions, statement .of cash flows and financial
instruments by adopting FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2018-08, Clarifying
the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions
Made. ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows, and ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments
- Overall Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities in
2020. Accordingly, the financial statement changes have been retrospectively applied to
prior periods presented as if these policies had always been used. We noted no
transactions entered into by the Resource Center during the year for which there is a
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

We noted no transactions entered into by the Resource Center during the year for which
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have
been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates
are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from
those expected.

10 pUPl^Y ROAD ..NORTH CONWAY, NEW HAMPSHIRE 038(50.. (503 356-^3,58 . FAX (503 35(5-2149 • www.lmrpa.com.
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Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the
financial statements include the following:

•  Footnote 2 - Liquidity and availability
•  Footnote 3 - Investments

•  Footnote 7 - Net assets

•  Footnote 9 - Endowment fund

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered In Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate
level of management. We noted no such misstatements that were not corrected by
management.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report
that no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated September 29, 2020.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about
"auditing and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain
situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the
Resource Center's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the
relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.
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Other Findings or Issues

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements,
we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and
methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, the method of preparing it has not
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in
relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and
management of Family Resource Center ,at Gorham and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

September 29, 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0BE7CA41-BDB4-4A4A-A176-ABC85D9FD80F

Financial Statements

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts
PROFESSIONAL ASSOQATION

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



DocuSign Envelope ID: 08E7CA41.BDB4^A4A-A176-ABC85D9FD80F

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors' Report

Paqefs)

1 -2

Financial Statements:

Statements of Financial Position

Statements of Activities

Statements of Cash Flows

Statements of Functional Expenses

Notes to Financial Statements

3

4-5

6

7-8

9-18

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 19

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards 20-21

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by
Uniform Guidance 22-23

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 24



DocuSign Envelope ID; 0BE7CA41-BOB4-4A4A-A17&ABC85O9FD80F ,

Leone, ,
McDonnell
&Roberts

FVolVuuunil Auociulian

CXSTIFIED PUBLIC ACC0UNTANI3
UDLFIBORO . NORTH CONWAV

DONT* . CONCORD

To the Board of Directors stra-hiam

Family Resource Center at Gorham
Gorham, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Family Resource Center at
Gorham (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of activities,
cash flows, and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management's Responsibilitv for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the organization's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Qpmion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Family Resource Center at Gorham as of June 30,
2020 and 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion .on the financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated September 29, 2020, on our consideration of Family Resource Center at
Gorham's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

September 29, 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Certificates of deposit
Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment

Buildings

Total

Less; accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investments

Agency deposits - cash

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

2020

551,854

83,447

141,207
13,779

790,287

74,932

51,575
70,015

196,522
(101,322)

95,200

202,792

202,792

2019

414,332

81,893

417,558
15,149

928,932

74,932

51,575

126,507
(95,385)

31,122

207,279
22,240

229,519

$  1,088,279 $ 1,189,573

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Agency deposits
Refundable advances

Total current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

5,818

52,422

7,343

65,583

815,601
207,095

1,022,696

7,144

35,014

22,240
9,649

74,047

902,278
213,248

1,115,526

$  1,088,279 $ 1,189,573

See Notes to Financial Statements
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants

Medicaid

Donations

Agency rents
Investment return

Without Donor

Restrictions

1,903,286

432,237

49.201

38,175

With Donor

Restrictions

(6,153)

Total

$  1,903,286

432,237

49,201

38,175

(6,153)

Interest income 2,088 - 2,088
Other income 43,878 - 43,878

Total revenues and support 2,468,865 (6,153) 2,462,712

EXPENSES

Program services 2,232,196 - 2,232,196
Management and general 323,346 - 323,346

Total expenses 2,555,542 - 2,555,542

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS (86,677) (6,153) (92,830)

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 902,278 213,248 1,115,526

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  815,601 $ 207,095 $  1,022,696

See Notes to Financial Statements
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants

Medicaid

Donations

Agency rents
Investment return

Interest income

Other income
Net assets released from restrictions

$  1,635,790

574,200

60,168

36,602

2,406

13,043
5,000

$

(2,911)

(5,000)

$  1,635,790
574,200

60,168

36,602
(2,911)

2,406

13,043

Total revenues and support 2,327,209 (7,911) 2,319,298

EXPENSES

Program services
Management and general

1,772,364
202,667

- 1,772,364
202,667

Total expenses 1,975,031 1,975,031

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 352,178 (7,911) 344,267

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 550,100 221,159 771,259

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  902,278 $ 213,248 $  1,115,526

See Notes to Financial Statements

5



DocuSign Envelope ID; 0BE7CA41.BDB4-4A4A-A17e-A8C85D9FD80F

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities;

Unrealized loss on investments

Realized gains on investments
Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Agency deposits
Refundable advances

$  (92,830) $ 344,267

13,788

(6,621)
5,937

276,351

1,370

(1.326)
17,408

(22,240)
(2,306)

4,780

(1,322)
4,466

(166,309)

(5,708)

(1.746)
6,158

14

(5,150)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 189,531 179,450

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the sale of investments

Purchase of investments and certificates of deposit

Additions to property and equipment

275,107

(279,341)

(70,015)

390,324

(393,769)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (74,249) (3,445)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

AND RESTRICTED CASH 115,282 176,005

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH,

BEGINNING OF YEAR 436,572 260,567

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH,

END OF YEAR $  551,854 $ 436,572

CASH BALANCES

Cash and equivalents, operating
Agency deposits - cash

$  551,854 $ 414,332

-  22,240

Total cash and equivalents and restricted cash $  551,854 $ 436,572

See Notes to Financial Statements
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

Program

Services

Personnel Costs

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes

Employee benefits
Travel

Program activities
Contractors and consultants

Food and supplies
Conferences and meetings
Heat and utilities

Telephone, internet, fax and cable
Training
Accounting fees .
Rent

Technology
Maintenance, cleaning and inspections
Liability insurance
Small equipment
Depreciation
Printing
Advertising
Payroll processing service
Property insurance

Postage and shipping
Bank charges

Total

Management
and

General Total

$ 1,514,963 $ 205,829 $ 1,720,792

111,268 15,173 126,441

136,049 39,526 175,575

144,130 '  1,377 145,507

97,595 4,385 101,980

39,779 19,831 59,610

50,814 - ■  50,814

36,860 - 36,860

19,405 1,021 20,426

16,516 1,360 17,876

13,049 175 13.224

1,815 11,395 13,210

11,667 - 11,667

1,500 9,313 10,813

8,505 1,501 10,006

7,000 2,660 9,660

8,408 483 8,891

1,792 4,145 5,937

3,637 1,018 4,655

2,917 190 3,107
- 3,079 3,079

2,412 426 2,838

2,064 227 2,291
51 232 283

$ 2,232,196 $ 323,346 $ 2,555,542

See Notes to Financial Statements
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

Personnel Costs

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits

Travel

Program activities

Conferences and meetings
Contractors and consultants

Food and supplies
Heat and utilities

Telephone, internet, fax and cable

Rent

Accounting fees
Training

Maintenance, cleaning and inspections
Small equipment
Liability insurance
Technology
Advertising
Student transportation
Printing
Depreciation

Payroll processing service
Property insurance
Postage and shipping
Bank charges
Other

Total

Management

Program and

Services General Total

$  1,121,186 $ 136,380 $  1,257,566

79,700 11,909 91,609

112,243 22,322 134,565

144,838 1,531 146,369

86,905 1,125 88,030

28,584 5,445 34,029

29,997 1,663 31,660

28,946 1,931 30,877

19,620 1,033 20,653

17,985 117 18,102

15,025 - 15,025

12,003 .  2,154 14,157

13,283 176 13,459

9,714 2,429 12,143

11,486 470 11,956

10,134 1,060 11,194
- 7,774 7,774

7,404 204 7,608

7,560 - 7,560

6,567 283 6,850

3,573 893 4,466
- 2,896 2,896

995 405 •  1,400

742 158 900

- 309 309

3,874 - 3,874

$  1,772,364 $ 202,667 $  1,975,031

See Notes to Financial Statements
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAWI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Family Resource Center at Gorham (the Resource Center) is a voluntary, not-for-
profit corporation incorporated under the la\ws of the State of Ne\w Hampshire (RSA 292)
and organized exclusively for tax exempt charitable and educational purposes. The
principal activity of the Resource Center is to deliver programming that works to build
healthier families and stronger communities. These programs remove obstacles to
healthy family function and development, providing access to social and educational
services to at-risk and underserved North Country populations. Primary programs
include;

Home visiting programs that deliver evidence based early child
development and parenting support curricula which empowers parents
and gives them the motivations and skills to improve parenting and foster
healthy family dynamics;

Afterschool programs that support the academic, social and emotional
developmental needs of students in grades K-8;

An IRS sanctioned Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) program that
provides free tax preparation services to community members in need
maximizing income tax refunds;

A Substance Misuse program that utilizes peer support for recovery and
family reunification.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Resource Center have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Resource
Center to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the
following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Resource Center. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Resource Center's management and
board of directors.
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Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Resource Center or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

Other Events

The impact of the novel coronavirus ("COVID-19") and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Resource Center's operations. The significance of the
impact of these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the
Resource Center's financial and operational results, will be dictated by the length of
time that such disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently
unknowable duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental
regulations that might be imposed in response to the pandemic. The Resource
Center's operations could also be impacted by COVID-19 by service-disruption that
causes decreases to Medicaid revenue as well as leading to changes in client and
donor behavior. The COVID-19 impact on the capital markets could also impact the
Resource Center's cost of borrowing. There are certain limitations on the Resource
Center's ability to mitigate the adverse financial impact of these items. COVID-19
also makes it more challenging for management to estimate future performance of
the operations, particularly over the near to medium term.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all monies in banks and liquid investments with
maturity dates of less than three months. The carrying value of cash and cash
equivalents approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those
financial instruments.

/

Investments

Investments are accounted for according to Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 958-320 Not For Profit Entities - Investments - Debt and Equity Securities.
Under ASC 958-320, investments in marketable securities with readily determinable
fair values and all investments in debt securities are valued at their fair values in the

statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the
change in net assets. Fair values of investments are based on quoted prices in active
markets for identical investments.

10
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorjied at cost if purchased and at fair value If donated.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets as follows;

Furniture and equipment 5-15 years
Leasehold improvements 20 years
Buildings 39 years

The Resource Center's policy is to capitalize all assets over $2,500 with an expected life
of one year or longer. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the
accounts, along with the related depreciation allowance, and any gain or loss is
recognized.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as increases in net assets without donor
restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions depending on the existence and/or
nature of any donor or time restrictions. A purpose restriction permits the Resource
Center to use donated assets as specified for a particular purpose. Net assets restricted
in perpetuity are those that are required to be permanently maintained, but income from
such investments may be used for specified purposes. All donor restricted support is
reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of
the restriction.

When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished), net assets are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Contributed Services

From time to time, the Resource Center receives donated services in carrying out
the mission and fundraising activities of the Resource Center. Such donations do not.
meet the criteria for recognition under ASC 958 and accordingly no amounts ,are
reflected in the financial statements for those services.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized
on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the program services
and supporting- activities benefited. Such allocations have been determined by
management on an equitable basis.

The expenses that are allocated include the following:

Expense Method of Allocation

Salaries and benefits Time and effort

Occupancy Square footage
Depreciation Square footage
All other expenses Direct assignment

11
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Refundable Advances

The Resource Center records grant/contract revenue as a refundable advance until it
is expended for the purpose of the grant/contract, at which time it is recognized as
revenue.

Income Taxes

The Resource Center is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Resource Center qualifies for the charitable
contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation.

Management has evaluated the Resource Center's tax positions and concluded that the
Resource Center has maintained its tax-exempt status and has taken no uncertain tax
positions that would require adjustment to the financial statements. With few
exceptions, the Resource Center is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the
United States Federal or State tax authorities prior to 2016.

Leased Facilities

The Resource Center leases its current facility from the Town of Gorham. In lieu of
rent, the Resource Center is responsible for the cost of repairs and maintenance,
insurance, utilities and rubbish removal. The lease expired on June 30, 2020. The
lease continues under the same terms on a month to month basis.

The Resource Center in turn sublets space in the facility to other nonprofit and
community agencies at an average rate of approximately $10 - $16 per square foot. All
participating organizations must provide services to a client base that is at least 66%
low and moderate income.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable from various public and other nonprofit organizations at June 30,
2020 and 2019 were considered fully collectable and therefore no provisions for bad
debts have been made in these financial statements.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for
comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current year financial
statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic No' 820-10, Fair Value Measurement, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market based measurement, not an entity specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC
820-10, the Resource Center may use valuation techniques consistent with market,
income and cost approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market
participant assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC Topic 820-10 establishes a fair
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value hierarchy, \which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy
gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level-3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820-10 are
described as follows;

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for Identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Resource Center's investments were all classified as
Level 1 and were based on fair value.

The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at
fair value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2020 and
2019.

Equities: Valued at the closing market price on the stock exchange where
they are traded (primarily the New York Stock Exchange).

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value (NAV) of shares held by the
Resource Center at year end.

The preceding method may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Resource
Center believes its valuation method is appropriate and consistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value
of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the

reporting date.

New Accounting Pronouncements

During the year, the Resource Center adopted, the provisions of FASB ASU 2018-08,
Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made (Topic 958). This accounting standard is meant to help not-for-profit
entities evaluate whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions or as

exchange transactions and, if the transaction is identified as a contribution, whether it is
conditional or unconditional. ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an organization determines
whether a resource provider is receiving commensurate value in return for a grant. If the
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resource provider does receive commensurate value from the grant recipient, the
transaction is an exchange transaction. If no commensurate value is received by the grant
maker, the transfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value
received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending June 30, 2020
and 2019 are presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The coinparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported under the accounting standards in effect in
those reporting periods. There was no material impact to the financial statements as a
result of adoption. Accordingly, no adjustment to opening net assets was recorded.

During the year, the Resource Center also adopted the provisions of FASB ASU 2016-18,
Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230). This ASU requires that a statement of cash flows
explain the change during the period In the total cash, cash equivalents, and amounts
generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. Therefore, amounts
generally described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should be included
with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-
period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The amendments in the ASU
do not provide a definition of restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. The Resource
Center has applied the provisions of ASU 2016-18 to retrospectively to all periods
presented with no effect on net assets or previously issued financial statements.

Effective for the Resource Center in 2020, FASB ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments -
Overall Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Topic
825-10) allows a NFP to choose, on an investment-by-investment basis, to report an
equity investment without a readily determinable fair value, that does not qualify for the
practical expedient fair value in accordance with FASB ASC 820-10-35-59, at its cost
minus impairment, if any, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes
in orderly transactions for the identical or a similar investment of the same issue. The
FASB ASU requires additional disclosures about those investments. Adoption of this
accounting pronouncement had no effect on the Resource Center's 2019 and 2020
financial statements.

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Resource Center's financial assets as of June 30, 2020 and
2019:

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 551,855 $ 414,332
Certificates of deposit 83,447 81,893
Grants receivable 141,207 417.558
Investments 202,792 207,279

Agency deposits - cash : 22.240

Total financial assets $ 979.301 $ 1.143.302

14



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0BE7CA41.BDB4-4A4A-A176-ABC85D9FD80F

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions $ 207,095 $ 213,248
Amount board designated for

long-term maintenance 24,064 21,654
Agency deposits - cash : 22.240

Amounts not available within one year . 231.159 257.142

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 748.142 S 886.160

The Resource Center's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 90 days of
operating expenses (approximately $630,000). As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is
invested in short-term investments, including money market accounts.

3. INVESTMENTS

Investrhents held in the form of mutual funds at Bank of America are stated at fair value.

Realized gains and losses are determined on the specific identification method. Gains
and, losses (realized and unrealized) are reported in the statement of activities as
increases or decreases to net assets without donor restrictions, except for those
investments for which their use is restricted. Information on investments at June 30,
2020 and 2019 is presented as follows:

2020 2019

Market Market

Cost Value Cost Value

Equities $ 102,339 $ 97,245 $ - $
Mutual Funds 103.989 105.547 197.027 207.279

Totals $ 206.328 $ 202.792 $ 197.027 $ 207.279

Components of investment return:

2020 2019

Interest and dividends $ 4,927 $ 4,721
Unrealized loss (13,788) (4,780)
Realized gain 6,621 1,322
Investment fees (3.913) (4.174)

Total investment return $ (6.153) $ (2.911)
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4. AGENCY DEPOSITS

The Resource Center served as a fiscal agent for the Androscoggin Valley Community
Partners (formerly the Berlin Area Healthcare Consortium), a collaborative effort of area
health and social services agencies intended to provide health related education,
information and communications .to the communities of Berlin and Gorham. The
amounts held on behalf of the consortium as of June 30, 2019 was $22,240. During
August of 2019, the money was returned and the fiscal agent relationship ended.

5. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

In April 2013, the Resource Cienter entered into a revolving line of credit agreement with
a bank. The revolving line of credit agreement provides for maximum borrowings up to
$75,000 and is collateralized by a certificate of deposit held at the same bank. The
revolving line of credit and the certificate of deposit both renew every six months. At
June 30. 2020 and 2019, the interest rate on the revolving line of credit was stated at
the bank's prime rate of 3.15% and 5.20%, respectively. There were no balances
outstanding as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.

6. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK - CASH

The Resource Center maintains cash balances that, at times, may exceed federally
insured limits. The cash balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per bank at June 30, 2020 and 2019. The Resource
Center has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed
to any significant risk with these accounts. Cash balances in excess of FDIC insured
limits amounted to $260,487 and $211,709 at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019,
respectively.

7. NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows for the years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019:

2020 2019

Restrictions in perpetuity:
Endowment $ 207.095 $ 213.248

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 207.095 $ 213.248

V

Net assets without donor restrictions for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as
follows:

2020 2019

Undesignated ^ $ 791,536 $ 880,624
Board designated 24.065 21.654

Total net assets without donor restrictions $ 815.601 $ 902.278
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Net assets released from donor restrictions are as follows:

2020 2019

Satisfaction of Time Restrictions:

Contributions I : $ 5.000

Total net assets released S S 5.000

8. NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS - BOARD DESIGNATED

By vote of the Board of Directors, funds have been designated for long term building
• maintenance. Net assets without donor restrictions designated by the board was
$24,064 and $21,654 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

9- ENDOWMENT FUND
In 2007, the Resource Center established a permanent endowment fund for the
organization with the intent of accumulating donations and interest earnings of one
million dollars. Per the laws of the State of New. Hampshire (RSA 292-B:4), 7% of the
fair market value of the endowment fund, calculated on the basis of fair market value

determined at least quarterly and averaged over a period of not less than three years
may be appropriated for operating account expenditures. No distributions were taken
during the years ended June 30. 2020 and 2019.

The Not-for-Profit Entities Topic of the FASB ASC (ASC 958-205 and subsections)
intends to improve the quality of consistency of financial reporting of endowments held
by not-for-profit organizations. This Topic provides guidance on classifying the net
assets associated with donor-restricted endowment funds held by organizations that are
subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management Institutional Funds
Act (UPMIFA). New Hampshire has adopted UPMIFA. The Topic also requires
additional financial statement disclosures on endowments and related net assets.

The Resource Center has followed an investment and spending policy to ensure a total
return (income plus capital change) necessary to preserve the principal of the fund and
at the same time, provide a dependable source of support to help build healthier
families and stronger communities.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, the Resource Center only invests
the fund in cash and mutual funds. The Resource Center has taken a risk adverse

approach to managing the endowment fund in order to mitigate financial market risk
such as interest rate, credit and overall market volatility, which could substantially
impact the fair value of the endowment fund at any given time.
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Fund activity for June 30, 2020 and 2019 was as follows:

Balances

as of

June 30. 2019

Activity
for the

Year Ended

June 30. 2020

Balances

as of

June 30. 2020

Permanent gifts $  175,809 $ $ 175,809

Investment earnings 53,462 4,927 58,389

Realized gain 52,659 6,621 59,280

Transfer to unrestricted (41,590) - (41,590)
Investment expense (37,344) (3.913) (41,257)
Unrealized gain (loss) 10.252 f13.788) (3.536)

S  213248 $ (6.153) $ 207.095

Activity
Balances for the Balances

as of Year Ended as of

June 30. 2018 June 30. 2019 June 30. 2019

Permanent gifts $  175,809 $ - $ 175,809

Investment earnings 48,741 4,721 53,462

Realized gain 51,337 1,322 52,659

Transfer to unrestricted (41,590) - (41,590)
Investment expense .(33,170) (4.174) (37,344)
Unrealized gain (loss) 15.032 (4.780) 10.252

S  216.159 $ (2 911^

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates iriherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non recognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date.

Subsequent to year end, the Resource Center applied for and received a $298,000 loan
from the Small Business Administration's Payroll Protection Program. If certain criteria
are met, the loan will be forgiven.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 29, 2020, the date
the June 30, 2020 financial statements were available for issuance.
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ FEDERAL

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ CFDA

PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER

U.S. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Passed through State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Division of Children, Youth and Families

Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program 93.645
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556
Social Services Block Grant 93.667

TANF CLUSTER

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.558

93.558

PASS

THROUGH

GRANTOR

NUMBER

42106802

42107306

42106603

45030206

45030353

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

8,941

41.130

154,223

72,529
130,879

203,408

Maternal & Child Health Services Block Grant for States 93.994

MATERNAL, INFANT AND EARLY CHILDHOOD HOME VISITING CLUSTER

Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program 93.870
Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program 93.870

90004009

05-95-90-902010-5896

05-95-90-902010-5896

10,978

146,927
178,351

325,278

Division of Behavioral Health, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
Opioid STR 93.788

Passed through Easter Seals
MEDICAID CLUSTER

Medical Assistance Program 93.778

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Passed through State of New Hampshire Department of Education
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers 84.287

Total U.S. Department of Education

Total expenditures of federal awards

05-95-92-920510-7040

None

20200011

548,805

1,935

$ 1,294,698

$  240,905

$  240,905

$ 1,535,603

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of Family Resource
Center at Gorham under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2020, The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Family Resource Center at Gorham, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets, or cash flows of Family Resource Center.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the
cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, where in certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited to reimbursement.
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported
as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE C-INDIRECT COST RATE

Family Resource Center at Gorham has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Family Resource Center at Gorham
Gorham, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Family Resource Center at Gorham (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization),
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the
related statements of activities, cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 29, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Family Resource
Center at Gorham's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements,^ but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these liniitations, during our audit we did
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not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Family Resource Center at Gorham's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement

amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed'no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

September 29, 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Family Resource Center at Gorham
Gorham, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

\A/e have audited Family Resource Center at Gorham's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Family Resource Center at Gorham's major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2020. Family Resource Center at Gorham's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Family Resource Center at
Gorham's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Family Resource Center at Gorham's compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Family
Resource Center at Gorham's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Family Resource Center at Gorham complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over ComDilance

Management of Family Resource Center at Gorham is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Family
Resource Center at Gorham's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

September 29, 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Family Resource Center at Gorham were prepared in accordance
with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No
material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Family
Resource Center at Gorham, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance.
No material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Family
Resource Center at Gorham expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal
programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2
CFR 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Education;
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers, CFDA - 84.287, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Opioid STR, CFDA - 93.788

8. The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Family Resource Center at Gorham Family Resource Center at Gorham was
determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

None

24



OocuSign Envelope ID; 0BE7CA41.BDB4-4A4A-A17&ABC85D9FD80F

the family
resource ceMer
123 Main street Gorham.NH 03581 603-466-5190

The Family Resource Center at Gorham

2020-21 BOARD OF DIRECTORS - Redacted

Linda Lamirande, President Cathy Conway

Les Glover Bridget Laflamme

Jim Gibbons, Treasurer Anne-Marie Gagne

Donna Piet, Vice President Karen Moore, Secretary

Vicky McGllllcuddy Gretchen Taillon

Strengthening Families... Building Communities



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0BE7CA41-BDB4-4A4A-A176-ABC85D9FD80F

Lucie A Remillard

RESUME

Summary of Qualifications
Highly skilled and dedicated professional offering a 20-year background in office management,
sales, outreach, marketing, new business and account management. A community outreach
coordinator, networking in communities and chamber of commerce throughout New Hampshire.

Areas of Experience
Community Outreach, Contract Negotiations, Office Operations, Office Management
Sales & Marketing Contract/Pricing Client Communication

Staff & Team Leadership Financial Reports Strategic Planning
Property Management Negotiation Recruit & Support

Work Experience

Family Resource Center — Gorham, NH
Januaiy, 2020 to Present

Administration Manager - Involved in office operations, policy & certificate review for
compliance, renewal and audits. Work with ED, bid preparation, and purchasing. Responsible for
facilities & satellite site management, supervising maintenance personnel & building repairs.
Manage multiple projects and agency operations as needed.

CASA of NH - Manchester, NH

May, 2016 to November, 2019

North Country Community Outreach Coordinator - the Outreach Coordinator is responsible for
outreach, recruitment, and building relationships with volunteers & community groups in Coos,
Grafton & Belknap counties. This includes group presentations, advocate interviews, chamber of
commerce, city & town involvement. Outreach Coordinator is building partnerships and maintaining
interaction with community stakeholders and residents; distributing outreach and marketing
materials; attending community and city-wide meetings, and representing CASA of NH as essential
to promote awareness. Also included are daily follow-up on the CASA's administrative tasks,
volunteer inquires, and to secure training locations.

Provider Financial - ENH Power, Auburn, ME
September 9, 2013 - December 31, 2015

Community Outreach Worker - Building relationships in New Hampshire that would increase
residential and commercial accounts. Identify non-profit agencies for a community partner program
to raise funding and financial contribution; volunteer and remain active in several NH Chamber of
Commerce; communicate and promote company enrollment; attend home, industry, business & trade

shows throughout New Hampshire, Maine & Mass; educate yet promote company awareness and
benefits; maintain strong community relationships with area business owners, political
representatives and non-profit agencies.
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Lucie A Remillard RESUME - p2

Re/Max Northern Edge / Gallus & Green Realtors, Berlin, NH
License Real Estate Broker with New Hampshire since 1997
Realtor - Broker Associate; G & G - Office Manager

List, market, manage and sell residential & commercial real estate in Northern New Hampshire.
Work closely with clients, brokers, title companies, attorneys, mortgage agents to secure contracts
and transfer of properties. Recognized as a competitive industry leader within a highly volatile
market, I generated over $200K in sales commission and achieved "high seller" status for several
consecutive years. Maintain a solid network of business, industry and community contacts. Design,
market, and advertise promotional flyers, mailers and letters targeting prospective clients. Recruited
and trained office staff and real estate sales agents.

Home Sweet Apartments & Realty, Berlin, NH
1990 — 2003 (Owner/Broker —sold business in 2003)
Propert)' Manager & Real Estate Sales Broker - Property management fimi specializing in sales
and rental. Business grew from 4 units to over 600 rental management units within 3 years. Recruited
and supervised a professional staff of ten employees and numerous sub-contractors. Directed rental

operations which included tenant screening, contract negotiations, rent collections, advertising, and

general property maintenance. Maintained business accounting for each property, complete operating

statements, cash journals, income and expense reports, secure competitive insurance rates and ensure

all properties met or exceeded state, local and federal housing codes.

Education, Licensure & Board Member

Springfield College - St. Johnsbur>', Vt - Human Services - Completion IP of Bachelor's Degree
Granite State College — Human Services
Licensed Real Estate Broker

NH Board of Realtors

NH Landlord Association

Councilor — City of Berlin
Board Member - Planning Board - Accounts & Claims - Traffic & Safety - Budget
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RESUME

NAOMI LEVESQUE

EDUCATION

EMPLOYMENT

B.S. Environmental Science and Wildlife Studies, Graduated June 2012
Granite State College, Berlin, NH
GPA 3.91/4.0 summa cum laude

THE FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

Organization Manager-HR/IT/StaffSupport 05/2019-present
Assistant Program Director 02/2016 - 05/2019

Site Director 09/2014 - 02/2016

Interim Program Director 1 1/20I3-09/2014

Site Director 09/2009-1 1/2013

Croup Leader and Administrative Assistant 1 1/2005 - 09/2009

The Family Resource Center- Project Youth. Gorham. NH

•  Human Resources and Information Technology
> Coordinate onboarding and completion of all paperwork; manage employee files

Ensure Federal and State HR compliance; address employee HR matters
Assist with PRC employee policy updates and adherence
Configure and issue all employee technology
Research, procure and launch new technology; ensure security compliance
Manage Google Suite, primar>' website and phone system portal
Record Board Meeting minutes, manage room bookings, answer phones, greet
clients, supervise special projects staff

Leadership of the Project Youth Aflerschool and Summer Programs
> Programs hosted in five schools serving @ 180 students in grades K-8
> Provide quality, hands-on staff development and support for @25 staff
> Knowledge of and compliance with NH DHHS Childcare Licensing Standards
> Manage budgets

Strengthen and expand community partnerships and relationships
Maintain database

Surveys and data collection, tabulation and analysis
Direct leadership of K-2 elementary and middle school grades 6-8 programs

o Delivering services to 35-55 students including homework help
o Training staff to create and implement scaffolded lesson plans linking to

NH Common Core Standards

o  Lead health and nutrition, environmental science and STEM curriculums
o Monthly activity calendars and newsletters, pamphlets, permission forms
o  Preparation of daily USDA approved snack menus and serving
o  Event planning and implementation; fundraising
o  Partnership development with local companies and organizations
o Coordinate with Site Directors and school day staff for consistent practices

> Prepare and facilitate age appropriate enrichment curriculum/activities for staff and
grades K-8 students

Interim Director duties not listed above

> Management of funding from Federal, State, local and small grants
> Co-write two NH 21 CCLC grants and fulfillment of the terms there-in

Completion of required annual reports in relation to funding and program goals
Projecting and balancing budgets
Performing background checks and employee hiring forms

Administrative Assistant duties not listed above

> Creation of client accounts in QuickBooks; billing/payments
> Conversion to new billing management database

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
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CREDENTIALS/

CERTIFICATIONS

> NH DHHS Child Care Web Billing
> Managing files, answering phones, verbal and written communication, registration

forms and document creation with Microsoft Office Programs, press releases;
support for Program Director, Site Directors and Group Leaders

♦ NH DHHS Afterschool Professional Development Credential- Afterschool Direct Service
Level 6

First Aid/CPR/AED- June 18. 2019 (expires 06/2021)
NH 4-H Shooting Sports Leader Class II Archery Instructor- May 22, 201 l-present
Project WILD and WET/WILD Aquatic Instructor since 2010 (updated May 2016)
Stream Safari Instructor since May 2016
New Hampshire Coverts Cooperator since 2012
Project Learning Tree Instructor since 2009
Courage to Care Instructor- December 14, 201 1-2019
Leadership North Country alumni- 2010-201 1

VOLUNTEER

EXPERIENCE

City of Berlin Planning Board Member 2016-present
o Review and understand materials

o Communicate professionally with Board Members and members of the public
o Utilize connections to facilitate student presentations on local matters
Ammonoosuc Chapter of NH Audubon Board member and Secretary 201 l-present
o Mailing list maintenance and management of bulk mailings
o Communication with the public
o Record meeting minutes, prepare annual report and present to the public
o Co-leader of family friendly bird walks
NH Volunteer River Assessment Program participant 2012-2019
o Ability to follow specific protocols and accurate completion of paperwork
Committee member and Secretary for The Medallion Opera House 201 1 -2016
o Recorded meeting minutes and prepared documents for the committee
o Assisted with event planning and implementation
Lokl Clan Wolf Refuge in Chatum, NH 2005-2013
o Monthly newsletters, coordination with printer, bulk mailings
o Some website management and associated coding
Lake Umbagog Wildlife Refuge in Errol, NH 2007-2009
o Database cataloguing of office resource materials, pamphlet updates, greeting patrons

SKILLS ♦ Office Management ♦
♦ Microsoft Office Excel, Word, Publisher, PowerPoint ♦
♦ Collaboration and Communication ♦
♦ Community Involvement ♦
♦ Leadership ♦
♦  Budget Management ♦
♦ Grant Writing ♦
♦  Education ♦
♦  Event Planning

Public Speaking
Fundraising

Confidentiality

Leadership
Research

Strategizing
Taking Initiative

Self-driven to Succeed
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Patricia Stolte

Professional Skills

ADMINISTR/\T1VE

Over thirty-five years' experience in positions requiring administrative responsibility and
problem solving abilides including; nonprofit agencies, marketing departments and human
scr\'ice programs:

•  Knowledge of all aspects of opcradonal, financial and compliance for non-profit and for-
profit businesses

•  Responsible for managing resources, developing annual budgets, monitoring and managing
budgets and overseeing contracts and compliance with DHWS.

•  Supendsion and leadership for muldple non-profit programs with 50+ staff members

•  Program design and implcmentadon

• Development; grant wridng, annual appeals and donor program implementation

•  Human Resources creating policies & procedures, job dcscripdons, orientation and training
for several agencies

•  Initiated Strategic Planning process and Board Development within agencies

• Agency delegate for several state conferences, involved in coordination of all aspects of
annual events, fundraising projects and marketing campaigns

•  Facility and building management for several site locations

•  Volunteer management, recruitment and recognition

Fiso\l N'LVNAGEMENT

• Managing agency budget of $2+million with multiple program budgets

•  Budget management of 3 programs with reporting to Board of Directors and agency CEO
overseeing §L3million budget

•  Budget management of advertising campaigns from $500k to §6 million for businesses

•  Proposals for funding to state, federal and local governments for annual contracts

•  Fiscal management of annual grants from NH Charitable Trust and other foundations.

Skills:

• Work collaboratively with board members, staff and colleagues

•  Create partnerships within the community to combine and extend resources

•  Possess solid presentation, communicadon and organizational skills

• Knowledge of Microsoft Office, graphics programs and social media
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PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

The Family Resource Center,
Gorham NH - Executive Director August 2015 to present

Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc., Berlin. NH - August 2004 to August 2015
Ser\'iceLink Resource Center Director - 2004 to 2006

TCCAP Division Director - 2006 to 2015

Mountain View Grand Resort

Whitefield, NH Public Relations Director

Berlin Main Street Program
Berlin, NH Executive Director

Januar)' 2003 tojuly 2004

November 1997 tojanuar)' 2003

Zaie Corporation/Karten's
Dallas/New Bedford, N't/\ - Marketing Manager
1991 to 1997

Pierce-Cote Advertising Agency
Ostervilie, MA — PR & Media Manager
1989 to 1991

Shreve, Crump & Low,
Boston - Markedng Director - 1984 to 1989

Wolfe Publishing, Pittsford NY - Advertising Sales Representative - 1984

Education & Tr/\ining

State Universit)- of New York at Fredonia, BA in Mass Communications & Business

Monroe Community College, Rochester, New York, Associates in Business Administration
Brighton High School, Rochester, New York

Volunteer Engagement-past & present

•  Involved on area non-profit boards, communit)- groups and projects with organizadons such
as Coos Countr)' Health Ser\'iccs, Androscoggin Valley Home Care; AV Economic

Recover)' Committee, Head Start Board of Advisors, The Main Street Program and
Androscoggin Valley Hospital Wellncss Committee

• Member of NH Wellness & Prevention Council, Leadership NH North Countiy, Statewide
Coalition of Aging Ser\iccs, the Planning Committee for NH State Conference on Aging,
the Coos Count)' Coalition for Families & Children, The Endowment for Health Planning
Committee and the Androscoggin Valley Communit)' Partners
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RESUME Ron FinI

WORK HISTORY

1999-present Finance Manager, The Family Resource Center at Gorham.

2014-2019 Computer Support Educator, Hillside Elementar>' School

2013-2013 Staff Accountant at Androscoggin Valley Hospital

2010-2016 Software Systems Educator, Androscoggin Valley Hospital

2008-2014 Volunteer at the Androscoggin Valley Hospital

1980-2008 Business Technology/Education Department. Chairperson

1975-2008 Self-employed Disc Jockey for Rockin' Ron's Music

1980-1983 G.E.D. Instructor, General Adult Education, Berlin

197 i -1975 Manpower, Aduh Job Training Instructor, Berlin

EDUCATION

1965-1967 Northampton Commercial College-, Northampton, Massachusetts; Majored in

Accounting/Business Management; Diploma

1967-1969 Western Kentucky University, Bowling Green, Kentucky; Majored in Accounting,

Business Administration, Business Education; BS. Minor in Economics.

1969-Present Various Professional Development courses, and other activities.

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

•  Server on the Gorham (GRS) School Board.

•  Established and manage the Rotating Arts Program at the Androscoggin Valley Hospital.

•  Role in organizing the Androscoggin Valley Hospital Recycling Program.

•  A volunteer at the Androscoggin Valley Hospital.

•  Volunteer for a variety of charitable organizations, community projects, and people/families in

need. Holy Family Church-. Past member of Finance Committee (4 years), Parish Council (3

years) and member or chair of many fund raising committees.

•  Gorham Knight of Columbus: Active member for over 25 years

•  Big Brother/Big Sister

COMPUTER SKILLS

•  Have been giving instruction on computers and computer software since 1980.

•  Have knowledge on the following software application: Sage Accounting (Once known as

Peachtree Accounting), Various Windows applications (including XP, Vista, Windows 7,

Windows 10), Quicken, Microsoft Word (all versions), Microsoft Publisher (all versions),

Microsoft Access Power Point, Google Docs-Sheets-Slide, and many other application/utilities

software packages.

AWARDS RECEIVED

•  Volunteer ofthe Year from the Androscoggin Valley Hospital

•  Knight ofthe Year from the local Gorham council.

•  • First place in state Council Bulletin Competition.

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

•  Gorham Teachers' Association, past Vice-President 1970, member from 1969 to June 2008.

•  National Education Association, life member from 1969.

REFERENCES: Upon Request
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The Family Resource Center at Gorham

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Patricia Stolle Executive Director* $72,000 0 0

Ron Fini Finance Manager* $40,000 0 0

Naomi Levesque HR/IT Manager* $34,760 0 0

Lucie Remillard Office Manager* $36,000 0 0

10% indirect helps fund administrative staff salaries



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0BE7CA41-BDB4-4A4A-A176-ABC85D9FD80F

Lai A. SklUoettc

Conmitsleecr

Lisa M. Henis
Dimter

flUG12'20pn

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISTON OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE. CONCORD, NH 09301
6O27MS01 I-80D492-334SEXL490I

Fax: 603-271^7 TDD Access: l-800-735>2964
www.dhhs.Bh.gov

July 22, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

INFORMATIONAL ITEM

Pursuant to RSA 4:45, RSA 21-P:43. and Section 4 of Executive Order 2020-04, as
extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, 2020-10, and 2020-14, Governor
Sununu has authorized the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral
Health, to enter into Sole Source amendments to existing contracts with the vendors listed belcw
for the provision of Targeted Prevention Programmirig for tXYF-lnvolved Families with
Substance Use Disorder, by increaaing the total price limitation by $1,485,000 from $2,940,404
to $4,425,404 and by extending the completion dates from September 30, 2020. to the dates
specified below, effective upon Governor approval. The original contracts were approved by
Govemor and Council as specified In the table below. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor

Name

Vendor

Code

District

Offices
Served

Current

Amount

Informatloruii

Item-

Increaso

(Decrease))

Rovleed

, Amount

Completion
Date o&c

Approval

Granite

Pathways
228900-

8001

Conway
Rochester

Seacoast

Southern
Manchester

Keene

Claremont

Concord

Laconia

$1,638,589 $960,000 $2,598,589
December
31,2020

O: 5/2/18

#20

A1:

5/15/19

#17A

The

Family
Re^rce
Center at

Gorham

162412-

B001

Berlin

Littleton
$1,301,815 $526,000 $1,826,815

January
31.2021

0: 5/2/18

#20

A1:

12/19/18

#20

Total; $2,940,404 $1,486,000 $4,426,404

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2021 with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances bctvireen state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

The Departmenl of Health and Himon Services'Mistion it tojoif* eommunilies and families
in providingopporluniliet for eitUent to achieve health and independence.
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Hl» Excellency. Governor Chrtstopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Pege 2 ot 3

SEE ATTACHED FISCAL DETAILS

EXPLANATION

Thi9 item Is Sole Source because the Department, in the interest of the public's health
and safety, identified these two (2) vendors as having the capacity to quickly respond to the
COVID-19 pandemic. The Governor requested certain funding be set aside for COVID-19
emergencies in order to broaden programming to help families in this trying time. This amendment
allows children and their families to receive additional assistance because of exacerbated
circumstances caused by C0VID>19.

The purpose of this item Is to expand access to Strength to Succeed services to children,
parents, and caregivers who are undergoing an assessment by the Division (or Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF). and are affected by a substance use disorder. This item will expand the
number of families that are eligible to access the Strength to Succeed program, given that current
funding limits eligibility to open cases. The expanded services will also require the vendors to
Implement the evidence-based Parenting a Second Time Around or equivalent evidence-based
curriculum for grandparents who are caring for a minor child as a result of DCYF Involvement and
parental substance use. More than 100 individuals received senrices through this program In
2018. This request. H approved, will expand the program to provide services for more than 150
individuals statewide.

The vendors are currently providing the Strength to Succeed Program, which consists of
substance use disorder prevention and eaiiy intervention services to families who have open
cases with the DCYF as a result of substance use. The vendors have established programs in
place that provide accessible, integrated services to reduce and mitigate childhood trauma that
results from substance use in the family. Core components of the Strength to Succeed program
Include rapid access to treatment for parents within the DCYF reunification timeframe, DCYF
Parent Partner peer support, home visiting services, direct prevention services to children to
mitigate risk of substance misuse, and caregiver support for relative caregivers of children
exposed to substance use in the home. This request, if approved, will provide additional funding
to expand services to an additional group of children and their families and extend the existing
program for another fifteen (16) months.

The original services were contracted when the State received funding authorized by the
21st Century CURES Act through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA) State Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis grant. The State
Targeted Response grant program ended in State Fiscal Year 2019, and funds from that grant
were used to expand critical substance use disorder prevention, treatment, and recovery services
to target populations, including child welfare involved families. Extension and expansion of the
State's Targeted Response funded initialives are key components of the State's recently accepted
plan for the St^e Opioid Response grant, which provides funding to address the opioid crisis
through September 29, 2020.

As referenced In Form P-37, General Provisions, and in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to General
Provisions, Section 3. of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the
agreements for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and appropriate State approval. The Department
previously renewed the contracts for one (1) year and three (3) months, leaving nine (9) months
available. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for three (3) months with
Granite Pattways) and four (4) months with The Family Resource Center at.

Area served: Statewide
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His Excellency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Page 3 ot 3

Source of Funds: 100% General Fur^ds.

Respectfully submitted,

Lofi A. Shiblnette

Commtesioner
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05-d5-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF

DRUG AND ALCOHOL, OPIOID STR GRANT

SFY
Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2018
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92052559 $148,840 $0 $148,840

2019
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92052559 $595,358 $0 $595,358

2020
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92052559 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $744,198 $0 $744,198

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEATH

AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG &
ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE OPlOlD RESPONSE GRANT

SFY
Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92057040 $1,000,000 ($296,380) $703,620

2020
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92057040 $1,196,206 $0 $1,196,206

2021
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

92057040 $0 $296,380 $296,380

Subtotal $2,196,206 $0 $2,196,206
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05-95-95-950010-19190000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEATH

AND HUMAN SVS, HNS; COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE, OFFICE OF THE
COMMISSIONER, C0VID19 FEMA - DHHS

SFY
Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2021^
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

95010895 $0 $1,485,000 $1,485,000

Subtotal $0 $1,485,000 $1,485,000

Grand

Total
$2,940,404 $1,485,000 $4,425,404
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New Hampshire: Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

This 2'*' Amendment to the Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and The Family
Resource Center at Gorham, (hereinafter referred to as The Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of
business at 123 Main Street, Gorham. NH 03581.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 2. 2018, (Item #20). as amended on December 19, 2018 (Item #20), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3. the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the (Sovemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block "1.7, Completion Dale, to read:

January 31, 2021.

2. Form P-37-. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,826,615. ^
3. Exhibit A Amendment #1. Scope of Services, Section 1. Provisions Applicable to All Services,

Subsection 1.8 through Subparagraph 1.8.4.4, to read:

1.8. The Contractor shall provide services:

1.8.1 By assisting in developing a strong collaboration between agencies within the
Department including, but not limited to

1.8.1.1 The Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services (6DAS).

1.8.1.2 The Division for Children, Youth, and Families (OCYF).

1.8.1.3 The Division of Public Health Services (DPHS).

1.6.1.4 The Bureau for Children's Behavioral Health (BCBH).

1.8.2 To individuals involved with DCYF, \who have substance,use disorder or other
challenges that result In neglect, or are at risk' for neglect, which may include, but
is not limited to:

1.8.2.1. Children.

1.8.2.2. Birth parents.

1.8.2.3. Foster parents.

1.8.2.4. Grandparents.

1.8.2.5. Other caregivers.

1.8.2.6. Siblings.

The Family Resource Center at Gorham Amendment «2 Contractor Initials
RFP-2018-BDAS-04-TARGE-02-A02 Page t of 4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-Involved Families

1.6.2.7. Families with open DCYF cases.

1.8.2.8. Families undergoing a DCYF a^essment.

1.8.3 Prioritizing cases, by wortting with the DCYF designated gatekeeper, Including,
but not limited to: •

1.8.3.1 Parents/caregivers with mental health Issues.

1.8.3.2 Chronic neglect cases as determined by DCYF.

1.8.3.3 Families that qualify for prioritization by the above guidelines and have an"
active DCYF assessment and may not require an open case if this level of
service is available.

1.8.4.4 Families with an open neglect case that requires this level of service to
promote an in home case or promote a permanency plan of reunification.

4. Exhibit A Amendment #1. Scope of Senrices, Section 2. Scope of Senrices, Subsection. 2.1
General Provisions, Paragraph 2.1.18, to read:

2.1.18 The Contractor shall engage vrith treatment providers for mental hearth in catchment
areas to develop relationships and assistance in prioritization for parents/caregivers
involved with an open DCYF case or assessment.

5. Exhibit A Amendment#!. Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.2. DCYF
Parent Parser Program (Peer Recovery Support). Paragraph 2.2.1, Subparagraph 2.2.1.4, to
read:

2.2.1.4 Ensure that Parent Partners have the appropriate lived experience for the population
they are serving.

6. Exhibit A Amendment #1. Scope of Services Section 2. Scope of Services, Subsection 2.5, Parent
and Child Substance Use Education. Paragraph 2.5.1. Subparagraph 2.5.1.4 through 2.5.1.6 to
read:

2.5.1.4 Adjusting messaging, support and curricula as needed to address the primary issues
that the parent/careglver of focus is experiencing, such as their own mental illness,
other health conditions and any other Social Determinants of Health that may be
presenting challenges and are primary in the identified conditions or neglect in the
DCYF case or assessment.

2.5.1.5 Engaging vwth treatment providers to develop educational/parenting programming
relative to parenting while symptomatic for Serious Mental Illness.

2.5.1.6 Providing age appropriate education for children regarding mental illness.

7. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5. Subsection 5.1, to read:

5.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line item,
as specified In Exhibits B-1. Budget through Exhibit 6-5, Budget.

8. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2. Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2. Budget, which is attached hereto and Incofporated by reference
herein.

Tne Family Resource Center at Gorham Amen'dmeni 02 Contractor Initials.

RFP.2018.BOAS-04.TARGE-02-A02 Page 2 of 4 Date ^-/3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain In fuD force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of Ihe date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

^ I—
Date ' Name:

Title:

The Family Resource Center at Gorham

l-ih'9^0^0
Date Name: Parti Stolte

Title: Executive Director

The Fenxry Rewurce Center at Gortiam Amendment ttz

RFP-2018BDAS-04-TARGe-02-A02 Page 3 0(4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

08/07/20

Catherine Pinos, Attorney
Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor on;

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;
Title:

The Family Resource Center at Gorham Amendment #2

RFP.2018-BOAS-04TARGE-02-A02 Page 4 oU
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The Family Resource Center at Corham

Key Personnel

Name Job Tiile Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Patricia Stoltc Executive Director* S72;000 0 0

Ron Fini Finance Manager* S40.000 0 0

Naomi Levesque HRyiT Manager* S34.760 0 0

Lucic Remiilard ' OITicc Manager* S36.000 0 0

Jen Buieau FS Program Director S6I.8S0 24% $14,850

♦10% indirect helps fund administrative staff salaries
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JefTrcy A. Mt)'*"
CommiMioarr

KiiJ* S. ̂*01
Oirerior

state OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HDMAN SERVICES

DmStON FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-27i-6ll0 l-e004S2-3345EiL5738

Fix; 603-27I-6I0S TDD Access; 1^00-735-2964

Mrww.dhhs.nh.gov

^0/

November 14. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral
Health, to exercise a renewal option with a sole source, amendment to an existing
agreement with one of the contractors listed below (in bold print) for the provision of
Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families with Substance Use
Disorder by increasing the contract price limitation by $1,166,506 from $744,198 in the
aggregate to $1,910,704 in the aggregate, and extending the contract completion date from
June 30. 2019 to September 30, 2020, effective upon approval by the Governor and
Executive Council. 100%. Federal Funds.

The original agreement was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
May 2, 2018 (Item #20).

Contractor

Name

Vendor ID Contractor

Address

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

Granite

Pathways

228900-

8001

10 Ferry Street
Concord, NH

03301

$608,889 $0 $608,889

The Family
Resource

Center at

Gorham

162412-

8001

123 Main Street

Gorham, NH

03581

$135,309 $1,166,506 $1,301,815

Total $744,198 $1,166,506 $1,910,704

Funds are available in the following accounts for state fiscal year (SFY) 2019, and
are expected to be available in SFY 2020, upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price
limitation and adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
without further approval from Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.
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His ExceQency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorobie Council

Page 2 of 4

05-95-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF
DRUG AND ALCOHOL. OPIOID STR GRANT

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2018
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92052559 $148,840 $0 $148,840

2019
102-

500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92052559 $595,358 $6 $595,358

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92052559 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $744,198 $0 $744,198

05-9$-92'920S10-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEATH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL
SERVICES, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE.GRANT

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019
.  102-

500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92052559 $0 $568,403 $568,403

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

92052559 $0 $598,103 $598,103

Subtotal $0 $1,166,506 $1,166,506

Grand

Total
$744,198 $1,166,506 $1,910,704

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the requested increase in funding exceeds ten
percent (10%) of the original contract price limitation. The Contractor is currently providing
the Strength to Succeed (STS) Program, which consists of substance use disorder (SUD)
prevention and early intervention services to families who have open cases with the Division
for Children. Youth and Families (OCYF) as a result of substance use. The Contractor has
established programs in place that provide accessible, integrated services to reduce and
mitigate childhood trauma that results from substance use in the family. Core components
of the STS program include rapid access to treatment for parents within the DCYF
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His ExceUency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 4

re jhi"fi"catjqri'timefra^^^ pCYF Parent Partner peer ■support','horn sefVices," direct
preyerttiori serviced to'child^^ to mitigate risk of substance rfii&'usV. ah siuppprt
Fbr'Vp)atJve"'cWe'^iyeV5 of^chiidreh home. This request, if
'appVpvbd. 'will provj^ fundirig, to expand seh/ic^' 'to' an additioriai groupi of
children and their families arid extend the existing program for'another fifteen (15) months,

The original services were confr^^!®^ the State received Yqnding authorized

STi^ grant program,eodsjin. FYIS and furtds from that grant,w|re uSfd.to^'^^^^
•*SUp VprpvehtioK,''tre|tm^^ 'services to .target/popular in'oiuding 'chijd
yvpifar^'\nypjvgp expansion of STR/funded lnitjaYiYe'5''arp''a key
comppneny'o^ §tet'^S; fecehtTy' accepted plan for- the State. pRiPid ^espon^ (SG'f?)
grant, vy*hich''^rgyid^ ^!iE\3'."9 -fe the opioid crisis thrp.ugh September "

•The Rurpp'se pf- thisYequest is. to expand access to'St§.se^ices'tp'c^ parents
and .'taregivers'w.fi'o^a^^^^ yrid.pfgoing an assessm'ent by pC-Vf. and ar^^'-affected by- a
substanpa u'se'disW This drastically expands the nurfiber of families that fBligible Ip
access Vhe^ STSyprp^ current funding limits eligibility to opep cases, this
request','if approved/yyjIJ, ajsq expand services to r,gquire the.iGgritrbctpr to. implement;,t.he
evidenpe;based,Parenting .a.Sec^ Around or equivalent ,eyid.eriC(B/ba^ curriculunn
for grandparents who are caring-fpr. a minor child as a result of. DCYF invpjyernerir^and
parental substance u.se. : -

' As fe.ferenced, in''Form P.-3.7, General Provisions, and" in Exhibjt 'C-'1. R'eylsipns to
General 'Proyisionsr Section 3, thb State reserves the pptiqn tg extend contract services for
up to-two ,(2) additipnal years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
fundirig. agreem'ebt of' the parties and. approval ,b.y,the G.byernqr .and Executiye..C.o.und|.
This .req.uesf, lyapp'r^^^^ one (1) year and.thVe^ 'js) months.'of the'tWp"(2),
available y.q.a.rs".pf're'ne.y^^^

• Notwithstanding.any oth^r prpvisi.ons of the contract.'to t.he'contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30. 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any paymerfts
for services provide.d after June. 30. ?019. unless and until an appropriation for these
services has been received from t.he state legislature and funds encurnbered for the SPY
2020-2021 biennium.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, children
impacted by substance misuse, issues within their family may not receive, the services .and
targeted prevention .rnesMging, necessary .to support thejr current needs, and to assist them
vyith avoiding substance misuse issues in the future. In addition, relative caregive.rs
impacted by farnitial substance mjsuse may not receive the services and supports that are
necessary to continue to support the children in their family.

Area served: Statewide.

Spurce of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from DHHS. Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration, Center for Substance Abuse Trealrnent. Targeting Capacity
Expansion State Targeted Re.sponse to the Opioid Crisis Grant (CFDA # 93.788 FAIN
TI080246) and State Opioid Resp'onse Grant (CFDA #93.788 FAIN TI08t685.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabie Council

Page 4 of 4

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds swill
not be requested to support this program.

Respecdully subfrtitted.

fir-
Katja S. Fox

Direclgr

J^rey A- Meyers
Gommissioner

77i« Dcpartntenl cf HeoUh and Human Struicca' MUsioii U la Join commnnUiet and /amiliea
in providing opportunities (or eititens to oehitvc heollU and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
For DCYF'involvod Femllloe

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Targeted Prevention Programming
for DCYF-lnvolved Families Contract

This 1" Amendmen! to the Targeted Prevention Programming for DCYF-lnvolved Families contract
(hereinafter referred to as •Amendment #1") dated this 22'^ day of October. 2018, is by and between the
Slate of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the 'Slate"
or "Deperlmenr) and The Family Resource Center at Gorham. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contrectoi'). a corporation with a place of business at 123 Main St. Gorham. New Hampshire 03581.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 2. 2018 (Item #20). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3, the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract, and extend the contract completion dale for up to two (2) additional years upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

.  1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30. 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,301,815.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for Slate Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White.

4. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8. State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9531.

5; Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1.

6. Add Exhibit B-2 Amendment #1. SFY 2019 Budget.

7. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1. SFY 2020 Budget.

Tlx) F«fi% R®»ource C«frt8f €t GcKham AmendmonHH
RFP.20l6-SOAS-04-TARGe-02 PoB« 1 oT 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targotod Provantlon ProgrammlnQ
For DCYF•Involved Femlllaa

This amendment shell be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Namel
Tide: — ^

The Family Resource Center at Gorham

// Icj lt<^
Date' / Name:

Title: ^

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of A/|4 , County of CliOS on //" 9 ' before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person wtK)se name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the
capacity Indicated

SiqnaturB4ttN|fltery Bli

\[o4c^ yo\^y^
of Notfi/ry

Justice of the Peace

Name and Tide of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

V \

Tt.i".

■''/ ."J

Tho F«mVy Resound Contcir Gornam A/nondmort 01
RFP.20ieeDASe4-TARGE-02 Rafl* 2 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targotod Prevantlon Programming
PcrDCYF-involved Famlilaa

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Datei

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by t
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on:

Name:

r^e Governor and Executive Council of
. (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The FomDy Roeource Centw at Gctiam
RPP.2018-ebAS-04-TARGE-02

Amondmeniei

PoBo3or3
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New Hampehlre Department of Health and Human Servlcea
Targeted Prevention Programming
for DCYF«lnvolvod Families Exhibit A Amendment 01

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure

meaningful access to their programs end/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the

Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service pnorities

and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
there^th.

1.3. The Contractor agrees that in the performance of any services involving the
collection, transmission, storage, or disposition of data obtained or created on behalf

of OHHS. shall be subject to the requirements stated in Exhibit K.

1.4. The Contractor agrees that in the performance of any services involving the

collection, transmission, storage, or disposition of data containing protected health

information (PHI) or In the case of substance use disorder (SUO) data created by a

Pert 2. shall be subject to the requirements stated in Exhibit I and 45 CFR Part 2,

including the prohibition against redisclosure.

1.5. The Contractor agrees that in the performance of any services all staff members

shall have training in confidentiality and Information security relating to the

information, files and data that is involved in the performance of the contract. .

1.6. The Contractor agrees to have consent to share or redisclose any confidential

information, including PHI or SLID Information, consistent with slate rules, and state

and federal law Including appropriate consents pursuant to 42 CFR Part 2.

1.7. The Contractor agrees that any database, dashboard, or information system

designed, built, or modified on behalf of DHHS shall be defined and subject to the

requirements in Exhibit K. Exhibit I. and ail applicable NH Department of Information

Technology (DoiT) standards, policies, and procedures.

1.8. The Contractor shall assist in developing a strong collaboration' between agencies

within the Department including, but not limited to the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol

Services^(BDAS). the. Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF), the Division
of Public Health Services (DPHS), and the Bureau for Children's Behavioral Health

(BCBH) for the purpose of providing services to children and families with substance

use disorder that are involved with DCYF, which may include, but Is not limited to:

1.8.1. Children.

1.8.2. Birth parents.

1.8.3. Foster parents.

1.8.4. Grandparents.

Tho Pemlly ReMurc« Cents; 81 Gortiem AAmondmoniSt Conirecto; Inlllsb

RFP-20lSeDAS-04-TAftGEe2 Psge 1 of U Oslo
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Now Hampshiro Department of Health and Human ServlceB
Targetod Prevention Programming
for DCYF-lrwolved Famiilee Exhibit A Amendment 01

1.8.5. Other caregivers.

1.8.8. Siblings.

1.8.7. Families with open OCYF cases.

1.8.8. Families undergoing a OCYF assessment.

1.9. The Contractor shall provide services for two (2) OCYF District Offices listed below.

See Exhibit A-1 for more details.

1.9.1. Berlin.

1.9.2. UtUeton.

1.10. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30. 2019, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and

funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 and SFY 2022-2023 biennla.

2. Scope of Services
2.1. General Provisions

2.1.1. The Contractor shall create arnj Implement programs to reduce and mitigate

childhood trauma by:

2.1.1.1. Increasing access to. and participation in, evidence-based home
visiting services;

2.1.1.2. Reducing the child's risk of substance use issues; and

2.1.1.3. Increasing training-opportunities for the early childhood and home
visiting worlcforce in substance misuse prevention, recovery, and
trauma-informed care so that the worlcforce is better prepared to

address the challenges of this population.

2.1.2. The Contractor shall engage, educate, and empower parents and primary
caregivers in a peer-to-peer model to increase family protective factors and

reduce risk factors in order to better support childhood social and emotional
needs by:

2.1.2.1. Fostering positive parent/primary caregiver child attachment;

2.1.2.2. Increasing parent/primary caregiver knowledge about chlldhcMd
development and learning;

2.1.2.3. Increasing resiliency and social connectedness in parents/primary
caregivers; and

2.1.2.4. Educating parents on the topic of trauma for children and the risk

continued substance use poses to the child.

The Family Rasourco Conlor si Gorhsm Exhlft A Amendment Contractor Inlllalt

RFP-W18^AS-04.TARGe-02 Pofl® 2 0* 11 Date Z/ -^- /f
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Now Hempohlro Department of Hoatth ond Human Sorvlceo
Targatad Pravontlon Programming
for DCYF«lnvo1ved Fomlllaa Exhibit A Amandmont #1

2.1.3. The Contractor shall maintain one (1) point of contact and one (1) alternate
contact who can receive requests from the two (2) covered District Offices that
will refer families to this program.

2.1.4. The Contractor shall ensure that families with open cases who are referred for
services are offered all program components In a timely fashion, with the
understanding that DCYF involvement has a twelve (12) month timeframe for
permanency decisions that can impact a parent's parental rights.

2.1.5. The Contractor shall assist families with a DCYF assessment who are referred

for services to assess the program components that would best meet the
family's needs, and provide identified components within a timely fashion.

2.1.6. The Contractor shall re-offer services at two (2) and six (6) weeks after the

initial offer of services to families that decline the initial offer of services, cease

to participate, or do not attend a scheduled visit.

2.1.7. The Conlredor shall collaborate with Department partners when any
issues/barriers arise including, but not limited to, timely access to treatment

and program partner capacity issues such as program waitlists or lack of
treatment provider capacity.

2.1.8. The Contractor shall ensure that when there is an Infant Safe Plan of Care

(ISPOC) for a child, all participating partners are knowledgeable about the plan
of care and ere assisting DCYF and the family to fulfill the plan of care through
the use of wraparound meetings and collaboration with the participating

partners.

2.1.9. The Contractor shall be familiar with the DCYF practice model and Solution
Based Casework (SBC) In order to provide services within these frameworks.

(More information can be found at
httDs://www.dhhs.nh.QOv/dcvf/documehts/nhdcvf%2b2015'2019cfso.Ddf and

httD://www.solutionbasedcasewofk.com/about/.1

2.1.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department on federally-mandated

outcome design and data collection for program evaluation, and federal
reporting purposes.

2.1.11. The Contractor shall collaborate with existing program providers to ensure

consistency in practice and enrollment of clients in appropriate programming
including, but not limited to;

2.1.11.1. Collaborating with the North Country Health Consortium to develop a

protocol and referral process for prioritization of DCYF-involved

familias with substance use disorder/opioid use disorder (SUD/OUD).

. 2.1.11.2. Collaborating with the local Integrated Delivery Network in order to

learn from their prior work and keep them informed of the Contractor's

various efforts.

Tho FemlTy Rs30um« Cmtsr ri Qoftiem ExNUI A A/nondmtinl #1 Contractor IrtUato Jt—
RFP.20ieOOAS-O4-TARGE-02 Papa 3 of 11 Oeto
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Now Hampshire Oopartmont of Hoalth and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
for OCYP*lnvolved Families Exhibit A Amendment

2.1.11.3. Collaborating with the Coos Coalition for Children and Young Families
by participating in their leadership- board and their committees

applicable to Ihis contract.

2.1.12. The Contractor shall establish a formal agreement with (he local Regional Hub
provider(s) to develop a protocorand referral process for prioritization of OCYF-
involved families with substance use disorder/opioid use disorder (SUD/OUD).

2.1.13. When trealment services cannot be provided within forty-eight (48) hours of
referral, (he Contractor shall ensure the client has access to interim services,

defined as recovery support services or services with a lower American Society
of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Level of Care, under this contract or by referral

to an agency or the Regional Hub(s) that has an earlier available opening In the
client's service area. This shall be accomplished through increasing access to
treatments by;

2.1.13.1. Assisting with accessing transportation to treatment.

2.1.13.2. Expanding home visiting services beyond parenting home visits.

2.1.13.3. Assisting with completing paperwork including, but not limited to

2.1.13.3.1. Replacing a lost insurance card.

2.1.13.3.2. Obtaining medical clearance.

2.1.13.4. Developing a plan of care for children while the parentfs) are receiving
treatment.

2.1.14. The Contractor shall Identify or develop, when indicated, appropriate Strength
to Succeed training curriculum and educational materials including, but not
limited to:

2.1.14.1. Parenting curriculum for parents and families while in treatment and

recovery including, but not limited to:

2.1.14.1.1. The Nurturing Parenting Program for Families in Substance

Abuse Treatment and Recovery (Nurturing Parenting Program).

2.1.14.1.2. Anger Management for Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Clients: Participant Workbook.

2.1.14.2. Prevention messaging geared for young children regarding substance
use.

2.1.14.3. Addiction 101, which the Contractor shall develop with BDAS to be

delivered to the program partners who are nol SUD treatment

providers and do not have the basic training already. Including DCYF.

2.1.14.4. DCYF Involvement 101, which the Contractor shall develop with DCYF
to be delivered to the program partners not afTiliated with DCYF to

include the OCYF practice model and the tenets of Solution Based

Casework.

The Pemlly Rttsourca Cantor at Gofham EjtftlbtlA A'nancimenifl Controclor Inlttala
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2.1.15. The Contractor shall develop pre- and post-tests for the trainings addressed in
Subsection 2.1.13 and will collect and score the tests In order to determine

improvement gained from the training.

2.1.16. The Contractor shall utilize the 'Strength to Succeed* name, when marketing or

conducting business for this program.

2.1.17. The Contractor shall use a Department-approved, parent-child interaction form

to collect a baseline and to follow up with families enrolled In home visiting
programs in order to show an increase in positive parenting skills and

knowledge of childhood development.

2.2. DCYF Parent Partner Program (Peer Recovery Support)

2.2.1. The Contractor shall collaborate with the DCYF Parent Partner Program In

order to:

2.2.1.1. Hire qualified Parent Partners which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.2.1.1.1. Sending a letter to DCYF for each applicable 00 to inform of the
plan to hire Parent Partners.

2.2.1.1.2. Developing a job deschption for the role.

2.2.1.1.3. Determining if the DCYF Supervisor, District Office supervisor,

and/or Parent Partner Program manager would like to be on the

hiring committee.

2.2.1.1.4. Advertising the position.

2.2.1.1.5. Developing interview questions.

2.2.1.1.6. Scheduling and conducting interviews.

2.2.1.1.7. Selecting Parent Partners based on interviews.

2.2.1.2. Develop program oversight and an integrated supervision model for

Parent Partners to include, but not t>e limited to providing a point of
contact and oversight at each of the two (2) covered District Offices
which shall include, but not be limited to;

2.2.1.2.1. Employing reflective supervision.

2.2.1.2.2. Collaborating with the DCYF contact person at a minimum of

once per month for feedback regarding the Parent Partners.

2.2.1.2.3. Providing Practice-Based Coaches to the Parent Partners.

2.2.1.3. Train Parent Partners in providing support to families with StJD/OUD.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with DCYF to establish a recruitment and

hiring plan that ensures Parent Partners are co-located in each of the two (2)

covered District Offices as an Integrated member of the team.

The FsfflOy Resource Center et Qortiem E^dVbit A Amendment dl Cootroctor Irdttds.
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2.2.3. The Contractor shall ensure Parent Partners are ade<tuately trained and
supervised to provide peer support and are educated regarding the goals of
peer support which include, but are not limited to:

2.2.3.1. Instilling hope in families.

2.2.3.2. Providing support and prornoling self-advocacy.

2.2.3.3. Providing an understanding of the DCYF practice, policies, and
regulations.

2.2.4. The Contractor shall collaborate vi/ith the DCYF Parent Partner program to
identify Parent Partners that are willing and able to become Certified Recovery
Support Workers (CRSWs). Upon obtaining agreement from Parent Partners
to become CRSWs. the Contractor shall:

2.2.4.1. Support the parent partners in all aspects of certfTication as outlined by
the Office of Professional LIcensure and Certification (OPLC).
httiDis://www.oplc.nh.gov/alcohol»other-dnjg/index.htm

2.2.4.2. Ensure all components necessary for billing for CRSWs are in place In
accordance with Rule He-W513.

2.2.4.3. Enroll with Medicaid and managed care organizations.

2.3. Home Vlalting Programming

2.3.1. The Contractor shall provide evidenced-based home visiting programming.
(More information available at https://homvee.acf.hhs.gov/models.aspx)
Evidenced-based home visiting programming includes, but Is not limited to:

2.3.1.1. Providing Ages & Stages Questionnaires. Third Edition Developmental
screenings (ASO-S"*) (More information available at
http://agesandsta9es.com/products-services/asq3/)

2.3.1.2. Providing parent education.

2.3.1.3. Providing in-home supports.

2.3.1.4. Providing age end developmentally appropriate Substance Use
prevention messages and program cumculums.

2.3.1.5. Assisting families In locating and contacting community supports as
needed.

2.3.1.6. Collaborating with DCYF case workers to monitor families' progress
and create a shared goal plan for the famijy.

2.3.1.7. Collaborating with DCYF to identify realistic strategies for supporting
families and to build success in reaching family case goals as stated in
the Solution Based Case (SBC) Plans.

2.3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the home visit programming is effective by:

2.3.2.1. Engaging voluntary clients.

ThB Femly Rosourcc C«nt#f st Go«t«wn ExhlNl A Amondmont #1 CofXractof InlUala — —
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2.3.2.2. Developing promotional materials, that will be the property of the
Department, targeted at identified families.

2.3.2.3. Providing access to discretionary funds.

2.3.2.4. Employing a home visiting intervention owned by the Contractor, called
Creative Outreach.

2.3.2.5. litilizing evidence-based models Including, but not limited to;

2.3.2.5.1. Nurturing Parenting Program.

2.3.2.5.2. Growing Great Kids.

2.3.2.5.3. Growing Great Families

2.3.2.6. Utilizing client satisfaction surveys.

2.3.2.7. Training home visitors, in a parent-child interaction assessment tool
developed by Healthy Family America, called CHEERS (Cues,
Holding. Expression. Empathy. Rhythmidty Reciprocity. Smiles).

2.3.3. The Contractor shall use Department-approved parent-child interaction and

clinical assessment tools to measure progress towards achieving the

performance measures which may Include, but not be limited to:

2.3.3.1. Parenting Interactions with Children: Checklist of Observations Linked
to Outcomes (PICCOLO).

2.3.3.2. Parents Interacting With Infants and Toddlers (PI-WI).

2.3.3.3. North Carolina Family Assessment Scales (NCFAS-G)..

2.3.3.4. Edinburgh Postnatal Depression Scale (EOPS).

2.3.3.5. PHQ-9 and PHQ-2. tools for assessing depression.

2.3.3.6. Beck Depression Inventory (BOI-II).

2.3.3.7. TWEAK (Tolerance.'Worried, Eye-Opener, Amnesia, and K/Cut Down)

screening test consisting of five (5) questions designed to saeen

pregnant women for harmful drinking habits.

2.3.3.8. Michigan Alcohol Screening Test (MAST).

2.3.3.9. Drug Abuse Screening Test (DAST).

2.3.3.10. Relationship Assessment Tool (RAT).

2.3.3.11. Adult-Adolescent Parenting Inventory (AAPI) screen.

2.3.4. Thepontractor shall follow up on assessment tool outcomes by:

2.3.4.1. Employing motivational interviewing with clients.

2.3.4.2. Scoring screenings as soon as possible in order to validate clients'

responses.

2.3.4.3. Providing referrals.

T>*o FomlTy Roaoureo Contor ct G»t\om EjtfJblJ A Aman^onl Conrtctof InHJels
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2.3.5. The Contractor shall collaborete with community partners including, but not

limited to:

2.3.5.1. Schools.

2.3.5.2. Project Aware.

2.3.5.3. Families and Schools Together (FAST).

2.4. Relative Careglver Support:

2.4.1. The Contractor shall develop and promote relative careglver support groups to

help reduce caregiver strain and create a natural system of support among
^relative caregivers. The support groups must be accessible to the two (2)
Distn'ct Office covered catchment areas and be based on areas of high r^eed.

Development and promotion shall include, but not be limited to:

2.4.1.1. Development;

2.4.1.1.1. Employing the Nurturing Parenling Program.

2.4.1.1.2. Empowering relative caregivers to have input regarding:

2.4.1.1.2.1. Topics.

2.4.1.1.2.2. Guest speakers.

2.4.1.1.2.3. Format/frequency, duration, and time of meetings.

2.4.1.1.3. Having a skilled staff person at the meeting, but encouraging

relative caregivers to facilitate the meeting.

2.4.1.2. Promotion:

2.4.1.2.1. Positive word of mouth.

2.4.1.2.2. Referrals.

2.4.1.2.3. Incentives.

2.4.1.2.4. Social media.

2.4.1.2.5. Pressreleases.

2.4.1.2.6. Opiniorveditorials.

2.4.1.2.7. Radio public service announcements.

2.4.1.2.8. Posters, flyers, and brochures which shall be the property of the
Department.

2.4.2. The Contractor shall collaborate vrith DCYF to ensure relative caregivers are

informed of supports induding; but not limited to:

2.4.2.1. The Relative Careglver specialist at DCYF and the Resource Guide

developed by DCYF.'

2.4.2.2. Relative caregiver support groups in their area.

Tho FamDy RsMuru Contor et Gortiam Exhlbll A Antondmoni H \ Conbnctof InJUala
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2.4.2.3. Other community resources to help support the ceregiver and the child,

and reduce caregiver strain.

2.4.3. The Contractor shall provide education to the caregiver on how to Interact with

the child(ren) In a developmentally-appropriate manner regarding parental
substance use disorder end how to prevent addiction in their own lives.

2.4.4. The Contractor shall provide the Parenting a Second Time Around curriculum
or equivalent evider>ce-based program for grandparents who are caring for a

minor grandchild which shall include, but is not limited to:

2.4.4.1. Providing no less than four (4) wortcshops on relevant topics which
may include, but are not limited to:

2.4.4.1.1. Child development.

2.4.4.1.2. Oiscipline and guidance.

2.4.4.1.3. Personal care.

2.4.4.1.4. Raising teenagers.

2.4.4.1.5. An overview of support services.

2.4.4.1.6. Legal issues.

2.4.4.2. Providing individual counseling for relative caregivers, including

grandparents.

2.4.4.3. Providing the pamphlet A Resource Guide for New l-(ampshire RelaUve

Caregivers
fhttDS://vAvw.dhhs.nh.Qov/dcvf/dQcuments/relativecareQlvefs.Qdft to

relative caregivers. including grandparents.

2.5. Parent and Child Substance Use Education

2.5.1. The Contractor shall provide parent and child substance use education, using

the Nurturing Parenting program fhttD://www.nurturinQDarenttnQ.com1 which

includes, but is not limited to:

2.5.1.1. Training all relevant staff in the Nurturing Parenting program.

.2.5.1.2. Providing education in a variety of settings including in single or co-

fadlltated group settings.

2.5.1.3. Modifying the education for Individuals and families not yet ready for e

group setting.

2.6. The Contractor shall develop and submit a work plan to the Department for review and

approval, which describes the process for ensuring the completion of all aspects of the

Scope of Services within thirty (30) days of Governor and Executive Council approval of

the contract.

/JrThe FvnOy Rosourc* C«nt0f St Gofftom Ej^lbit A Amondment ff 1 Contractor InlUsb.
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2.7. Data and Reporting

2.7.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly narrative reports to the Department
including a summary of project progress, barriers met and addressed, and
general aggregate information regarding the families served by the program.
The aggregate information must include, but is not limited to:

2.7.1.1. Primary drug of choice for family members.

2.7.1.2. General treatment access information for family members.

2.7.1.3. Number and ages of children served by program.

2.7.1.4. Date Of enrollment in program.

2.7.1.5. Living arrangemanls for each child served by this program Including,
but not limited to in his or her own home with parents; in a relative
caregiver home; in a foster home; or in a residential group home at the
time of the referral, until program discharge.

2.7.1.6. Change In the living status of each child.

2.7.1.7. Number of provider organizations providing direct services as listed in
the scope of service.

2.7.1.6. Number of parent partners hired and the district offices covered.

2.7.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department-selected technical

assistance vendor to collect de-ideniifted. aggregate data and implement an
evaluation process that is culturally appropriate for the population served and is
approved by the Department.

3. Performance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure that the following performance indicators are quarterly
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide evidence-based home visiting services to one
hundred percent (100 %) of families referred to the program that require home
visiting services.as part of their treatment plan.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall increase training opportunities for the early childhood and
home visiting workforce in substance misuse prevention, recovery, and trauma
informed care by three (3) trainings per calendar year and increase the
knowledge of substance misuse prevention, recovery and trauma informed
care among (he early childhood and home visiting workforce, as demonstrated
by an Increase of (10%) in aggregate as measured quarterly from training pre
tests to training post-tests

3.1.3. The Conlractor shall ensure that eighty percent (80%) of families referred to the
program receive access to treatment or interim treatment services within forty
eight (46) houm of referral.

The FemOy Resomco Center el Gortiam A Amendment Contractor (nitiaie
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3.2. Quarterly, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the Department, a corrective
action plan for any performance measure that was not achieved.

4.. Deliverables
4.1. The Contractor shall provide services to no less than two hundred forty (240) families,

including, but not limited to. no less than;

4.2. Sixty seven (67) families with open DCYF cases.

4.3. One hundred seventy three (173) families in the DCYF who are undergoing DCYF
assessment.

Tho FomOy Rmouics Ceniaf Dt Gortwm • A Amendment fl 1 Contrectv InitloU
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STATE OF MEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/yiS/ON FOR BEHA WJORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERyJCES

lOS pleasant street, concord, NH 03301
603-2n-<ll0 I400492-3S4SEil67JS

faj; MJ-27I4I0S TOO Accni: l-000-735<2964

WMM.4hht.nb.l0V

April 11. 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the.Oepartrrient of Health and Human ̂ rvices, prvision for Behavioral Health..to
enter, into an'agreement with the yendprs'listed below, for the provision of Targeted Prevention
Programming for pCYF-lnvotved Families with Substance Use Disorder in an aniounl hot to exceed
$744,197.40. effective upon date of Governor and Council approval, through June 30, 2019. 100%
Federal Funds.

Contractor Name VeridorlD. Contraclor Address SFY2018 , SFY 2019 Total Price-

Limitation

Granite Pathways 228900-- .

8001

10 Ferry Street
Concord. NH 03301

■  $121,778 $487,1.11 $608,889

The Family
Resource Center

at Gorham

162412-

8001

123 Main Street

Gorham. NH0!l581
$27,062 $108,247 5135.309

Total $146,640 $595,358 $744,198

Funds are available in the following account(s) for SFY 2018 and 2019. with authority to adjust
amounts within-lhe price limitation and adjust encumbrances between Slate Fiscal Years through the
Budget Office, without approval from Governor and Executive Council. If needed and justified.

05-9S-92-920S10.25590000- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: olviSIGN FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL.
OPIOID STR GRANT.

SFY Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY10 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052559 $148,940

SFY19 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services
\

92052559 $595,359

Total. $$744,198
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

April 11, 2018
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide Substance Use Disorder prevention and early
intervention services to children (from birth through age ten (10)) involved with the Division for
Children. Youth and Families (DCYF) and their parents/caregivers who have a 8ubstar>ce use disorder.
These' statewide services will ensure the availability of integrated services designed to reduce and
mitigate childhood trauma from substance use in the family. Services to be provided include (raining
and assisting partner programs with developing and implemeriting strategies that assist the target
population. These contracts were developed spec'rfically for the target population using research on
best -practices, technical assistance from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, guidance from existing Division for Children, Youth ond Families Parent PamerB, and
collaboration within the Department:

The State of New Hampshire was awarded funding authorized by the 21st Century CURES Act
through the Sut>$tance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA). SAMHSA is
overseeing the process for states to receive federal funding through the State Targeted Response to
the Opioid Crisis Grants Program.

These two contracts constitute one of the projects that will be implemented under the 2l8t
Century CURES Act funding. Including the following services and activities:

Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant and Postpartum Women.

Naloxone Distribution to individuals Transilioning from Corrections to the Community.'" '

Project Management Support: Training, Technical Assistance. Data Collection end Reporting
Consultant.

Re-entry Care Coordination for Women Transitioning from Corrections to the Community.

Recovery Support Services, and Parenting Programming for Pregnant Women and Parents in
Recovery.

Recovery Support Services for School-Aged Youth in Recovery.

Targeted Prevention Programming for Division for Children Youth and Families Involved
Families with Substance Use Disorder.

New Hampshire seeks to ftll the current gaps in critical specialty services for populations that
are disproportionately affected by opioid use disorder and substance use disorder, arvj those that are
limited'ln capacity to serve high-need populations.

Granite Pathways and Family Resource Center at Gorham were selected for this project
through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals/Applications was posted on The
Department of Health and Human Services' web site from December 19, 2017 through January 22,
2018. The Depahment received two (2) proposals. The proposals/applications were reviewed and
scored by a team of Individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough
discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the proposals/applications. The Bid Summary is-
attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions,
of this contract, the Department reserves the option to extend contract services for up to two (2)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and approval of the Goverrx)r and Executive Council.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, children impacted by
addiction Issues within their family may not receive the services and targeting prevention messaging
necessary to support them with current needs and to assist them with avoldihg addictiori issues In the
future, tn addition, relative caregivers may not receive the support necessary to continue to support
the children in their family impacted by addiction.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from OHHS, Substance Abuse and Mental Heetth

Services Administration, Center for Substance Abuse Treatment. Targeting Capacity Expansion State
Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis Grant (CFDA # 93.788 FAIN TI060246)

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:

Co

J^ffipy A. Meyers
Imissioner

Th4 DtporimtM if Htallh ond //umon Strtjitu'Miuion it lo join communilUoond fomilito
in providing opportunilUo for eilisrm 10 achitvt heohh and indtptndtnet.
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FORM NUMBER P 37 (venk>n S/8/15)
Sub)eci: Targeted Preveniion Programming for DCYF-lnvolvcd Families fRFP>20lg BDAS.m.TARGE-Q2^

Notice: Thlj agrccmeni and ail of iu attachments shall become public tjpon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, conndential or proprietary must
be clearly idcniined to the agcrxy and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The State of New Hampshire and the Conuacior hereby muiuiJIy agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I Slate AgerKy Name
NH Department of Health ertd Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3837

1.3 Conuaclor Name-

The Family Resource Center at Gorham
1.4 Contractor Address

123 Main Street

Gorham. hm 03581

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-466-5190x304

1.6 Account Number

05-95.92.920510-25590000-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2019

1.8 Price Limitation

SI 35.309

1.9 Conintcting Offrcer for State Agency
E. Maria Relnemann, Esq. '
Director of Coniracis and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-93.30

I.II 'Convactor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Coniracior Signatory

lucig. Rcrndlarcl,
1.13 Acknowledgement; Stale of .County of ^dOS

Oi (5* .before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Idcmincd in block!. 12. or satisfactorily
proven to be the persr>n whose name is signed in block 1.11. and acknowledged that s/he executed this docunvnt in the capacity
indicaied in block 1.12.

1.13.1 SigiiatureofNbiAryPubli

l.r.t.2 Name and Title o(

the Peace JOSEPH YOUNG
^lary PuWic. Staia ol Htw Han^njr*
HyCommttiionEaotraaAoauMO arm

Justice of the Peace

• /[lo\-^ry ■
. 14 State Agency Signature

S 1
iproval by (he N

Date:.'-'Wi'T
1.15 Name and Title of Slate Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Depanmcni of Adminjsvaiion. Division of Personnel (i/applicabU)

By: Director. On:

1.17 Af^roval by the Auomey General (Form. Subsunce and Execution) (i/epplicabU)

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Exccuii^^ouncii {ifoppUlolkt)

By: / I On:
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1. employment OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICE5 TO
BE PERFORMED. The Sisie of New Himpshire. aciing
ihfOu|h «hc agency ideniified in block 1.1 ("Sutc'O. engigej
conirtctof identified in block 1.3 (Xoniraciof") to perform,
and the Coninclor ahall perform, the work or talc of goods, or
both, ideniified and more ptriicularly described in the atiached
EXHIBIT A which Is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
conuvy. and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Exeeutive Council of the State of New Hampshire, tf
applicable, (his Agreement, and all obilgaiions of the parties
hereunder. shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as irKlicaied In
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement it signed by the Suie Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("EffeciiveOate").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date. aJI Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Coniractof. and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the State shallhavc no liability to the
Contnctor, including without limjiaiion, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. COfflJinONAL NATURE OF agreement.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreerriei^t to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder. including,
wiihoui limiiaiion. the coniinuancc'of payrneois'Kereunder. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, end in no event shall the Slate be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds, in the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have (he right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such icrTTunatton. The State
shall rwt be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identiHcd in biKk i .6 in the event funds in that
Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more panicularly described in
EXHIBIT B whkh'is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by (he Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State resavet the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated irrroums required or perrruiied by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the toial of all paymcms authorixed. or actually
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with (he performance of the Services, the
Coniricior shall comply wlih all siaiuies. laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but rtoi limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to uiiliu auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with cotnmunicaiion
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate wiih. receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, (he Conlracior

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall'
not discriminate against employees or afi^litanis for
employment because of race, color; religion, creed, age. sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or rutionaJ origin and will take
efrtrnuijve action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If (his Agreement is funded in any'pan-by rrtonics of the
United States, the Contractor shall corrply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemenied by the
regulations of the United Slates Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the Umicd Stales issue to
implement these regulations. The Conmctor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the

■Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, reguiaiiorts and orders,
and the covenanu. terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
persoruiel necessary to perform' the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
quaJified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.
7.2 Unlns otherwise auihoriied in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of tlx (6) month) after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not pcrndi any subcontfacWr or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort lo
perform the .Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or officuil. who is materially involved in the '
procurement, adminisimtion or performanicc of this

2of4
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Agreement. This provision shell survive terminaiion of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Conlreciing Officer tpecificd in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shall be the State's rcprcsenteiivc. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contnciing Ofricer's decision shall be final for the State.

B. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

f'Evenl of Default*'):
8.1.1 .failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.7 failure to submit any rcpon required hereunder; and/or

8.1.3 failure to perform any oiher covenant, term or condition
of (his Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Suic
may take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specinceiion of time; ihiny (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default Is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreerhiem.'efTeciive two
(2) days after giving the Contractor noiice of termihaiion:
8.2.2 give (he Contractor a writien noiice specifying'the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion 6f the'cohtmci price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Suie
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

Shall never be paid to the Controcior;
8.2.3 set off against any otherobligoiions the Stale may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Siaie sufferi by reason of any
EvchI of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pmuc any of iu
itmedics at law or in equity, or both.

9. data/access/confcdentiauty/

PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean ail
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, repons,
flies, formulae, surveys, maps. Chans, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproduciiofts, drawings, analyses,
graphic represcniBiions, computer prograim. computer
printouts, notes, leiten, memoranda, papen, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All daut and any propeny which has been received from
the Stale or purchased widi funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the properly of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of (hit Agreement for any reason.
9.3 ConTideniialiiy of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-Aor other cjusiing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In (he event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteend 5) days after the date of
lerminatitm, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, conteni, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Repon
described in the attached EXHlBrf A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the perforTTuincc of this Agreement the Contractor is in ell
respects on independent contractor, and is neither on agcni nor
an employee of (he State. Neither the Coritracior nor any of its

officers, employees, agents or members shall have aut))ority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Stale to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENTfDELECATlON^UBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written noiice and
consent of (he State; None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Conuvior without (he prior w^ttcn
noiice and consent of the State.

13. INDEhiNlFlCATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless (he State, its officeri and
employees, from and agatrui any and ail losses suffered by the
Sute, its officers and employees, and any artd all elairm.
liabiliiies or penalties asserted'againsi'the State. Its officers
and crrtployces, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
bas^ or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed lb vise out oO the acts or omissions of (he ' •
Contractor. Notwithstanding the' fbregoinjg, nothing herein
contairted shall be'deemed loco^'tiiuie a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragrsph l3 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 ThcConuictor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and-
mainiain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following

'  insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less ihanSI.O(X).(XX)per occurrence and S2.(XX).000
aggregate : and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
' propeny subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not

less than 80% of the whole replacemnt value of (he property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.i herein shall
be on policy forms end cndorsctncnts approved for use in the
State <>( New Hampshire by the N.H. Dcpanmeni of
Insurertce. and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Conmcior shtll furnish to the Contracling Officer
identified In block ) .9, or his or her successor, a cenificsiefs)
of insurartce for aJI insurance required urtder this Agrecmeni.
Contractor shall also Furnish to the Coni/aciing Offtcer
tdeniified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, cenincaie(i) of
insurance for all rencwol(s) of insurance required under this
Agreentent no later than thirty (30) days prior to the espiraiion
date ofeachof tl« insurance policies. The certincaie(s) of
insurafKe and any rcnewaJs thereof shall be attached irtd are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccniriciie(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contacting Officer ideniified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor. oO less than thirty (30) days prior writien
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing ihisagreemeni. the Contractor agrees,
certiftes and wanants that ihc Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensotion

IS.I To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall
rrainiiin. and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
underukc'pursuani to this Agreement. Conlracior shall
furnish (he Coninciing Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof of WorVers' Compensation in the
manner described In N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any'
applicable rcnew'al(s) (hereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Slate shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contracior, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which' might
•rise under applicable Sute of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services tinder this A^mem.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Sute to
enfotee any provis'tons hereof after any Event of Default shall
he deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each end all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of (he Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only oficr approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor znd
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is requited under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed inacconJance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the bencfii of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in ihU Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parlies hereto do noi iniend to
benefit any third parries and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21; HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agroemem
are for reference purposes only, and (he words contained
therein shall in no way be held locxplain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHJ BIT Care incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agrremeni are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law. the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of coumerpans, each of which shall
he deemed an original, constitutes Ihc entire Agreement and
undcrsundiflg between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Deportment of HeaHh ond Humon Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
for DCYF-involved Femlliee Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Coniracior shell submit a detailed description ot the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proflciency to ensure meaningful access
to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that,' to the extent future legislative action by the New

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the

Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure reguiremenls under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees that in the performance of any services involving the
coilection, transmission, storage, or disposition of data obtained or created on behalf

of OHHS, shall be subject to the requirements stated in Exhibit K.

1.4. The Contractor agrees that In the performance of any services Involving the
collection, transnriission.-storage, or-dispositlon ot data containing protected health
information (PHI)--;or.jn the cese of subslanco usa disorder (SUO) data created by a
Part 2 provider on behalf of OHHS, shall, be subject to the requirements slated in
Exhibit! and 45 CFfl Part. 2.

1.5. The Contractor agrees that in- the performance of any services all staff members
shall have training in - contidentielity and information security relating to' the
information, tiles and data that is involved ir^ the performance of. the contract.'

1.6. The Contractor agrees that any database, dashboard, or information system
designed, built, or rnodiiied on behalf of OHHS shall be defined and subject to the
requirements iri Exhibit K, Exhibit I,' and all applicable NH Oepanment of Infoimation
Technology (OoTT) standards, policies, end procedures.

2. Scope of Seivlces
2.1. General Provlaiona

2.1.1. The Contractor shall provide services to the Division for Children, Youth and
Families (OCYFj-lnvolved children (from blrlh through age ten (10)) and their

parents/careglvers who have a substance use disorder for the two (2) District
Offices of Uttletcn and Berlin. See Exhibit A-1 for more details.

2.1.2. The Coniracior shall assist in developing a strong collaboration between
agencies within the Department including, but not limited to the Bureau of Drug
end Alcohol Services (BDAS), the Division for Children, Youth, and Families

(DCYF). (he Division of Public Health Services (DPHS), end the Bureau for
Children's Behavioral Health (BCBH) by creating and Implementing programs

targeted at DCYF-lnvolved children and their parents/ primary c'aregivers with
substance use disorder in order to:

2.1.2.1. Reduce and mitigate childhood trauma by;

-  OTh« Famly A«90Uicf Canter At Ooitteni EtftlthA Cantfartor Inhlele V-\^.
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New Hampshire Oepertment of Heetth end Humen Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
for DCYFMnvolved Femllles Exhibit A

2.1.2.1.1. Increasing access to and participation In evidence-based home
visiting services;

2.1.2.1.2. Reducing the chad's risk of substance use issues; and

2.1.2.1.3. Increasing training opportunities for the early childhood and
home visiting workforce in substance misuse prevention,
recovery, and trauma-informed care so that the workforce is
better prepared to address the challenges of this population. ^

2.1 !2.2. Engage, educate, and empower parents/primary caregivcrs in a peer-
to-peer model to increase family protective factors and reduce risk
factors in order to better support childhood social and emotional needs
by:

2.1.2.2.1. Fostering positive parent/primary caregiver child attachment;

2.1.2.2.2. Increasing parani/primary caregiver knowledge about childhood
development and learning;

2.1.2.2.3: Increasing resiliency, and =• social' connectedness in
•  • parents/primary caregivers; and

2.1.2.2.4. Educatirig parents on the topic of trauma for children and the
risk continued substance use poses to the child.

2.1.3. the Qonlraclor shall maintain one" (1) point of conlad and one (l)'allemale
boritact who can receive requests from the two (2) covered District Offices that
vHII refer' famines to this'program.'

2.1.4. The Conlraclor shall ensure that families who are referred for services are
offered all program components In a timely fashion, with the understanding that
DCYF involvement has a twelve (12) month timeframe for permanency

'  decisions that can Impact a parent's parental rights.

2.1.5. The Contractor shall re-offer services ai two (2) and six (6) weeks after the
inilial offer of services to families that decline ihe initial offer of services, cease

to.participaie, or do not attend a scheduled visit.

2.1.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with Department partners when any
issues/barriers arise including, bul not limited to, timely access to treatment
and program partner capacity Issues such as program waitlists or lack of
treatment provider capacity.

2.1.7. The Contractor shall ensure that when there Is an Infant Safe Plan of Care

(ISPOC) for a child, all participaling partners are knowledgeable about the plan
of care and are assisting DCYF and the family to fulfill the plan of care through
the use of wraparound meetings and collaboration with the participating
partners.

2.1 .fl. The Contractor shall be familiar with the DCYF practice model and Solution
Based Casework (SBC) in order to provide senrices within these framevrtjrks.
(More information can be found at f .

The F«mly ReiouJM Center tt Oomam E4iWlA Cemrector
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New Hampehire Oepartment of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
for OCYF'Invoived Famlllea Exhibit A

https://wNvw.dhhs.rth.QOv/dcvt/dQCumenls/nhdcvf%202015-2019cfsp.Ddl and

httD://www.solulionbasedcasewor1<.com/about/.1

2.1.9. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department on federatly-marNdated

outcome design and data collection (or program evaluation and federal
reporting purposes.

2.1.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with existing program providers to ensure
consistency in practice and enrollment of clients In appropriate programming
Including, t)ut not limited to:

2.1.10.1. Collaborating with the North Country Health Consortium to develop a

protocol and referral -process for prioritization of OCYF-involved
families wrih substance use disorder/opioid use disorder (SUO/OUO).

2.1.10.2. Collaborating with the local Integrated Oeflvery Network in order to
team from their prior work and keep them informed of (he Contractor's

various efforts.

2.1.10.3. Collaborating with the Coos Coalition for Children and Young Families
by participating in their leadership.-board and their corrimittees
applicable to this contract.

2.1.11. The Contractor shall establish a formal agreemenf Nviih the Regional Access

Point' proN^der to develop a protocol and refenal process for prioriiizatlon of
DCYF-involved. families with substance use disorder/opioid use disorder
(SUD/OUD).

2.1.12. When treatment 'services cannot be provided within forty-eight (A6) hours of
referral, the Contractor shell ensure the cliehl has aocess to Interim services,

defined as recovery support services or services with a lower American Society
of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Level of Care, under this contract or by referral
to an agency that has an earlier available opening In the client's service area.

This shall be accomplished through Increasing access to treatments by;,

2.1.12.1. Assisting with accessing transportation to treatment.

2.1.12.2. Expanding home visiiing services beyond parenting home visits.

2.1.12.3. Assisting with completing paperwork including, but not limited to

2.1.12.3.1. Replacing a lost Insurarce card.

2.1.12.32. Obtaining medical clearance .

2.1.12.4. Developing a plan of care for children while the parent(s) are receiving
treatment.

2.1.13. The Contractor shall Identity or develop, when indicated, appropriate Strength

to Succeed training currfculum and educational materials including, but not
limited to:

2.1.13.1. Parenting cum'culum for parents and families while In treatment and

recovery including, bul not limited to:

Tti» Fwnty Rmouicx Ccnitf Bl Oortiam Erfrtifl A Coramrtof .
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New Hampshire Oeparlment of Health and Human Services
Targeted Prevention Programming
for DCYF-tnvolved Families Eihlbil A

2.1.13.1.1. The Nurturing Parenting Program for Families In Substance
Abuse Treatment and Recovery (Nurturing Parenting Program).

2.1.13.1.2- Anger Management for Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Clients; Participant Workbook.

2.1.13.2. Prevention messaging geared for young children regarding substance
use. I

2.1.13.3. Addiction 101, which Iho Contractor shall dovolop with BOAS to be
delivered to the program partners who ere not SUD treatment
providers and do not have the basic training already, including DCYF.

2.1.13.4. DCYF Involvement 101. which the Conlractor sh^l develop with OCYF^
to.be delivered to the program partners not affiliated with DCYF lb
include the DCYF practice model and the tenets of Solution Based
Casework.

2.1.14. The Contractor shall, develop pre- and post-tests for the trainings addressed in
Subsection 2.1.13 and will collect and score the tests in order to determine
imprdvemeni gained from the training..

' 2.1.15. The Conlractor shall utilize the "Strength to Succeed" name, when markellrig or
conducting business lor this program. ' -

2.1.16. The Contractor shall, use a Department-approved, parent-child inleracllon form
to collect a l^aseline and to follow up with families enrolled in home visiting
programs in order, to show an increase in positive parenting skids and
knowledge of childhood development.

2.2. DCYF Parent Parlner Program (Peer Recovery Support)

2.2.1,. The Contractor shall collaborate with the DCYF Parent Partner Program in
order to: " . ' ' • .

.2.2.1.1. Hire quarrfled Parent Partners which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.2.1.1.1. Sending a letter to DCYF for each applicable 00 to infonm of the
plan to hire Parent Partners.

2.2.1.1.2. Developing a job description lor the role.

2.2.1.1.3. Determining It the DCYF Supervisor, District Office supenrisor,
and/or Parent Partner Program manager would like to be on the
hiring committee.

2.2.1.1.4. Advertising the position.

2.2.1.1.5. Developing Interview questions.

2.2.1.1.6. Scheduling and conducting interviews.

2.2.1.1.7. Selecting Parent Partners trased on inierviews.

2.2.1.2. Develop program oversight and an integrated supervision model for
Parent Partners to Include, but not be limited to providing woint of

Th« F«nlly Rwou<c« C«nte< «t Gertwn A Conimciw irfitairV \s , .
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contact and oversight at each of the two (2) covered District Offices
which shall include, but not be (imited to:

2.2.1.2.1. Hmptoying reflective supervision.

2.2.1.2.2. Collaborating with the DCYF contact person at a minimum of
once per month for feedback regarding the Parent Partners.

2.2.1.2.3. Providing Practice-Based Coaches to the Parent Partners.

2.2.1.3. Train Parent Partners in providing support to families with SUD/OUO.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with DCYF to establish a recruitment and

hiring plan that ensures Parent Partners are collocated in each of the two (2)
covered OistiKt Offices as an integrated member of the team.

2.2.3. The Contractor shall ensure Parent Partners are adequately trained end

supervised to provide peer support and are educated regarding the goals of
peer support which include, but are not limited to:

2.2.3.1. Instilling hope in families.

2.2.3.2. Providirig support and promoting self-advocacy.

2.2.^3. Pro\^ding an understanding of the DCYF' practice, policies, and
regulations. . . ^ .

2.2.4. The Contractor shall collaborate wilh the DCYF Pareril Partrier program to

ideniily Parent Partners that are willing and ̂ le.to become Certified Recovery
Support Workers (CRSW's). Upon oblaining agree'ment from Parent Partners
to become CRSW's. the Contractor shall:

2.2.4.1. Support the parent partners In a!) aspects of certification as outlined by
the Office of Professiona] Licensure and Certifjcation (OPLC).
https^/www.oplc.nh.gov/alcohol-other-dnjg/index.hlm

2.2.4.2. Ensure all components necessary for billing (or CRSW's are In place In
accordance with Rule He-WS13.

2.2.4.3. Enroll with f^edicaid and managed care organizations.

2.3. Home Visiting Programming

2.3.1. The Contractor shall provide evidenced-based home visiting programming.
(More information available at https-y/homvee.ecf.hhs.gov/rriodels.aspx)
Evidenced-based home visiting programming includes, but Is not limited to:

2.3.1.1. Providing Ages & Sieges Questionnaires, Third Edition Developmental
screenings (ASQ-3™) (More information available at
httpy/agesandstages.com/products-services/asq3/)

2.3.1.2. Providing parent education.

2.3.1.3. Providing in-home supports.

•Ob
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2.3.1.4. Providing age and developmentally appropriate Substance Use
prevention messages and program curriculums.

2.3.1.5. Assisting families in locating and contactirig community supports as
needed.

2.3.1.6. Collaborating'with QCYF case workers to monitor families' progress
and create a shared goal plan for the family.

2.3.1.7. Collaborating with OCYF to identify realistic strategies for supporting

families and to build success in reaching family case goals as stated in

the Solution Based Case (SBC) Plans.

2.3.2. The Contractor shad ensure the home visit programming is effeclive by;

2.3.2.1. . Engaging voluntary clients.

2.3.2.2. Developing promotional materials, thai will be the property of the
Department, targeted at identified families.

2.3.2.3. Providing access to discretionary funds.

2.3.2.4. Employing a home visiting intervention owne.d by the .Contractor, called

Creative Outreach.

2.3.2.5. Utilizing evidence-based models including, but nol limited to;

•  2.3.2.5.1. Nurluring Parenting Program.

2.3.2.5.2. Growing Great Kids. .

2.3.2.5.3. Growing Great Families

2.3.2.6. Utilizing client satisfaction surveys.

2.3.2.7. Training home visitors in a parent-child interaction assessment tool

developed by Healthy Family America, called CHEERS (Cues.
Holding. Expression, Empathy, Rhythmicity Reciprocity, Smiles).

2.3.3. The Contractor shall use Department-approved parent-child Interaction
assessment tools to measure progress towards achieving the performance
measures which may include, but not be limited to:

2.3.3.1. Parenting Interactions with Childran: Checklist of Observations Linked
to Outcomes (PICCOLO).

2.3.3.2. Parents Interacting With Infants and Toddlers (PI-WI).

2.3.3.3. North Carolina Family Assessment Scales (NCFAS-Q).

2.3.3.4. Edinburgh Postnatal Depression Scale (EDPS).

2.3.3.5. PHO-9 and PHO-2, tools for assessing depression.

2.3.3.6. Beck Depression Inventory (BDMI).

■^0The Feinly Resource Centei el Goiham EjWbH A Coniiaaoi WUila ^ .
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2.3.3.7. TWEAK (Tolerance, Worried, Eye-Opener, Amnesia. K/Cut Down)

screening lest consisting of live (5)' questions designed to screen
pregnant women for harmful drinking habits.

2.3.3.8. Michigan Alcohol Screening Test (MAST).

2.3.3.9. Drug Abuse Screening Test (OAST).

2.3.3.10. Relationship Assessment Tool (RAT).

2.3.3.11. Adult-Adolescent Pareniing Inventory (AAPl) screen.

2.3.4. The Contractor Shall follow up on assessment tool outcomes by:

2.3.4.1. Employing molivationat interviewing with clients.

2.3.4.2. Scoring screenlrtgs as soon as possible In order to validate dienis'

responses.

2.3.4.3. Providing referrals.

2.3.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with community .partners including, but not
limited to:

2.3.5.1. Schools..

2.3.5.2. Projecl Aware.

2.3.5.3. Families and Schools Together (FAST).

2.4. Relative Caregiver Support:

2.4.1. The Contractor shall develop and promote relative caregiver support groups to

help reduce caregiver strain and create a natural system of support among
relative caregivers. The support groups must be accessible to the two (2)
District Office covered catchment areas and be based on areas of high need.
Developrnent and promotion shall include, but not be limited to:

2.4.1.1. Development:

2.4.1.1.1. Employing the Nurturing Parenting Program.

2.4.1.1.2. Empowering relative caregivers to have input regarding:

2.4.1.1.2.1. Topics.

2.4.1.1.2.2. Guest speakers.

2.4.1.1.2.3. Format, frequency, duration, and lime of meetings.

2.4.1.1.3. Having a skilled staff person at the meeting, but encouraging
relative caregivers to facilitate the meeting.

2.4.1.2. Promotion:

2.4.1.2.1. Positive word of mouth.

2.4.1.2.2. Referrals.

2.4.1.2.3. Incentives.

Th« Fft/nBy RoMufce ct Goit\sm £;4iUl A Comrftctor IfiHiali^ K .
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2.4.1.2.4. Social media.

2.4.1.2.5. Press releases.

2.4.1.2.6. Opinlon-editonais. '

2.4.1.2.7. Radio public service announcements.

2.4.1.2.6. Posters, flyers, and brochures which shall be the property of the
Oepartmeni.

2.4.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with OCYF lo ensure relative caregivers are
informed of supports including, but not limited to;

2.4.2.1. The Relative Caregiver specialist at DCYP and the Resource Guide
developed by OCYF.

2.4.2.2. Relative caregiver support groups in their area.

2.4.2.3. Other community resources to help support the caregiver and the child,
and reduce caregiver strain.

2.4.3. The Contractor shali provide education"lo the caregiver on how to interact with
the child(ren) in a developmentally*appropriate manner regarding parental
substance use disorder and how to prevent addiction in their own lives.

2.5. Parent and Child Substance Use Education

2.5.1. The Contractor shall provide parent end child substance use education, using
the Nurturing Parenting program fhtto://www.nurturinQoarentlnG.ooml wh«h
Includes, but is not limited lo:

2.5.1.1. Training all relevant staff in the Nurturing Parenting program.

2.5.1.2. Providing education in a variety of settings Including in single or co-
facilitated group settings.

2.5.1.3. Modifying the education lor individuals end families not yet ready for a
group setting.

2.6. The Contractor shall develop and submit a work plan to the Department for revievy and
approval, which describes the process for ensuring the completion of all aspects of the
Scope of Services within thirty (30) days of Governor and Executive Council approval of
the contract.

2.7. Data and Reporting

2.7.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly narrative reports to the Ocpartment
including a summary of protect progress, barriers met and addressed, and

general aggregate Information regarding the families served by the program.
The aggregate information must include, but is not limited to:

2.7.1.1. Primary drug of choice for family members.

2.7.1.2. Ger^eral treatment access information for family members.

2.7.1.3. Number and ages of children served by program.

rnvFcmlyriuouictCamiralGoitiB/n EiddtAA Coniffieto>liVilah^'v \C
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2.7.1.4. Dale of enrollment In program. /

2.7.1.5. Living arrangements for each child served by this program Including,
but not limited to in his or her own home with parents; In a relative
caregiver home; in a tester home; or in a residential group home et the
time of the referral, until program discharge.

2.7.1.6. Change in the living status of each child.

2.7.1.7. Number of provider organizations providing direct services as listed in

the scope of service.

2.7.1.8. Number of parent partners hired and the district offices covered.

2.7.2. The Conlractor shall coltaborale with the Department-selected technical
assistance vendor to oollect de-Identified, aggregate data and implement an
evaluation process that is culturally appropriate for the population served and Is
approved by the Oeparlmant.

3. Performance Measures .

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure that the following performance indicators are quarterly
achieved'and monitored rhonthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide evidence-based home visiting services to one

hundred percent (100 %) of families referred to the program that require home
visiting services as part of their treatment plan.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall Increase training opportunities for the eaily childhood and

home visiting worklorce in substance misuse prevention, recovery,' and trauma
informed care by three (3) trainings per calendar year and increase the
knowledge of substance misuse prevention, recovery end trauma Informed
care among the early childhood and home visiting worlrforce. as demonstrated

by an increase of (tO%) in aggregate as measured quarterty from training pre
tests to training post-tests

3.1.3: The Contractor shall ensure lhai.eighty percent (80%) of families referred to the
program receive access to treatment or intehm treatment services within forty
eight (48) hours of referral.

3.2. Quarterly, the Contractor shall develop end submit to the Department, a corrective
action plan for any performance measure that was not achieved.

TTw Famby Atwufce Center at Goftuun Etf^tA Conraoor InUals.
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NH DHHS DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE (DFA)
DISTRICT OFFICE CATCHMENT AREA

Where to Apply

DFA Locatlonfi
Towns Served

Berlin

650 Main Street. Suite 200
Berlin; 03570-2431
Phone; 752-7800 or
1-800-972-6111

Berlin. Clarksville, Colebrook, Columbia, DIxvlIle.
Dummer. Errol, Gorham. Groveton, Milan, Millsfield. N.
Stratford, Northumberland, Percy. Pittsburgh, Randolph,
Sheibume, Stark, Stewarlstown, Stratford. ,Wentwonh"s
Location. W. Stewarlstown

/

Claremont
17 Water Street, Ste. 301
Claremont; 03743-2280

Phone; 542-9544 or
1-800-982-1001

Acworth, Canaan. Charlestown. Claremont, Cornish,
Croydon, Enfield, George's Mills. Goshen, Grafton.
Grantham, Guild. Hanover. Langdon, ' Lebanon.
Lempster, Lyme. Meriden, Newport. Orange, Ortord.
Plainfleld. Springfield, Sunapee. Unity, Washington.
West Lebanon

Concord
40 Terrill Park Drive

Concord; 03301-9955
Phone: 271-6201 or

1-800-322-9191

Allenstown, Andover. Boscawen. Bow, Bradford,
Canterbury. Chichester, Concord, Contoocobk, Danbury,
Dunbarton, Elkins. Epsom. Franklin. Henniker,- Hill.
Hillst>oro. Hooksett, Hopkinton. Loudon. New London.
Newbury, Nohhlield, Pembroke. Penacook, Plttsfield,
Salisbury, Suncook, Sutton. Warner, Webster. Wilmot

Conway
73 Hobbs Street

Conway; 03818-6188
Phone: 447-3841 or

1-800-552-4628

Albany. Bartlelt, Brookfield, Chatham, Chocorua,
Conway. Eaton, Efflngham, Freedom, Gfen, Male's
Location. Hart's Location, Intervale, Jackson, Kearsarge,
Madison. Melvin Village, Moultonborough, N; Conway.
Ossipee, Sanbomville. Sandwich, Snowville, Tamworth,
Tuftonboro, Wakefleld. Wolfeboro

Keene

111 Key Road
Keene; 03431

Phone: 357-3510 or

1-800-624-9700

Alstead, Antrim. Ashuelol. Bennington, Chesterfield,
Deerlng, Drewville, Dublin. Fitzwilliam. Francestown.
Gilsum, Greenfield. Hancock, 'Harrisville, Hinsdale,
Jaffrey, Keene, Lyndeborough. Mariborough; Marlow,
Nelson. New Ipswich, Peterborough. Richmond, Rindge.
Roxbury, Sharon, Spoffard, Stoddard, Sullivan. Surry,
Swanzey, Temple, Troy, Walpole, Westmoreland,
Winchester, Windsor

Laconia
65 Beacon Street West

Laconia; 03246-9988
Phone: 524-4485 or

1-800-322-2121

Alexandria. Alton, Ashland. Barristead, BelmonI,
Bridgewater, Bristol, Campton, Center Harbor,
Dorchester, Ellsworth, Gilford, Gilmanton, Groton,
Hebron, Holdemess, Laconia, Lakeporl, Meredith. New
Hampton. Plymouth, Rumney, Sanbornton, Silver Lake.
Thornton, Tllton, Waterville Valley. Wentwonh.
Winnisquam

RFP-2018-80AS-04-TARGE Page 1 of 2 Contractor Initials
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Exhibit A-1

NH DHHS DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE (DFA)
DISTRICT OFFICE CATCHMENT AREA

Where to Apply

DFA Locations Towns Served

Littleton

60 Nortti Littleton Road

Uttlelon; 03561-3841

Phone: 444-6786 or

1-600-S52-6959

Bath, Behton, Bethlehem. Carroll, Dalton, Easton,
Franconia. Glencliff, Haverhlll, Jefferson. Lancaster.
Landatf. Lincoln. Lisbon, Littleton, Livermore, Lyman.
Monroe. Piermont, Pike, Sugar Hill, Twin Mountain,
Warren, Whitefield, Woodstock, Woodsville

Manchester

195 McGregor St.. Ste 110
Manchester; 03102-3762

Phone: 668-2330 or

1-800-852-7493

Auburn, Bedford, Chester, Gotfstovm, Manchester, New
Boston. Weare

Rochester
150 Wakelleld St.. Ste 22

Rochester; 03667-1309

Phone: 332-9120 or

1-800-862-5300

Barrington, Dover, Durham. Farmington, Gonic. Lee,
Madbury, Middleton, Milton, New Durham. Rochester,
Rollinslord, Somersworlh. Stratford. Union

Seacoast
50 International Drive

Portsmouth; 03801
Phone: 433-8300 or

1-800-821-0326

Brentwood. Candia, Deerfield, East. Kingston. Epping,
Exeter. Fremont, Greenland. Hampton, Hampton Falls.
Kensington. Kingston, New Castle, Newfields,
Newlngton. Newmarket, North Hampton, Northwood,
Nottingham, Portsmouth, Raymond. Rye, Seabrook,
South Hampton. Stratheim

Southern
3 Pine Street, Suite 0

Nashua; 03060-9311
Phone: 863-7726 or

1-800-852-0632

Amherst. Atkir\son, Brookline, Danville. Derry, Greenville.
Hampstead, Hollis, Hudson. Lltchfield, Londonderry,
Mason, Merrimack, Milford, Mont Vernon, Nashua,
Newton, Pelham, Plaistow, Salem, Sandovm, Wilton,
Windham"
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Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.6,
Price Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services.

2. The Contractor agrees to provide the sen/ices in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may
jeopardize the funded contractor's current and/or future funding.

3. This contract Is funded with funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFpA) 4 03.788, US Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and
Mental Health Administration.

4. The Contractor shall provide flexible funds in the amount specified in the Contractor's
budget as in order to assist with removing any barriers that parents/caregivers may
encounter in accessing any of the components of this program. Flexible funds are for
services or products necessary to be able to receive home visiting or to go to treatment
which irtclude, but are not limited to:

4.1. Gas cards.

4.2. Car repair bills.

4.3. Heating oil.

5. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows;

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in
the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line
item.

5.2. The Contractor-will submit an Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20") wortdng day of each month, which IdentKles and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Invoice
must be completed, signed, dated end returned to the Department in order to initiate
payment. The Contractor agrees to keep detailed records of their activities related to
Department-funded programs and services.

5.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds

'  are availalDie.

5.4. The final invoice shall be due to the Slate no later than forty (40) days after the
contract Form P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date.

5.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature end
emailed to:

'5.5.1. Email address: Laurie.HeathOdhhs.nh.gov

5.8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, and in this Exhibit B.

5.7. Notwithstandir>g paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment
limited to transfer the funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be

Tho Fejniy Rcseuic* Ctntr ei Oom«n> 8 C«n)rscior IrVdils.
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mada by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

The Ftrnty Resourcf Centei et Goftttm EtfiJWe Comncaor Inftiele
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligalions: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds recotved by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to Ihe Contractor lor services provided to eligible
individuals and. in Ihe furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as ic^lows;

t. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: if-the Contractor Is permlned to determine the eligibility
of irxlividuais such eligibility determination shall be rnode In eccordar>ce wHh opplicable federal ar^
slate laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies end procedures.

2. Time end Menner of Determination: EliglbUrty deierTnlnallons shall be made on forms provided by
the Department lor lhal purpose ertd shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Comractor
shall maintain a date file on each recipient of servicas hereunder. which file shall include aO
Irtformalion necessary to support en eiiglb'lily determination end such other information as ihe
Departmen) requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Heartnge: The Contractor understands ihat el) epplicanis lor services hereunder. as well as
Individuals declared ineligible have a righl to a fair hearing regarding that determination. -The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees thai all applicants for services shaD be permitted to fill out
an application form end that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulatioris.

5. Gratultloa or KIckbacka: The Contractor ogrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity cr offer of empioymcni on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-conlracl or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or otters of employment of any kind ware ottered or received by
any oHiciab. officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-.Contrector.

6. Rotroactlvo Poymenta: NotwithstarHjing anything to the contrary contained In ihe Contract or in any
other document, contract or understartding, h b expressfy understood ar>d agreed by Ihe parties
hereto, that rw payrhents will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor tor costs incurred tor
any purpose or lor any services provided to arty Irtdividual prior to the Effective Date of Ihe Contract
and no payments shall t)6 made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the dale on which the individual applies lor services or {except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that Ihe lr)dividual b eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanrkng anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obCgate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rale which exceeds the rate ctwgad by the Contractor to ineligible indlviduab or other third party
funders lor such service. If at any time during the term of ihb Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall deiermlr>e that the Contractor has used
poymenb hereurtder to reimburse Items of exx^i^s other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible IndNlduals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the retes lor payment hereur^er. In wh'ch event new rales shall be estabibhod;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs.
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7.3. Demand rapaymenl ot the excess payment by the Contractor in which event lallure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event ol Dolault hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibilily ol individuals lor services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department tor all lunds paid by the Department to the Contractor lor services
provided to eny individual who is lound by the Department to be Ineligible tor such services at
any time during the period of retention ol records established herein.

RECORDS". MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIAUTY: ,

e. Malntenenee of Rworde: In addition to the oiiptoiiity records specified above, the Contractor
coverxants and agrees to maihtein the lotlowlng records during the Conlreci Period;
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evIderK^g and reflecting al' costs

and other expenses lr>curred by the Contractor tn the performance ol the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly relied all such costs and expenses, and which arc acceptable to the Department, and
to Indude, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions lor materiab, inventories,'valuations of
in-Wnd contrfbutions. labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical. enrollnf\ent, attendance or visit records lor each recipient ol
services during the Conlraa Period, which records shall include all rocotds of application end
ellgibilily (including alt forms required lo determine eligibility lor each such redpient). records
regarding the provision of services and atl.invoices submlned to the Department lo obtain
payment for such services." ' '

8.3. Medical Records: Wfiem appropriate end as prescribed by the Department emulations, the
" Contractor shoD retain medical records on each patlcni/rccipicni of services.'

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit in annual audit to'the Departrheni within 60 days after the dose ol the
a^ncy fiscal year. It is recommended thaf the report be prepared In accordance wl^ the provision ot
Office ot Mahagemenl and" Budget Circular'A-l 33,"'Audits of Stales. Local Governments, end Non
Profit Organizations' arid the provisions ol Standards for Audit of Qovemrriental Organizations.
Programs. Aclrvltiesi and Functions. Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to ftnaricial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review; During the term of this Contract and the period lor retention hereunder. the

Department, the United Stales Department ot Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shaf) hove access to all reports end records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and trerucrlpts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to end not In any way In limriation ol obligations of tf>e Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that ihe Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions arxJ shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or wftich have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentloliry of Rocorda: All intormatron, reports, end records mainlained hereunder or cofiected
In connection with the pertoimence of the. services end the Contract shall be confidential and shall rsot
be disctosod by the Contractor, provided however, thai pursuant to slate taws end the regulaUoru of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure ol such infonnation, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their official duties and lor purposes
directly conn^od lo the edmlnisirailon of the services end the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by ar»y party ot any Information concerrting a recipient for any purpose riot
directly connecled with the administrai'ion ol tha Department or the C^nlractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written conscm of the recipient, hts
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein (he covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph ehell survive the termination ot the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reporte: Fiscal and StallsUcal: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
tlrnas K requested by the OepartmerM.
11.1, Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

a!) costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfaclory by the Departmem to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such FlnarKtal Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Depertment or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submlttod within thlr^ (30) days after the end of the term
of this 'Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form sailstactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objactivos atated in the Proposal
ervJ other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Sorvleea: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided tor in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all (he obligations of ihe parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms ot tho Contract are to be performed after the end of the term ot this Controct and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminaio. provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any er^enses claimed by the Contractor as'
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the dght. at Its discretion, to deduct Ihe amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sunfis from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All dxuments. riotices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resufllng from the performance of the services of the Contract shall includa the lot'owing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, documeni etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
ot New Hampshire', Departrhoni of Health and Human Services, with funds provide in part

'  ' by the'Stata of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or '
required, elg.. tha United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approvbl end Copyright Dinmerahlp: AD materials (wriKen, vidao, audio) produced or '
pu^ased under the coritmcl'shali have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS wID retain copyright ownership for any end ell original materials
produced, including, but not (Imlted to. brxhuraa, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract whhout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Lewaend Regulatlone: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shaD comply with all laws, orders end regulations of federal,
state, county and rnunlclpat authorities and wilh any direction ot any Publ'rc Ott'cer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose on order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of (he facility or the provision of.the services at such faclllly. If any govemmontal license or
permh shall be required for the operation ot Ihe said facility or the performance of the said aenrices,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, end will at el) times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such I'cense or permit, tn connection with the foregolr^g requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agroes that, during the term of this Contract Ihe facilities shall
comply wilh aU rules, orders, regulalions, end requtrements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local tire protection agency, and shall be In conformance wtth local building end zoning codas, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Empto'ymeni Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The Contractor will provide en Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), h h has
receded a single award of $500.IX)0 or more. If the recipient receives S2S,(X)0 or more and has SO or
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more emptoyoes, it wOl maintain a currenl EEOP on Tile and submit an EEOP Certificetion Porm to the
OCR, ceitifyInQ that Its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with lewer than 50 emptoyees, regardless ol the omounl ot the award, the recfplent will provide an
EEOP Certificetlon Form to the OCR certifying It Is not required to submit or maintain on EEOP. Non
profit organiiatioris, IrKlian Tn'bes, and medical and educatcnal institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to ctaim the exemption.
EEOP CertHicalton Forms are available at: htipy/www.ojp.osdoj/abouVocf^is/cert.pdi.

17. Limited Engllah Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executlvo Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for pcraoru with Limited English Proficiency, end resulting agency guidance, national origin
disaiminatlon includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Sale Streets Act ol t986 end Title VI ot the CM!
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must laxa reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

16. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whietleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all cortracts that exceed the SlmpDIied Acquisition Threshold as deFmed In 46
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

CONTRACTOfl EMPtOYEE WHISTUEBLOWEn RiCHTS ANO REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
Wmistleblwer Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees worlting on this contract will be subject to the whistlebiowe'r rights
ar^ remedies in the pilot program.on Contractor em^pyee whistleblower protections esiabHshed at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by sectiori 828 of (he Nelional Defense Aufhorualion Act (or Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.'
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Coritroclor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language ol the workforce,
ol employee whistleblower. rights and protections under 41- U.S.C. 4712,.as described in.section
3.906 of the.FedersI Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Ccniraclor shall Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over Ihe'stmplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontrectoro: OHHS recognizes that tha Contractor may choosa to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to pertorm certain health core services or (unctions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shad retain the responslbilily and accountability lor the tunction(3). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shaD evaluate the subcontractor's oblliiy to perform the dolegoted
functIon(8). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies ectivitles and reporting
respcnslbiiities of the subcontractor and provldos lor rovoking the deiagolion or Imposing sanctions H
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contrector and the Contractor b responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions. '

When (he Contrector delegates a (unction to a subconlrBctor, the Contractor shall do the lollowlng:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's sbQity to perfonn the activities, before delegattng

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontrector that specifies ectivliles end reporting
responsibilities end how sanctlonafrevocaUon will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance b not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's pertormanca on an ongoing basis

ExhIM C - SpoctAl Piovlslona Comnctv loiiiais.
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19.4. Provide to OHHS sn annual schedule Identifying all subconlractors, deiagaled (unctions and
responsibilities, end when the subconlraclor's performartce will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at hs discretion, review end approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shell have the lollowing meanlr>gs:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect Items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable artd reimbursable in accordance with cost and acoouniing principles established in ecoordartce
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section ol the Contractor Manual which Is
entitled 'Financial Management Guidelines* and which contains Ihe reguiatiorts govoming the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the Stale of NH,to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
requued by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Corttract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor Is to provide to eligible indtvrduals hereunder. shall mean thai
period of time or that specified activity determined by (he Department and specified in Exhibit 6 ol the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean ail such taws, regulations, etc. es
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that documeni prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to if^e New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541 -A. for the purpose of implementing State ol NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federel funds evailaWe for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagreph 4 ol ttie Ger«ral Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature ol Agreement, is replaced as
follows:
4. CONOmONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. •

Notwithstanding any provision ol this. Agreemeni to the contrary, at! obligations ol the State hereunder.
Including without limlteiion. the continuance ot payments, in whole or in pan, under this Agreement ere
contingent upon continued appropriation or avaiiabilhy of funds, including any subsequent clur>ges to the
appropriation or availabiiiiy of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability ol funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of ServlcBs, in wt>ole or In pan. In no'event shall
(he Slate be liable lor any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or evaOoblo funds. In the event
ol a reduction, termination, or modification of approprlatad or'available funds, the State shall have the
right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The Stale shall have the right to
reduce^ terminate, or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contrector
notice of such reduction, termination or modificdiion. The Stale shall not be required to transfer funds
from any other source or account into the Accounl(8) identified in block 1.6 ol the General Provisions,
Account Number, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparegraph 10 of the General Provisions ot this contract. Teimination. is emended by addlrtg the following
language;
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time (or any reason, at the sole discretion ol the State,

30 days after giving the Contractor writien notice that the Stale is exercising its option to tormlnate the
Agreement.

10.2 in the event ol early termination, the Contractor shatl, vnth'm 15 days ot notice ot early termination,
devebp and eubmil to the State e Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, Including but r>6l
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving sendees under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall lully cooperate with the State end shall promptly provide delailod inlormatlon to
support the Transition Plan inctuding, but not limited to. any Inlormaiion or data requested by (he State
related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement. Including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entKy including
connected providers or (he State, the Contractor shall provide'e process lor unintenirpted delivery of
services in (he Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shell establish .a method of notifying clients and other aflected irtdividuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communlcohorts In Its Trartsition Plan eubmitted
(0 the State as described above.

3. Extension:

The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract (or up to (wo (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services arid opproval by the Governor end
Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 • Revisiqris to Qenerat Provtsiorvs Conlmctor Initisls
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ORUQ-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor idenliTied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provistons of
Sections 515l-5160of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of IBM (Pub. L. lQO-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 ei seq.}. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the lollowing Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OP EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D:4t U.S.C. 701 et seq;). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Psd II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (end byinfcnrnco, sub-grantees end sub
contractors), prior to av/ard, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation'provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees end sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each f^ral Tiscat year in lieu of certificates for
each grant durtr>g the federal ftscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set cut below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
cemricat'ion or vtotoUon of (he certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to; • • ■

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Humen Services
129 Pleasant Street. '
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement ratifying employees that the unlawful manufoctufe, distribution,

dispensing, possession'or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace artd specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prehlbition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The.dangers of drug abuse In (he workplace;
1.2.2. The grentee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace:
1.2.3. Any available drug-counseling, rehabilitation. ar>d employee assistance programs; end
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse yio)atior\s

occurring in the workplace:
' 1.3. Making tt a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Not]fytr>g the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee wfll
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement: end
1.4.2. Notify (he employer in wrttir^g of his or her conviction for e violation of a criminal dnrg

- statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
convtctloo;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from en employee or otherwise receiving ectual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position (itie, to every grant
officer on whose grent actrvtty the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point lor the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the .
identiricatioh number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and'ineluding

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employob to portidpato sattsfdctorlly in a drug abuse essistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
taw enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to contlruio to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2,1.3, 1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In the space provided botow the 6ile{s) for the performarico of work done In
conrtection with the specific grant.

Place of PertormarKe (street address, city, county, slate, lip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workptaces on tile that ere rtot identified here.

Contractor Name:

Dale Name:
Title;
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contreclor Identilied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to conftpiy with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Low 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1352, end further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sedions 1.11
ertd 1.12 of the General Provisiorts execute the following Certllication:

US OEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US OEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Servidos Block Grant Program under ThJo XX
'MedlcaU Program under Tide XlX
'Community Services Block Grant ur>der Title VI
'Child Care Oovalopmeni Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: ̂

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been peid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undei^gned, to
any person for inftuenctng or attempllng to Influence an ofTicer or employee of any egency.-e Member
of Congress, en officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of a Member of Congress in
connoction with the ewanjirtg of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modirication of any Federal contrect. grent. loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
suthgrantee or sub<ontr8ctor).

2. If eny funds other than Federal approphaled funds have been paid or wfll be peid to any person for
inffuencing or attempltng to Influence an officer or employee of eny agency, a Member-of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of e Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, icen. or cooperative agreement (and by spedfic mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shell comptele end submit Standard Form LLL. (Disctosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with Its Instructions, attached end Identified as Standard Exhibit E-t.)

3. The undersigned shell require that'the language of this certiftcation be included In the award
. document for sub-ewerds et efl tiers (mduding subcontracts. sut>-granls. and conlrects urKler grants,
loans, 8r\d coopersUve agreements) end that ell sub-recip'ients shall certify and disdosa accordingly.

This certffication is a materiel representation of fact upon which reliance was pieced when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certfflcalion is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
trensacUon imposed by Section 1352, TKIe 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fells to fiie the required
certiricalbn shall be subject to a civO penalty of not less than $10,000 end not more then $100,000 for
each such (aiiure.

Contractor Namo:

Date Nemel" ^.
TiDo:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING PEBAWMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Conlractof (dontified in Section 1.3 ol the General Provisions agrees lo comply wilh the provisions of
Executive OfTice of the President. Executive Order 12S49 and 4SCFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, asidentiried in Sections t.tl end i.t2ol the GeneralProvislor^s execute the Mowing
Certir>cetion;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective prtmary participant Is providing the

cehiftcetlon set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction, if necessary, the jprospective participant shaD submil an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certificalion. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connoction wUh the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determirtalion whether to enter Into this Iranseclion. However, failure of Ihe prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material represanlotion of fact upon which reliance was placed
wtven DHHS determined to enter into this trensaction. If it is later determined thai the prospective'
pnmary participant'khov^hgly rendered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Goverrvnenl, OHHS may terminate this Iran'saclioo for cause or default.

A. The prospective primary participani shall provide immediate wrtnen notice lo the OHHS ager>cy to
whom this proposal (contract) is'submlRed if at any lime the prospeci^e primary participant ieams
that its conificatJon was erroneous when submitted of has b^me erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.* 'debarred." 'suspended." 'ineligible." "lower tier covered
Iransaction.' 'participant.* 'person.* 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal.* 'proposal." and
'voluntarily ex'cfudad," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Oefinllions and
Coverage saclior\s of the rules implemenling Executive Ordtf 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definil'ions.

6. The prospective primary participani agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any tower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Inellgtbie. or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered Iransaction. unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitttng this proposal that tt will Inchjde the
dause tlUed 'Certification Regarding Oebarment. Suspension, inellglbility end Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactiorts.' provided by OHHS. without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and In all sdidtalions for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certificalion of a prospective parttdpani In a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily exduded
from the covered Iransaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method end frequency by which It determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participani may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of exduded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be conslmed lo require esteblishmont of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this dause. The knowledge end

ExHWl F - CertiTiUllon Rsginflno Oebwmoni SmpenilOA Convaclor (nlUtft
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information of a parlldpani la not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed tiy a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transections authorized under paragraph 6 of these instnictions. if e participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ir^eligible, or voluntarily excluded from partidpalion in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
' for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVEREO TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary pertlcipani coriiftos to the best of its knowledge end belief, that It and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debanment, declared inellgibie, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been conviclod of or had

a cMI judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In .
connection with obleinlng. ettempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or locel)
transaction or e contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitnjsi
statutes or commission of emlMZZlement, theft, forgery, brii>ery. felsiricalion or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by e govemmantal entity
(Federal. State or local) wtth commission of any of the offenses enunrteraled In paragraph (IXb)
of this certircation; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appticstlon/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, Stale or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospoclive primary participant is unable to cerlify to eny of the steiemonts in this
certirication. su^ prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. ey signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Peri 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge end belief that it end its principals:
13.1. era not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this irensaction by eny federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is ur\able to certify to any of the above, such

prospe^ve parUctpant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective tower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) thai il vriu
indude this clause entitled 'CertiTication Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibitity, end
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without modirrcation in all lower tier covered
transactions end in all soticitatlons for lower tier covered transactions.

Dale Nem^
TIlJe:

Contractor Name:

Eitfiibd F - CwtincsUon Reeirdng Debarment. Suapemlon Contrsctor InTtleta,
And Other Reaporulbniiy Maa«*«
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CERTIFtCATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUiflEMENTS PERTAlHiNQ TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRiMlNATtON. EQUAL TREATMENT OP FAITH»BASED ORQANIZATiONS AND
WHiSTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contraclor will comply, end will require any subgrantoes or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscriminotion requirements, which moy include;

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Sale Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 37e9d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the deiivery of services or benefits, on the basts of race, color, religion, rational origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce en Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which adepts by
reference, the chril rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. R^ipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the. basis of race, color, religbn. national origin, end sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment ̂portunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from di$cnmlndtir>g on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal fmencial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to emptoymeni end the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity:

-the Americans with Oisabilittes Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures e.quai opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, end trsnsporiaiion;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683', 168S-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Oiscriminstion Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal fmanciel assistance. It does not include
employment discriminetion;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulatiorxs - Nondlscriminetion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and po1icy>making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based end neighborhood organizations;

- 26 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); ar^ Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 end The National Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program (or
Enhancement of Contract Employee WhtsUebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The cartiTicele set out below b o material representetion of fad upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
deberment.

ExNMC
' Conuxdor InlUcb
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In the event a Federal or Slate court or Federal or Slate administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process heaiing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipieni will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division wilhin the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section t.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
roprescnlative as idontifiad in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
cortricstion:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
ind'icated above.

Contractor Name:

Date Nann:

A.ExhiMG
Contrsctor Inftlsts.
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CERTIFICATION REGAROING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C ■ Environmenlal Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permlrted in any portion of any Indoor focllily owi^ed or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of heallh. day care, education,
or library'services lo children under (he age of 16, if tho services are funded by Federal progrenis either
directly or through Slate or tocal governments, by Federal grant, contract loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply lo children's services provided In private residences, fadlliies funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisioru of the law may result In the imposition of a cMI monetary penahy of up to
$1000 per dayand/or the imposition of an administrative compnance order on the responsible eniiiy.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute (he following
certiricalion:

I

1. By signing and submlrtlng (his contracl. the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contrector Name;

^

Date Name>
TiUe: a

1

curows/tieri)
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HEALTH INSURANCE PQRTABUTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 end
with the Standards for Privacy arxj Security of Individually ldentiriat>le Health Information, 45
CFR Paris 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate* shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement end 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set' shall have the same meanirig as the term 'designated record set*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Dfltfl AQareQatlon* shell have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Ooerations' shall have the seme meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR SecUon 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Ad* means the Health Infoimatioh Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Paris 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto. ..

r  ̂

i. 'Indivlduar shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual* in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance wHh 45
CFR Section164.501(g).

j. 'Privacv Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 1W and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the seme meaning as the term "protected health
Information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

5/2014 £ihNll Contr»etcrIftWaSi " ii R.
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I. 'Reouired bv Law" shall have Ihe same meaning as the term 'required by law* in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary* shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Dtscloaure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further; Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
its dir^torsi office.rs, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any.manner'that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For Ihe proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be l^ld confidentially er^
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; end (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Busirtess
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busir>ess

3/7014 E*wail ContTPCtOf ■ '
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI unlit Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and at>ove those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Oblinattono and ActlvUles of Bualnese AsBoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immedialely
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate, shall immedialely perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations.. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health Information involved, including the
types of Identifidrs and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to v^ich the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach NotiHcdtion Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policles.and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of detennining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of ils business'associates that receive, use or havC'
access to PHI under the Agreennent. to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
tt>e duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party Creneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivinoPHI

EjcNbftl
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pursuant to.this Agreernenl, with rights of enforcement and indemnincation from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37} of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within Five (S) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agr^ments, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, (or purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of (he Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving e written request from Covered Entity.
Business As^ciate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or'as dire^ed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shalt make'such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and iri.cpriMrdte any such amehdmerit to enable Covered Entity to'futfiil its
obligations under "4SjCFR Section 1W.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Eritity to respond to a'request by an
individual for en acco'untihg'of disclosures of PHI in accordance' with' 45 CFR'Secftion
.164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business day's of receiving a wntten request from Covered Entity for a ■
request for an accouniihg of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate.shali.rh'ake ayailabte
to Covered Entjty such information as Covered Entity may require'to'fulfi.ints'obligations
to provide an accounting ofdlsdosures with respect to PHI In accordant with'45 CFR
Sectiori 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) '
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of resportdlng to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding (he
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to vtolale HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Mspciate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. if return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenivise agreed to in
the Agreement.. Business Associate shall continue to extend (he protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses er>d disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasibte, for so long as Business
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' Associate maintains such PHI. if Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or ali PHI, the Business Associate shaii certify to

j  Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Oblioatlons of Covered EntiN

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any ct)anges or iimilation(s).in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance vvith 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such chenQo or limitetion may effect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHi.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocetion
of permissipn provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

' In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37)of this'
Agreement the Covered Entity may imm^iatety terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreerhent or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged braach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termlr^tion nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise deFined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
nec^sary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Coshered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule, pv •
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Seoreaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the appiication thereof to any
per8on(s) or circumstance Is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or conditiort; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severabte.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense end indemnification provisions of section (3) e end Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health end Human Services

The Stale

U, ruiflili] RfJuCiY. Tfii-lfl-fll

^ ^
Signature of Authorized Representative

- S rT>/<
Name of AbMorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

(tn/W/rA
ame of tffa Contractor

Signature of AOthorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

^g-ehiM
Title of Autho/ized Representative

Date

sr?oi4 ExMUll
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Exhibit J

CERTIPtCATlON RgQARDING THE FEOERAL FUHOINQ ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAt COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and TransparorKy Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater ihan $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub^rants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modincalions result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In ecconiance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Corhponsation Information), the
Deportment of Heollh and Human Services (OHHS) must report the fallowing Informetion for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Nameofenlily •
2. Amoum of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts ICFDA program rtumbcr for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descrfpUve of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the enlity (DUNS 0)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;

tO.t. More than 60% of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $2SM annually and '

10.2. Compensation InformaUort Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant redpienis must sulxnit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award emendmeni is made.

The Contractor identified in Section t .3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Tho Federal Funding Acoounlabilrty arid Transparency Act. Pubic Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward end Executive Comper^sation Infomnalion). end further agreos
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections t.tt and l.t2 of the General Provisions
execute the fcflowing Certlftcatlon:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to tho NH
Department of Haatlh end Human Services end lo comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparercy Act.

Contractor Name:

Date Names.
two: 5fr

ExNbil J - Coniflcadon Ragardlng [h« FodenM Funtfing Contractor InWatt^T^,
AcoounttbCly And Tramparency Act (FFATA) Compfisnea

cuOHko/iioio Pogai^Z 0*'-*
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FORMA

As ibe Contractor Ideniiried in Section t.3 of the Genera) Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for w)ur entity is: Dl^

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
recetve (t) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, suttcontrects.
ioens, grants, sub-grants, end/or cooperoUve agreernenis; end (2) $25,000,000 or more In enrxjal
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperativo agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to tf2 ebove is NO, stop here

If the answer to 02 ebovo is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 1S(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 76o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 ebove Is YES, stop here

tf the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the Hve most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as foilows:

Name;

Name:

Name:,

Name:

Name:

Amount;

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

cuift*«nio}0

EtfiSkll J - Cc/urcatlon Reet/dlne Uia Pedcfsl Pundlne
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

'Breach' means the loss of control compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situatlorts where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Inforrnation,' Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section
164.402 of Tide 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incldenf shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident* In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
jofC^mrperce.

3. 'Confidential. Information*, or 'Conndentlai Data' means all cgnfidenlial information
disclosed by one party to.the other such as all medical, health, financial, fkjblic
assistance benefits and personal information including without (imitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information ,and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential information also Includes any and all Information owned.-or managed Ijy
the Stale of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the DeparVnent p( Health and
Human Senrices (DHHS) or accessed in the course of peHoiming contracted
services •. of. which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is' governed by
stale or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax lnfprmatlor> (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential informalion.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivattve data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Heafih insurance Portabniry and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

8. 'Incident' means an act thai potentially violates an erq^lidt or implied security policy,
which IrKludes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
6 system for the processing or storage of data; end chenges to system hardware,
firmware, or sofrv^re characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consenl. Incidents include the loss ol data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacemeni of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4.Uslupd8tl04.04.20lB EdUUlK Cont/Mtw InUsts
DHHS Infomstlon
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have (he potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, end
approved, by means of the State, to transmit] will be considered en open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

6. 'Personal Informaiion' (or 'PI') means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's Identity, such as their name, soddl security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire PSA 359-C:19, biomelric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkat)le to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information al 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 ar>d 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information* (or 'PHI*) has the same meaning as provided in (he
definition of 'Protected Health Information' In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that rertders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endowed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Informatior^
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
Including but not limited to. all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of (he Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Inlormation In response to a

V4.L0*tupdBl* 04.04.20^0 ExNMK Co^nctof InftlAb
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis thai it Is required try law. In response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying OHHS so that OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. if DHH5 nolirtes the Contractor that OHHS has agreed to t>e bound by additional
reslhctions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards ot PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Securlly Rule, the Contractor musi be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violaiion ot such additional
restrtctiohs and must abide by any additionaJ security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or dartvatrve there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees' OHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS lor the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

U. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting OHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a ihumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Conlidential Data If
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only iransmil Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. II End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Conlidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. II End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Date, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Inlormatich will be
transmitted or eccessed.

10. SSH FJle Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known es Secure File Tronsler Protocol. If
End User is employing an SF7P to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour autodeletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

1. RETENTION AND DiSPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor wilt only retain the data and any derivative of the data (or the duration of this
Cohtract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data arid any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Slates. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, doud service or'cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure prtyer security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of prelecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ell eleclronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currenlly-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, antl-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-matware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive inlrusion-detection and lirewail protection. s

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its compiete cooperation with the Slate's
Chiel Information Officer in the detection of any security vuinerabiiity of the hosting
intrastructure.

6. Disposition >

t. If (he Contractor will maintain any Confidential information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for

.  securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written cerlificaiion for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of .
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltization, or otherwise f^ysicaliy destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-86, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization', National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document end certify in writing at
time of the ddta destruction, and will provide written certification to .the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include ell details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othenvise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy ell electronic Confldential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls lo protect Department
confidential (rtformation collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the infonrrtatlon lifecyde, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate autheniicatlon and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
delect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Deparlmenl confidential intofmatlon (or contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential intormalion.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes Ihat defines specific security
expectations, and mcniloring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, .Including breach notilication requirements.

7. The Contractor will'work with the Department to sign and comply writh ail applicable
Slate of New Harnpshire and. Oepartmerit system access end authorization policies
arxf procedur:es.- syste.ms access forms, and. computer u.se agreements as part ol
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by ihe Conlractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR .160.1Q3, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and iis responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Conlractor will vrorK with Ihe Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any'chartges in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities thai rnay
occur over the life of ihe Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an altemate lime frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor v^l not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

It. Data Security Breech Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breech, promptly , take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach. Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services,'mailing costs and
costs associated,with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

t2. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security ot Contidemial Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and s.cope that is not less
then the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agerKies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164} that govem protections for Individually idenliliable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security raqulrernents

'  ' established by the State of New Hampshire. Depahment of Information Techr>ology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/lndex.htm
for the Department of Inlormation Technology policies,' guidelines, standards, and
procurement information retaling to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and' incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, end
additional .email addresses provided in this section, ot any security breach within two
(2) hours, of the time'that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
wh'tch affects or includes er>y State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire networir.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Co.nfidenlial Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Conf'Kfeniial Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard.this information at all limes.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PR are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Conlidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and. being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. Ilmll disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
physically and lechnoioglcally secure from access by unauthorized perscrts
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometnc Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidonllal Data, inctuding any
dertvative files containing personally identifiable information, arid in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all limes when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances (Confidential Data 'must be maintained, used artd
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk^based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user-credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. Er>d Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliariice of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other appHcabte laws and Federal regulations until sucfi tirne the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordant^ with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy OfTrcer, Inlormation Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of.the
time that the Contractor teams of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the egency's documented Incident Handling end Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the (Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personalty identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

'  4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches (hat implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-0:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHMS contact lor Data Management or Data Exchange issues;

DHHSlnformationSecurilyOHIceOdhhs.nh.gov

B. OHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

OHHSPrivacyOfficer® dhhs.nh.gov

C. OHHS contact for information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOtticeOdhhs.nh.gov

0. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHStnfOfmationSecufityOtticeOdhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrlvacy.Otticer@dhhs.nh.gov
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